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Singer Thailand Public Company Limited has been
announced for “The Best Investor Relations Awards 2011” by
The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) and Money & Banking
Magazine at the SET Awards 2011. This annual ceremony was
held as the 8th and honored by Kittirat Na-Ranong, Deputy Prime
Minister and Minister of Finance, presiding over the ceremony and
bestowing the awards.

The awards was honored to the SINGER which have been
outstanding the best in investor relations listed company who have
continually cooperated in disclosing company-related information
which satisfied and beneficial to both existing shareholders and
potential investors. The Company also comprehensively and

effectively makes use of all the various channels of communication

as determined by SET.
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Financial Highlights

Uit Fanesdszindalne 1fia insu) uazuitindes Singer Thailand Public Company Limited & Its Subsidiaries
ﬁ;mﬂ'umﬂmmi Qusan ( um ) Highlights of the Consolidated Financial Statements ( Million Baht )

ru 3uA 31 suoAU (as at December 31)

2554/2011 | 2553/2010 | 2552/2009
UsuUsplri/Restated |

sw"lﬁmﬂmimmm:ﬂaﬂL‘fl,a%'m Total sales & Interest from installment sales 2,383.35 2,079.05 1,818.59
7191#571 Total Revenues 2,397.85 2,174.32 1,874.94
sl Gross Margin 1,297.33 1,143.58 1,077.11
ﬁunu‘uw Cost of Sales 1,086.02 935.47 741.49
alFnelumsneuazmsusms Selling and Administrative Expenses 1,110.12 1,048.78 1,027.36
'ls (nanu) qnd Net Profit (Loss) 142.46 89.37 (9.94)
Aunsndsiu Total Assets 2,229.48 2,082.08 2,145.34
Wiiau39% Total Liabilitics 1,248.54 1,234.39 1,438.87
dauvesiitieru Total Shareholder’s Equity 980.94 847.69 706.48

9a71d@3uMIms3u (Financial Ratio)

damirinls qnanu) qns (Govaz) Net Profit (Loss) Ratio (%) 5.94 411 (0.53)
danmaneuunusdadiuineriu (3esaz) Return on Equity (%) 15.58 11.50 (1.64)
SannanauunuNndunindsin ($evaz) Return on Assets (%) 6.61 4.23 (0.45)
dandQuifunadelsgns (Jevar) Dividend Pay Out Ratio (%) 37.91 30.21 0.00
ﬁmwdauﬁﬁauﬁiadmmmﬁ:ﬁaﬁu (1) Liabilities Per Equities Ratio 1.27 1.46 2.04
s (nanu) qniretiu (1) Earnings Per Share (Baht) 0.53 0.33 (0.04)
Quifuwadeyiu (1) Dividend Per Share (Baht) 0.20 0.10 0.00
wammutiy¥deriu (11M) Book value Per Share (Baht) 3.63 3.14 2.62
NUIUNINNU Total Staff (Persons) 3,693 3,663 4,166
neldnnmansuazaeniioiu daud fiils / (Vi) i faud Wt 2550 - w2554 HaMSVIEHARTaT Faus unsn - Fuian 2554
W.A. 2550 - W.f. 2554 Net Profit / (Loss) by Year 2007 -2011 Sales by Product Line January - December 2011

Sales & Interest from installment sales by
Year 2007 - 2011
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Report to the Shareholders
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Mr. Boonyong Tansakul

Managing Director

Highlights for Full Year 2011 period
Business environment

The business and economic environment in Thailand
during 2011 continued for the most part positive despite key
exports to Japan being affected early in the year as a result of
the tsunami tragedy. During the initial three quarters of the year,
the key economic sectors of exports (with average year-on-year
or YOY growth of 18 - 20%) and tourism (with average YOY
growth of 25 - 30%) together with private investments as well
as consumer sentiments remained positive, driving quarterly
GDP growth 3.8% YoY, 2.7%YoY and 3.2% for Quarters 1
to 3 respectively. However, in late Quarter 3 and lasting till
almost the end of December, Thailand suffered the worst flood
crisis ever experienced for over 50 years causing devastating
damage to homes, communities and, importantly, many light in-
dustry manufacturing plants located in the Central provinces of
Ayuthaya, Pahtumthani as well as other neighboring provinces
together with many suburban areas of Greater Bangkok itself.
This impacted people’s daily lives as well as the manufacturing,
automotive parts and electronics components exports, and, also
to a certain degree, tourism sectors. Thus, Thailand’s Quarter
4 GDP contracted by nearly 10% YoY, resulting in a very

marginal overall full year economic grow of only 0.1% YoY.

FY/ 2011 Operating Performance

For the financial year ending December 31, 2011,
the Company achieved consolidated revenues of Baht 2,397
million (an increase of 10.3% compared to FY 2010) and a

Net Profit of Baht 160.2 million (an increase of 13% year-on-

year - YoY), which is equal to an EPS of Baht 0.53 (compared
to Baht 0.33 last year).

This continued operating performance results
improvement for the FY/2011 period is driven by sustained
increases in top line revenues for every Quarter during the year,
that was based on increased products sales, an increased target
customer base that now includes not only households but also
small retail or grocery shops operators together with innovative
business development and marketing strategies deployed that
allowed customers interested in trading-in their existing home
appliance, regardless of brand, for brand new products offered
by Singer Thailand .

Other key factors that also contributed to the continued
bottom line improvement include :

» improved overall gross profit from the Company’s
new focus on promoting the sales of the “money
making machines” (ie: mobile air time vending
machines, drinking water vending machine ,freezers
and beverage coolers)

* improvements to both its ‘active’ paying installing
accounts (now increasing as much as 92% ) and
overdue or accounts arrears in Baht (now reduced
to 3.7% of gross accounts receivables value) that
was sustained throughout the year and resulted from
improved and more stringent credit controls relating
to hire purchase sales approvals and monitoring

e improved management of expenses and other costs

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
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Report to the Shareholders

» the net positive operating cash flow increased, which
enabled the Company to continue paring down it
overall debts

» more frequent field visits by key management level
to its widespread branch outlets and dealers network
in order to stimulate sales and marketing momentum
and improve overall branches’ post sales operating
effectiveness and productivity

» ongoing staff skills development and training to-
gether with other internal operating procedures’

enhancements.

2011 Flood Crisis

Like most businesses, The Company’s branches,
warehouse and customers have been affected by the unusually
severe flooding affecting parts of Thailand. After having ceased
operation for around two months, four of the Company’s shops
located in Ayutthaya and Pathumthani provinces have been
restarted and have shown significant improvement in both
sale and collection. After having made an assessment of the
damage, the Management estimated repair and damage loss
of approximately Baht 2 million. Management believe that
any losses arising as a consequence of the flooding will be
recovered from insurance.

However, the flood crisis afforded the Company to get
to know its rural ‘grass roots’ customers base more intimately
and vice versa. As with other companies, Singer Thailand
initiated its own flood relief activities and collaborated with
other organizations in coordinating assistance and giving
donations to the flood affected communities as well as
undertaking various flood relief efforts both during and after
the floods.. In the post-flood period, the Company sent out
teams of service technicians to check, clean and repair people’s
electrical appliances, regardless of brand and all services were

free of charge.

Plans for 2012

For 2012, the Government has a huge task ahead in
implementing urgent water management projects together with
promoting and stimulating extensive private investments in
order to quickly rehabilitate damaged key exports sectors, flood

affected communities as well as ongoing consumer confidence.

The NESDB predicts that if these revival activities are quickly
realized, Thailand’s economy and overall GDP growth is ex-
pected to grow 5% to 6% YoY.

Therefore, given the solid improvements achieved
during 2011, for this year and within this projected positive
business environment for 2012, throughout the year the
Company will continue:

» to focus on its growth strategies through expanding
both its product range and customer base, in order
to realize the vision of being the leader in consumer
appliances hire purchase sales in the provincial areas
of Thailand

* tomaintain ongoing internal operations improvements
projects, and

e to improve its financial structure and standing
which will facilitate to lower costs of funds for its
increasing installment sales.

The objective is to further strengthen the Company’s

business foundations so that Singer Thailand can sustain its

return to profitability over the coming years.

Comments on key Consolidated Financial Results for
FY 2011

Statements of Income (summarized in the chart
below)

With increased total revenues (10.3% YoY) but a slight
increase in total expenses (5.9% YoY), Profit for the year
increased by 59% to Baht 142.5 million.

Even without the gain from employees’ benefit actuarial
plan as in the case of 2010 and a marginal reduction on overall
gross margins (due to change in product sales mix), other
positive increases to the key components of the Statement of
Income that helped drive overall increases in FY 2011 profits
and earnings per share include:

e product sales increased by 14.6% YoY

» interest income increased by 14.9% YoY

» total revenues increased 10.3% YoY

e total expenses increased 5.9% YoY

» net comprehensive income increased 59.4% YoY

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011

1NANg 9Na (Unsu) / Singer Thailand Public Company Limited
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Report to the Shareholders

Consolidated Statement of Income

(in Baht - Million) Full Year 2011 Full Year 2010 % change YoY

Sales of goods 1,867.4 1,629.8 14.6%
Interest from installment sales 516.0 449.2 14.9%
Actuarial gains 77.0 -100.0%
Other income 14.5 18.3 -20.8%
TOTAL REVENUES 2,397.9 2,174.3 10.3%
Total Costs of Goods 1,086.0 935.5 16.1%
Total Expenses 1,110.1 1,048.7 5.9%
Finance costs 57.8 55.6 4.0%
Income tax 1.5 45.1 -96.7%
Profit for the year 142.5 89.4 59.4%
Other Net Comprehensive Income 17.7 51.8 -65.8%
Total Comprehensive income 160.2 141.2 13.5%
EPS (Baht) 0.53 0.33 59.4%

Balance Sheets
Total assets increased year-on-year by 7%, whereby, Lastly, as in past years, the efforts and professionalism
» installments receivables increased by 19% YoY (to of our employees have invaluably contributed to the overall
Baht 370.2 million), with a total of 143,099 accounts operational performance results as well as reputation of the
as at end December 2011 compared to 140,730 as  Company in the market place during 2011 - especially during
at end 2010. the very difficult months of the flood crisis. We therefore would
e net inventories increased by 11% (to Baht 261.6  like to thank all our staff and other internal stakeholders of
million). Singer Thailand for their continued loyalty and commitment;
While as at end 2011 total liabilities saw increases in and in particular, we also wish to express our deep appreciation
« trade payables (totaling Baht 140.5 million compared ~ to our Shareholders for their continued support.
to baht 76.6 million as at end 2010)
* long term debt has reduced to Baht 638 million
(compared to Baht 729.1 million as at end 2010),
because of sustained improved and positive net
operating cash flow, and
o total shareholders’ equity has increased by 16%
YoY (to Baht 980.9 million compared to Baht 847.7

million as at end 2010).

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
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ACU:NSSIUNISUSUN
Board of Directors

SINGER

waliSolon Kuounaooond Usilus

Admiral Mom Luang Usni  Pramoj
5251un35uM3 / Chairman of the Board
N554M58a52 / Independent Director

oy / Age 2771 / years

acomsAnw / Education :
- B.A. (Jurisprudence), Oxford University
- Barrister - at Law, Gray’s Inn, London. U.K.

msousu / Director Training Program :
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

msiioRuluusyn / Company Shareholdings :
76,500 #u Ay Yewaz 0.03
76,500 Shares = 0.03 %

Shuoutnidunssums / Year of Directorship :
27 1 dszmunssums : 11 1

Director - 27 years, Chairman of the Board : 11 years

chirkuoluusyndu / Positions in other Companies
Joouu / Present

- 09ANUAI

- Adamaminddudunszesd

- Yszmmunssums USEN duanns fe (WMB)

- seaszmunssums yadisunmndnansel

- nIIumMs Yailsentiunuiiag

- Privy Councilor

- Manager - H.M. Private Property (since 1969-Present)

- Chairman, Sammakorn PCL.

- Vice Chairman, The Mahavajiralongkorn Foundation

- Director, Ananda Mahidol Foundation



ANU:NSSUNISUSUN
Board of Directors

uayryew  auana
Mr. Boonyong Tansakul

nsmmsé’jé‘ﬁ'ﬂms / Managing Director

oy / Age 247 1 / years

qcomsAiny / Education :
- Pyanas Innssuliihmas amfumalulagnszaenindisuys
- Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering Degree King Mongkut’s
Institute of Technology
- Northwestern University Kellogg Graduate School of Management,
Certificate in Executive Development Program
- Sanno Institute of Management Thai-Japanese Technological Promotion

Association, Certificate of Introductory Manufacturing Management

msousl / Director Training Program :
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
- Charter Director Class (CDC)
- TLCA - Executive Development Program (EDP)

msiioRuluusyn / Company Shareholdings :
gt / N/A

ShuoutniBunssums / Year of Directorship -
478 1hou / 4 years, 8 Month.

Us:aumsnd / Work Experience :

5.0.2552 - gy - nssumaddams une. Baneiiszmdlny
2551 - 2552 - 399NIIUMIHIAMS UNY. Faneiiszimdlng
2550- 2551 - AFINMT, ﬁé’mmmiv’lwﬂnﬂLm:mmmﬂ
v, Suneilszmelng
2547 - 2549 - A¥amstszirszmalng va. Sumdu lszmnelng)
2546 - 2547 - fiamainll va. lswesAndinalilad
2535 - 2546 - A¥amsthene wazmsama une. Sanefszmalng
Dec. 2009 - Present - Managing Director, Singer Thailand PCL.
2008 - 2009 - Deputy Managing Director Singer Thailand PCL.
2007 - 2008 - Sales and Marketing Director
Singer Thailand PCL.
2004 - 2006 - Country Manager, Imation (Thailand) LTD.
2003 - 2004 - General Manager - Marketing, Sales and Services
Cyberdict Technology Limited
1992 - 2003 - Sales and Marketing Manager, Singer Thailand PCL

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
:1NAlNg 9Na (Unsu) / Singer Thailand Public Company Limited
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ACU:NSSIUNISUSUN
Board of Directors

SINGER

uaoau  sdienuun
Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda

U5eUANTNTTNMIATIVEBY / Chairman of Audit Committee
ﬂiillfniﬁiﬂﬂttﬁ:ﬁiﬂiﬂﬂfﬁﬂﬂ‘ﬂI,I,Tlu
Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

N335uM 39452 / Independent Director

ong / Age : 76 11/ years
acumsAnw / Education :

- Boanes Taddaudia wazr Baaned masdmanitadia
uMINedesITuman;
- Bachelor Degree in Accounting and Bachelor Degree in Commerce

Thammasat University

msousy / Director Training Program :
- Director Certification Program (DCP)

mstioruluusyn / Company Shareholdings :
il / N/A

ShuoutRidunssums / Year of Directorship
121/ years

chiktoluusyndu / Positions in other Companies
oqiiu
- dszmunssumIasadey 135 wided malulad $1ia imyu)
- dszmunssumsanvaey v3Hn wilesenmelnsd e wmnwu
- nssums 135 widled indifiana SiRe )
- A3INAT U3 uashad luiiungh  ida
2532 - 15 u.a. 2542
- nssumsidamslng) v3tn eﬁuiagﬂnaiwa daansa Nfa @n¥Y)
Present
- Chairman of Audit Committee, Premier Technology PCL.
- Chairman of Audit Committee, Premier Enterprise PCL.

- Director, Premier Marketing PCL.

- Director, Nakornping Night Plaza Company Limited
1989 - Jan 15, 1999
- Managing Director, Sanyo Universal Electric PCL.



ACU:NSSIUNISUSUN
Board of Directors

iensalawos voru Ad
Mr. Christopher John King

N335uM 39452 / Independent Director
U5 UAMTATTUMTATTHNLAZRIITINAADVUNY
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

N33UMINTIa8Y / Member of Audit Committee

oy / Age : 67 1l / years
acumsAinw / Education :

- Bachelor of Laws (LL.B) (Honors), University of Bristol, UK.

- Postgraduate Practical Certificate in Law, University of Singapore

msousu / Director Training Program :
- Director Certification Program (DCP)

mstioruluusyn / Company Shareholdings :
hidi / N/A

Shuoutnidunssums / Year of Directorship
6 1l / years

chikuoluusyndu / Positions in other Companies
2547 - ifagiiu
- ﬂiillﬂﬁﬁu'lﬂ'li/ﬂiillﬂﬁaﬁia‘i
- NITUNTATIVEOUY
- ASINMSATIH, MYUAAMABLLNY wazusTENALIA
SIAMTNMIT NG DA (NINFU)
2540 - 2547
- Partners, Linklaters (Thailand) Ltd.
2540 - 2546
- Managing Partners, Linklaters (Thailand) Ltd.
2004 - Present
- Director of the Board/ Independent Director
- Member of Audit Committee
- Member of the Nomination, Remuneration and
Corporate Governance Committee
TMB Bank PCL.
1997 - 2004
- Partners, Linklaters (Thailand) Ltd.
1997 - 2003
- Managing Partners, Linklaters (Thailand) Ltd.

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
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Board of Directors

SINGER

UNEWWS  WIB8ASNQ
Mr. Bibit Bijaisoradat

N554M39a52 / Independent Director
N354M3A3I9a0U / Member of Audit Committee

oy / Age 250 1 / years

qcumsAinu / Education :
- Byanei Sgmaasiiadia sananudusiussenialszma
PNaInseluInedy
- Byann Wawsndainmdadia (Uimsgsne) dandudadfiaiauuimsmdns
- Bachelor Degree, Political Science in International Relations,
Chulalongkorn University
- MBA Business Administration, NIDA

msous / Director Training Program :
- Director Certification Program (DCP)
- Audit Committee Program (ACP)
- Improving the Quality of Financial Reporting (QFR)
Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)
- Succession & Effective Lead ship Development (CEO)

mstioRuluuSYN / Company Shareholdings
st / N/A

Phuoutnidunssums / Year of Directorship :
279 hou/2 years, 9 Month.

chirtioluuS¥ndu / Positions in other Companies :

2543 - ifaaiiy NITUMIRIAMs, V3EM wenade Wenn $ida

2543 - ifa9iiy i‘iéﬁwﬁﬁﬂmi, dilnnudammindaudiunszoad
J09HB1IEMS, TasamsianndIunszesd

2544 - {fagiiy NIINMT, VNI, ITTUNA “1uw5:mm1‘gﬂﬁuﬁ

2545 - ﬂfn*qﬂu ASTUMTOETZ, ATINMTATIVEDL, NITHATATINIUAL

ANsanaeouuny, uxa. lnelseiude
AFTUMST, UND. dHIIAT

2546 - ﬂmﬁu NITUMATATIVADY, TR LR A G L H
2549 - ifagiiy AsIums, U3t unylng $ida
AISUAST, VA, (edduanns Avnaaeiiul
2000 - Present Managing Director, Mongkolchaipattana, Co., Ltd.
2000 - Present Assistant Manager, H. M. Private Property Office

Vice Director, H. M. Private Development Projects
Director, Suvarnachad Co., Ltd.

2001 - Present Independent Director, Audit Committee,
Nominating & Remuneration, Thai Insurance PCL

Present Director/Audit Committee, Rayong Purifier Co., Ltd.
Director, Ruam Thai Thanu Co., Ltd.
Director, Pure Summakorn Co., Ltd.




ACU:NSSIUNISUSUN
Board of Directors

ue wnse  AnsAnuNsnd
Mr. Paitoon  Sukhanaphorn

n334M 3 / Director

#e1nemschetiyFuazmsdu / Controller & Finance Director

oY / Age 541 / years

acomsAnw / Education :
- Wgann- vimsmstu pnansalimimede
- Syanes- Tadladia pnasnsaiuminede
- foanes- Tamaaidada sminndenudunnazgluiiesssuns
- Master Degree in Finance, Chulalongkorn University
- Bachelor Degree in Cost Accounting, Chulalongkorn University
- Bachelor Degree in Law, Ramkamhaeng University

- Bachelor Degree in Law, Sukhothaithammathirat University

msousu / Director Training Program :
- Director Certification Program (DCP)
- TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP)

msiioRuluusyn / Company Shareholdings :
4,000 1;1:‘11/0.001% /4,000 shares/0.001%

ShuoutRidunssums / Year of Directorship
318 heu/3 years, 8 Month.

Us:aumsnd / Work Experience :

2551 - ifaqtiu AsuMs wazfennemsihelioduazmsdu

15N Fanesdszmelng fida mnaw)
W.A. 2550 - 5.A. 2551 searenemsthedaysuazmstu

15N Fanesdszmelng fida maw)
A.A. 2548 - 1. 2550 A¥amsenlarhedayuazmsty

V3t gillneFensauaziduileiad $iia
(8. 2538 - n.8. 2548 Adamsenlarhemsiiu

15N Fanesdszmelng fida mnaw)
W.A. 2532 - 1., 2538 [eRdamsrhetios

vt yillneladide @maw)

2008 - Present Director, Controller & Finance Director
Singer Thailand PCL.

May 2007 - 2008 Deputy Controller & Finance Director
Singer Thailand PCL.

Oct.2005 - Apr.2007  Senior Finance and Accounting Manager
Unithai Shipyard & Engineering Ltd.
Apr.1995 - Sep.2005  Senior Finance Manager
Singer Thailand PCL.
May 1989 - Mar.1995  Assistance Accounting Manager
Unithai Line PCL.
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Board of Directors

SINGER

UNgM3U DOKU 208AINOS
Mr. Gavin John Walker

A5514M3 / Director
AFIUMIATINUATNAITANMABYLUNY

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

oy / Age 2421/ years

acumsAnNw / Education :
- Wits University, South Africa, Bachelor of Commerce Degree
- Wits University, South Africa, Bachelor of Accounting Degree
- Chartered Accountant (South Africa)
- Harvard University Graduate School of Business Strategic,
Retail Management
- RAU University, South Africa - Diploma

‘Financial Markets & Instruments’

msousu / Director Training Program :
- hili/N/A

mstioRuluusyn / Company Shareholdings
1% of Singer Asia Limited

Puoutnidunssums / Year of Directorship :
51/ years

Us:aumsnd / Work Experience :

2006 - Present - Director
- Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Singer Thailand PCL.
2005 - Present - President & CEO, Singer Asia Limited
2004 - 2005 - Managing Director, Ashton Chase Group Limited
2002 - 2003 - Managing Director, First Prize Solutions (PTY) Limited
1995 - 2002 - Chief executive (Previously Financial Director)

Profurn Limited
1995 - 1995 - Marketing Manager, First National Bank Limited
1991 - 1995 - Audit and Corporate Finance, KPMG




ueinluda Toisw usou

Mr. Tobias Josef Brown
N334 / Director

oy / Age : 49 1l / years

acumsAinw / Education :
- South Eugene High School

- Brandeis University, Waltham, Massachusetts, USA.

msousy / Director Training Program :
-l N/A

msiioRuluusyn / Company Shareholdings :
hidi / N/A

ShuoutRidunssums / Year of Directorship
8 1l 4 hou / 8 years, 4 Month.

Us:aumsnd / Work Experience :
2003 - Present - Director, Singer Thailand PCL.

ACU:NSSIUNISUSUN
Board of Directors

Present - Managing Director, UCL Asia Limited

- A Member of the Council of

Foreign Relations,

UCL Asia Limited
1991 - Board of Directors,

General Oriental Investments
1986 -1990 - Senior Vice President,

Asia Securities

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
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ACU:WUSKIS
Management

1. neyye duana
Mr. Boonyong Tansakul
AITNMINTANS

Managing Director

4 I's C4
2. wglumsd ansaanasel

Mr. Paitoon Sukhanaphorn
Agnemsdhetiysuazmsdu

Controller & Finance Director

SINGER

MYANAT YFING 5. wgauws nomIaunm

Mr. Kanisorn Nutchanart Mr. Somporn Kitthaveesinpoon
Aernemarhengy Aennemshsmsama

Sales Director Marketing Director

WgALIN @I
Mr. Siam Uralwong
7 , 4
Honnemshedue
Credit Director




SINGER

ANU:WUSMS
Management

chiikuUD
Position

Bo/ana

Name

dodoumstio
AU (%)
tu 31/12/54
No. of Shares held
as at 31/12/11

mMSsouUsy
Director

Training

Program

ACUQCINOMISANL
Education

Us:aumsninmoiu
Tus:e: 5 Udourao
Work Experience 5 Years up

MYANAT  UBUIY ﬁv'iimmmiﬁmﬂlm 5,000 ﬁu/ - Bann ﬁaﬂ@am’ "ail 2554 - ﬂ“-ﬁ.“ o
Mr. Kanisorn Nutchanart Criles IDfiisiar 0.002% angranogIne N/A - fggnnmathens v, Faneddszinellng
N AINTAUNIIMENEY 2552 - 2554
91y / Age : 56 U / years 5,000 share/ - 1fyane3 Hdmand tama - fensmshenguazmsama
0.002% WMINOAusIINANANS V. Fanefszimdlng
- seyanes 1vgane 2551 - 2551
(Resation) - gewmsthedfiinms
unInedenemsming . Faunefszimdlng
- Master of Arts: Economic 2545 - 2551
4 ¢ s X
Law, - mfEinnlasams va. we13 Fuueiv
Chulalongkorn University 2544 - 2545
- Bachelor of Laws, - frenssmsiiams ve. oA Suaedlai
Thammasat University 2541 - 2544
- Bachelor of Business - ﬁﬁﬂmiﬁ‘ﬂmﬁﬂmﬂﬁu%ﬁlﬁy
Administration (2 nd . Fanedilsznalne
.Class Hons.)/ Marketing, 2011 - Present
University of the Thai - Sales Director, Singer Thailand PCL.
Chamber of Commerce 2008 - 2011
- Sales and Marketing Director
Singer Thailand PCL.
July 2008 - Dec. 2008
- Director of Operations, Singer Thailand PCL.
2002 - 2008
- Consultant, JR Synergy Co.,Ltd.
2001 - 2002
- Assistance Managing Director
Pemco Interlight Co.,Ltd.
1998 - 2001
- Marketing Manager, Singer Thailand PCL.
MYAN 9UNINA Q’émmf.ni it - Wimsgsia mnmsama il a.n. 2551 - dagiu
Mr. Siam Uralwong thedude N/A umInendedadudey N/A - :;gmmjjmivljuwwmﬁ‘im
AFANW e, Funeilszinalng

914 / Age : 44 1l / years Credit Director

- yanln vimIgsneszving
dszing ngInesEring
dszna aminndelun
wvidalisy uasy Wassm
anig

- Bachelor of Business
Administration (B.B.A.)
Major Marketing ,
Assumption University
(ABAC)

- Master of International
Business Administration
- International Business,
Nova Southeastern
University Florida, U.S.A

n.9. 2549 - n.9.2551
- ggnnemstheiianngsfio
9. Baneflszinalng
14.8.2546 - €.7.2549
- ﬁ;a"mmmiv'hﬂmiﬂmﬂ
. Faunefszinelng
5.A. 2542 - §.0.2546
- fiamsthemsama vue. anedszindlng
Oct. 2008 - Present
- Credit Director, Singer Thailand PCL.
Sep. 2006 - Sep. 2008
- Business Development Director
Singer Thailand PCL.
Apr. 2003 - Aug. 2006
- Marketing Director, Singer Thailand PCL.
Dec. 1999 - Mar. 2003
- Marketing Manager, Singer Thailand PCL.

weduns Aaniduyu Aemnuns
shemsnain

Marketing Director

Mr. Somporn Kitthaveesinpoon
01g / Age : 42 3 / years

1,000 ﬁ:u/ - 13Msgsne Mnmsiams Taid

0.0004% il amInendudadudey N/A
AFINWY

1,000 share/ - WSgyanln vimsgsivszning

0.0004% dszing MNUIMIgIie

sznhlszind amInede
siuuad (lnganusiuile
fuumIinededadugay),
asuaoy, Ussnadangy

- Bachelor of Business
Administration
(B.B.A.) Major General
Management, Assumption
University (ABAC)

- Master of Science in
International Business
Management (in
collaboration with
Assumption University),
London, England

n.a. 2554 - a9t

- fgennemsthemsnma wwa. Faines
szmellng

2552 - 2554

- fiamsthemsama v, Suneddszndlng
2548-2552

- fiamsndadamionld vin. Suned
szmelng

2545-2552

- fiamsndadast vie. Sunedusandlne
July 2011 - Present

- Marketing Director, Singer Thailand PCL.
2009 - 2011

- Marketing Manager, Singer Thailand PCL.
2005-2009

- Senior Product Manager, Singer Thailand PCL.
2002-2005

- Product Manager, Singer Thailand PCL.
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Board of Directors

Admiral Mom Luang Usni Pramoj

Mr. Boonyong Tansakul
Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda
Mr. Christopher John King
Mr. Bibit Bijaisoradat

Mr. Tobias Josef Brown
Mr. Gavin John Walker

Mr. Paitoon Sukhanaphorn
Audit Committee

Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda

Mr. Christopher John King
Mr. Bibit Bijaisoradat

Chairman of the Board
and Independent Director
Managing Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Director

Director

Director

Chairman of Audit
Committee
Member

Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Christopher John King
Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda

Mr. Gavin John Walker

Management

Mr. Boonyong Tansakul

Mr. Paitoon Sukhanaphorn

Mr. Kanisorn Nutchanart

Mr. Siam Uralwong

Mr. Somporn Kitthaveesinpoon

Chairman of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee

Member

Member

Managing Director
Controller & Finance
Director

Sales Director

Credit Director

Marketing Director
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AAva NIk
Lﬁsllﬁl 72 91915 NdN Iﬂiﬂll'lﬂﬂll %u 17

AUUDTYATY UU9LN9TA [UALNaTN
n3amnw1 10500

INsSAWN : 0-2352 4777
Insans : 0-2352 4799
AUEUSMSANA (Call Center) : 0-2234-7171

www.singerthai.co.th

8sMoHaN
o Smmhonsedddlih, Snaduin, §EnGulnsdwiilede
saularl uazduq meldmsneneutss

SoUS:E:0aUNJB

1 4NAN - 31 SuNAu
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unan:1deu
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sunifuusvnoan:deuluaananannswej

28 digueu 2527

Name

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited
Registration No. 0107537000050

%dd Ofce

72 , CAT Telecom Tower, 17th Floor,
Charoen Krung Road, Bangrak,
Bangkok 10500

Telephone : (66) 2352 4777
Fax : (66) 2352 4799
Call Center : 0-2234-7171

www.singerthai.co.th

Main Business
» Sale on Hire Purchase of Home Appliance, Sewing

Machine, Air Time Vending Machine and Other

Products

A'ccounting Period

January 1 to December 31

Eéql Advisor

Chandler and Thong - Ek Law Offices Ltd.

gtérnal Auditor

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.

Registrar

Thailand Securities Depository Company Ltd.

R-egistered Capital

Baht 270,000,000 (at 270,000,000 Ordinary Shares with a Par
Value of Baht 1.00)
Paid-up Capital : Fully paid up at Baht 270,000,000

Date of Listing on the SET

June 28, 1984
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Vision

To be the market leader of direct sales and consumer finance
in the country.

Mission

To improve the quality of life of people by offering high quality
products and service at affordable prices

Values

In order to realize our goal of making Singer Thailand not only
a highly profitable company but also one of the best managed
Companies in Thailand, there are common values we must
share and cherish:
People We believe in our employees, who are
key success factor in our business. Thus,
all employees of Singer Thailand must be
both happy to work for and feel proud of
the Company with good opportunities for
career advancement.

It is our goal and also not unusual for Singer
Thailand to have life time customers purchase

Customers

products from the Company over the years.
The Company has built this loyal customer
base by providing good quality products,
ensuring timely collections and close follow-
up of accounts. It is important that this
continues in the future and that we maintain
constant focus on our customers.
Shareholders We provide a reasonable return to our
shareholders while safeguarding their
investment.
Partners We develop our suppliers to be partners in
progress and share our growth with them.
Competitors We respect our competitors and recognize
their contribution to market value.
Community We conduct our business by conforming to
the ethics of our Country and share the social
responsibility of the less fortunate.
Communications We believe that good and sustained internal
communication is critical to all our business
activities. However, this communication
mustbein ‘two-way’ in order to be effective
- from Management to employees but also
from employees to the Management.
We believe in effective leadership. Being a

good manager is not enough, all Executives,

Leadership

Managers and Supervisors should also aim
at being great leaders.

All great leaders have the following qualities:
They listen, they communicate well, and they
give credit to others for their successes and take
full responsibility for poor results. Great leaders
also inspire others and they always learn from
their successes as well as their failures.
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Risk Factors

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY’S RISKS
MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS

Recognizing the various risks that may occur and have
an adverse impact on the operations of the Company, Singer
Thailand had defined its principles and guideline on risks
management practices as well as on continuously reviewing
ways to improve its operational procedures, so as to enhance
both the standards and level of readiness in effectively managing
possible risks that may occur in the future.

Therefore, a summary of the Company’s principles
and guideline relating to risks management practices are given

below.

Principles on Risks Management
The Company has defined various principles in regard
to managing various types of risks that may occur that include:
 risks relating to hire purchase installment accounts
receivables
» risks relating to the electrical appliances market and
business environment
 risks relating to the liquidity of the Company
e operational risks, and

e other types of risks

The core principles for risks management by the
Company are:

* Responsibility and active participation of each
business unit within the Company regarding the
management of risks

* Responsibility for overall risks management
activities by an independent group within the
Company

e Having clear policies for the management of risks

» Indentifying all possible risks areas throughout the
operations of the Company

¢ Evaluation of each business unit’s performance to

include criteria on effective risks management

Risks Management Process
In order that the Company can effectively manage
all types of possible risks, it has defined the following resiks
management practices and procedures:
e Identification of risks : To identify all possible risks
in terms of types, causes, the internal and external

factors resulting in their occurrence, and to review

current as well as other possible future risks that
may occur.

o Assessment of risks : Making use of various
tools and procedures in effectively assessing the
identified risks, whereby the appropriateness of such
procedures need to be approved by management as
well as reviewed on a regular basis.

e Monitoring the management of risks : The process
in the actual management of identified risks need
to be monitored on a continuous basis in terms of
the established policies, types and levels of risks,
and means of managing them that have already been
approved by the Management.

* Reporting of risks : Comprehensive reporting of the
various types of identified risks need to be made in
order to facilitate both effective and efficient means
of management them.

Whereby, the overall objective of these processes is to
avoid any adverse financial impact for the Company as well as to
enable each business unit to effectively undertake their business
activities. Further, effective risks management processes need
to be regularly reviewed to ensure their appropriateness to the
ever-changing environment - both in normal circumstances as

well as in times of crisis.

Types of Risks

The various types of possible risks for the Company include :

* Risks relating to the market

Risks in terms of the market involve the overall business

environment as well as the total revenues and operations of
the Company, whereby the Company derives its business and
income from 2 core sources :

1. The distribution and sales of such products as
household electrical appliances, sewing machines,
freezers/coolers, on-line mobile phone air time
vending machines, and coin-operated drinking
water vending machines. All these products involve
intense competition, requiring the application of
the latest technology in being able to constantly
come up with innovative new features and offerings
throughout the respective product’s life cycle.
However, given that the Company only distributes
and sells and does not manufacture these products
itself, there is no direct threat from technology

related risks for the Company’s strategies and
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Risk Factors

operations. Moreover, the Company has continuous
sought out those manufacturers who have the
appropriate manufacturing and services capability
as well as know-how, but who do not themselves
have the distribution or sales network that Singer
Thailand has to offer in both parties becoming viable
strategic business partners. Therefore, the products
offered by the Company are continuously being
developed to include new features and offerings; and
further the Company also makes provisions to cover
those products that may possibly become outdated
or defective, in order to avoid any potential impact
to its financial status.

2. Installment payments interest income received
from hire purchase sales, which is fixed and clearly
stated in the sales agreements in accordance with
the applicable competitive environment and market
rates. However, given that the Company borrows
money at floating and variable interest rates, the
Company will continue to review the situation
as needed, and may decide to adjust the interest
rates used for hire purchase sales to appropriately
compensate for the applicable current higher interest

rates of its borrowings accordingly.

Risks relating to the hire purchase accounts or
installments receivables

Hire purchase installment accounts are a core element
and the heart of the Company’s operations and business since
more than 90% of its total sales are made on a hire purchase
basis. Therefore, the Company gives great importance to this
aspect of the business, in order to minimize potential risks
relating to these hire purchase accounts in terms of being unable
to make payment collections, having delinquent accounts and
bad debts as well as any possible fraudulent sales or accounts.

The Company has, thus, various measures regarding the
stringent oversight and management of hire purchase sales and
accounts - from the use of credit scoring methods in the pre
selling stage, close monitoring and of payment and collections
status, continuous reviews of hire purchase accounts, and
including taking immediate legal action in the event of any
consecutive non-payments - whereby all these procedures
are part of the core operations of the Company. Additionally,
the Company has established a dedicated full time Credit and
Risks Department that is fully independent from the Sales

and Collections Departments for the sake of expediency and
flexibility. All hire purchase sales require a guarantor or a
security in the form of some sort of asset.

While having a comprehensive pre-selling credit check
process of the prospective hire purchase customers by Credit
Control Officers of the Company may result in some decrease in
sales revenues, however the Company still continued with this
pre-selling procedure and even made them more stringent, so
that the Company may acquire only the most qualified new hire
purchase customers as well as good quality installment accounts.
Furthermore, improvements to the customers’ information and
database as well as ongoing enhancements to credit control
procedures have been implemented to make them even more
appropriate and effective. These actions are taken in order to
reduce and minimize any potential losses relating to these hire
purchase accounts, together with continuous provisions in the
Company’s accounts to cover any possible bad debts and losses
resulting from delinquent hire purchase accounts, whereby
possible bad debts provisions are made for all hire purchase
sales as soon as they are executed.

In terms of sales management process, as of 2010, the
Company also has established a strict ‘zero tolerance’ policy
and associated practices relating to any potential fraudulent
activities, whereby in October 2011 the Company has put in
place an ‘employee fidelity insurance’ policy to cover against
and minimize possible damages or losses resulting from
any internal fraudulent actions. This is one reason why the

Company’s Net Profit has continued to increase.

Risks relating to the manufacture of the products

The majority of the products sold by the Company
are manufactured by third parties on an OEM basis, thus
requiring manufacturers who are well experienced and have the
appropriate expertise. The Company has several manufacturing
sources without having to be dependent on any single production
source. This is in order to avoid being caught in a captive
manufacturing situation as well as to being able to have more
bargaining flexibility and achieve the most appropriate products

cost base for the Company as much as possible.

Risks relating to the Company’s nancial status

The business of the Company requires the use of
borrowed funds from various financial institutions and
commercial banks as well as institutional investors, whereby

there are always degrees of uncertainties and volatility within
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Risk Factors

both the local and global the financial and capital markets.
Therefore, the Company is continuously being affected by the
level of liquidity and interest rates fluctuations within these
markets, and thus the Company has a policy of not being
dependent on any one specific source of funds - whether they are
financial institutions, commercial banks or institutional investors
- in order to diversify the risks relating to its sources of funds.
Through the agreements made with financial institutions
in November 2009 in order to have an extension to the
repayment of the Company’s overdrafts and loans (totaling
Baht 1,026.2 million) of 6 years whereby the last repayment
installment is due on March 30, 2015, the Company has been
able to achieve a more appropriate level of liquidity in order
to effectively operate its business. This is evident from the
Company’s current ratio of 3.8 as at the end of December 2011,
which is comprised of Baht 97.3 million in short term loans
together with long term loans of Baht 638.0 million. However,
through the above mentioned agreements relating to the loans
repayments extension, the Company’s borrowings are based
the applicable current commercial banks ‘MLR’ interest rate,
which is a floating rate of interest and thus implies an inherent
financial risk for the Company in being dependent upon the
ever-changing environment of the financial and capital markets.
Further, there is also some risk for the Company relating
to the applicable foreign exchange rates since it imports some
of its products from overseas sources — which, on average,
account for some 6% of its total sales and thus imposes only
a slight risk on the costs of imported products, namely sewing
machines. However, the company is able to minimize this risk
in being able to increase the selling price as well as due to the
reduction of import duties for sewing machines imported from
China as a result of the Government’s policy to implement a

Free Trade Agreement with China

Risks relating to Government’s regulations and actions
The hire purchase business is a very competitive
business, resulting in the Government paying considerable
attention as well as implementing various controls and
regulations - such as establishing the Office of The Consumers
Protection Board to ensure that no hire purchase business
company takes undue advantage of unknowing consumers.
Atthe same time, the Business Development Department
of the Ministry of Commerce has announced that hire purchase

sales of electrical appliance is a ‘“controlled business”,

in y2001 whereby regulations are enforced regarding various
aspects of the hire purchase agreement which may be potential
areas for consumers to be taken advantage of, namely : the rate
of interest charged, fees for overdue payments, and penalties for
late payments. Also, these regulations involve hire purchase
companies being liable for potential product liabilities in regard
to the quality and safety of the electrical products sold.

Therefore, the Company has defined specific operational
procedures for its hire purchase sales activities that also include
products guarantees as well as constant follow-up on the latest
developments on the part of the Government’s actions in this
regard, so that the Company can fully comply to all the official
rules and regulations.

Further, the Company has been recognized and awarded
various certificates by the Office of The Consumers Protection
Board - relating to its products labeling, its products advertising
campaigns, and its hire purchase agreements that are considered
to be fair and equitable for its customers - on January 21, 2003,
on September 21,2007 and again in 2008 for being a company

that constantly protects consumer’s rights.

Risks relating to the occurrence of natural disasters

From the recent flood crisis in (Thailand) at the end
of 2011, earthquakes and tsunami (in Japan and in Thailand),
natural disasters have now become an important everyday fact
of life and risk factor in operating a business, to which the
Company must now start to give more importance since these
disasters can result in potentially extensive damages to the
Company’s property and overall operations. Such risks cannot
be avoided by the Company, but it can endeavor to minimize
the potential adverse effects and damages as well as find ways
to protect itself and its assets as much as possible though being
fully prepared and through the proactive cooperation of all its
employees.

Thus, the Company has assigned all branch Managers
to look after and manage their outlets and all related assets
in their responsibility as if they were the owner or a business
entrepreneur. Further, given that the branches are spread
out throughout the country, the potential effects from risks
of occurrence of natural disasters are diversified and thus
minimized to a certain extent; whereby should a natural disaster
occur in one area causing damages to branches located there,
other branches nearby that are unaffected can always continue

to operate without interruption.
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Risk Factors

Moreover, the Company’s business model involves sales
representatives going out into the communities and directly
canvassing prospects and customers rather than making sales
only from the branch outlets; thus flooding will not significantly
disrupt the operations of these branches. This was evident from
the recent flood situation in the central provinces and many
parts of outer Bangkok; whereby normal levels of sales and
collections outputs by the Company’s representatives continued
without any significant disruption or negative impact being
experienced, and as soon as the floods receded full operations
resumed almost immediately. Also, in the event of any major
disaster or business disruption, the Company is able transfer
the associated risks through its ‘all risks’ insurance coverage

with the Muang Thai Insurance company.

Risks relating to the human resources of the Company

Human resources are a critical success factor for the
Company and thereby is a key risk in regard to the retirement
or resignation of key employees that may result in some degree
of disruption to the Company’s operations. The Company, thus,
gives great importance and value towards all employees through
looking after their welfare as of they are a member of the same
family, as well as in supporting them in appointing them to
positions of responsibilities appropriate to their capabilities and
in affording continuous training opportunities for employees
at all levels. Also, the Company has established an Employee
Retirement Fund so that the financial status of the Company
is not affected in any significant way when employees reach

retirement.

Risks relating to repossessing products

Repossession of products is an unavoidable and inherent
risk in the hire purchase business, even if it means that sales
revenue will decrease while inventories will increase. From
another viewpoint, repossession is an alternative means to
minimize possible losses from the halting of payments flow
from delinquent installment accounts, since the Company can
resell the repossessed goods in the used- merchandise market

which is another key business strategy.

Risks relating to the Company’s overall operations
This relates to the possible mistakes made, to the
insufficiencies of as well as inefficiencies in the established

operational procedures and processes or in the information

technology systems in use, or to the lack of sufficient capability
on the part of employees, as well as to external events - all of
which factors may result in both direct and indirect adverse

effects on the Company’s revenues and installment accounts.

Guidelines and Procedures on managing operational
risks

Operational risks are inherent in all operational
procedures and processes, all business units as well as in the
information technology systems deployed, all of which aspects
can result in losses and adverse effects for the Company, its
customers and its Shareholders.

The Company has always recognized the importance of
being able to effectively manage all such business operational
risks by defining related policies and procedures to be observed
as well as in implementing continuous training about these
policies and procedures. The primary objective of these actions
is to have each and every business unit within the Company
implement the appropriate and proper management of such
risks through having in place effective working procedures to
control these risks together with a systematic risks management
program of the same standard, with which to assess the relevant
risks so as to protect them from occurring and thus avoid any
potential damages. Additionally, senior Management is then
able to have a good overview of all the possible risks in order
to effectively manage them through having accurate information
on hand and being able to make sound business decisions that
will also fully comply to all the relevant and applicable rules
and regulations in effect.

Moreover, the Company has a process to evaluate the
risks and effectiveness of risks managements programs relating
to any new business activity or operational procedures, so that
it can be confident that such identified risks relating to any
new business activities or procedures are at acceptable levels,
as well as that the measures to manage them are appropriate
and effective prior to their being introduced to its customers.

Lastly, the Company is committed to continuously
develop programs and procedures in effectively managing
identified operational risks and to make use of any latest risk

management tools available.
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Industry Trends and Market Dynamics

According to the Ministry of Finance’s estimated/actual
economic data, the Thai economy achieved only a very marginal
FY/2011 GDP growth of -1% to 0.5% year-on-year (YoY) due
to the significant Q4/11 flood induced economic contraction (of
9% YoY) and total exports growth of 17.2% YoY. Domestic
consumption and total private investments increased YoY by
2.5% and 4.7% respectively, while inflation averaged 3.8%
for the year, unemployment was 0.7%, and Thailand’s current
account balance showed a surplus of 2.2% of GDP.

For 2012, full year GDP growth is expected to be in
the range of 4.5 - 5.5% YoY, which is an increase over the
FY/2011 very marginal economic growth, as a result of being
driven by local as well as overseas demand for goods and
exports (which is projected to grow by 17 -19.0% YoY) with
domestic consumption and total private investments forecasted
to increase YoY by 4.4% and 10.3% respectively, and inflation
for this year is projected to average 3.5 - 4.0%. Unemployment
should remain at 0.7% and Thailand’s current account balance
is expected to show a surplus of 1.2% of GDP. However, given
that the global economic crisis has not yet eased and that the
value of Thai Baht is still fluctuating at a fairly high level
(versus major foreign currencies), export demand for certain
Thai goods will still show continued decline - such as clothing
products and garments, electronic components, and audio and
VDO appliances which are expected to drop by 26.5% and
9,8% and 39.4% on a YoY basis respectively.

The devastating flood crisis at the end of 2011 was the
worst and most widespread flooding seen for over 50 years,
and had very significant and considerable impact on the Thai
economy last year - resulting in the an overall GDP growth that
was far below the initial very positive expectations, which was
based on the average GDP growth of 3.1% for the first three
quarters of 2011. The extensive damages together with the
disruptions to various economic activities is expected to result
in a drastic decline in the overall GDP growth for Q4/11. This
is especially so for the key manufacturing operations, located
within the key 7 industrial estates (out of the country’s total of
15) situated in the flood affected area, that had to close down and
thus critically impacting key export sectors which is expected
to show a sharp drop in value for the last quarter of last year.
This unexpected decline in the overall economic activities will
result in a YoY GDP contraction of 9% for Q4/11.

Thus, after this negative economic environment, the
overall economy for 2012 is expected to be a “V shape”

growth, although Q1/12 will still see a marginal decrease of

0.2% YoY before the economy will revive sharply to achieve
projected overall FY/2012 GDP growth of 4.1% YoY (which
is a slight improvement on the previous forecast of 4.0%) since
this revival is founded on a low starting base. The key engine to
drive this steep economic growth will now be both the increased
in public sector expenditures and infrastructure investments,
whereas prior growth forecasts were based on assumed private
sector investments. This is a direct result of the recent flooding
disaster that had a direct impact on private sector sentiments
and expenditures. While in order to revive and re-stimulate the
economy, the public sector is forced to increase expenditures
and investments for major infrastructure projects, whereby
both public sector expenditures and investments are expected

to grow 6.9% and 4.3% compared to the same period last year.

Electrical Appliances Hire Purchase Business

The hire purchase business in Thailand consists of 2
major groups of players, each with its own extensive customer
base and differing characteristics.

The major players in the first group are: GE Capital
(Thailand) Co. Ltd. and Aeon Thana Sinsap (Thailand)
Co. Ltd., whereby apart from their core business of offering
hire purchase sales of electrical home appliances, they also
have hire purchase facilities for other equipments, such as
: communications equipments, office equipment, furniture,
motorcycles and musical instruments.

The second group concentrates on only offering hire
purchase sales products that have a long life span and usage,
such as home appliances; whereby Singer Thailand is the
only company in this group to have its own direct sales force
and dedicated collections team working from its widespread
branch network.

Given that common household appliances (such as TVs
and refrigerators) already have a high ownership rate; thus it
is difficult to achieve increased sales and market penetration.
However, Singer Thailand’s Management viewed this as an
good opportunity to proactively deploy a ‘replacement sales’
strategy, based on allowing trade-in of all brands of household
appliances when buying a new appliance from Singer Thailand,
together with a discount of between Baht 1,000 - 5,000 as well
as practical hire purchase terms and good after sales services
from the many Singer branches located throughout the country.
This is seen as a key element in enabling Singer Thailand to
achieve its goal of actively expanding its customer base for all

the various products offerings of the Company.
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Industry Trends and Market Dynamics

Sewing Machines

Almost every type of consumer products manufactured
and used in everyday life (such as: shirts/blouses, trousers,
skirts, hand bags and cases, shoes, sheets, and pillow cases,
etc) all involve sewing machines in their production. Therefore,
sewing machines are widely used in all type of business -
whether large industrial concerns, and medium or small sized
enterprises. Further, small general purpose sewing machines
are used in many, many households.

The sewing machines business consists of 2 major
segments : industrial sewing machines used in the manufacturing
of common consumer goods, and general sewing machines used
in homes. The latter consist of these popular brands: Singer,
Janome, Elvira, Brother and Juki, together with various low-end
and inexpensive brands imported from China.

Sewing machines are durable equipment with a long life
span (depending upon proper use appropriate application for
the purpose for they were made). The sewing machine market
is also a growing business; whereby the latest models make use
of technology to improve their performance and the products
they can produce, and they are fully computerized as well as
are well-designed and very compact in size. These models are
very easy to use and can produce very artistic workmanship,

suitable for the current popularity in ‘do it yourself” apparels.

Major Changes in the Competitive Environment

There are several consumer finance companies currently
operating in Thailand that are ‘non bank’ organizations, such
as credit card companies like American Express Thai (AMEX
cards), General Card Services - GE/Krungsri Ayudhaya (Central
cards, Krungsri cards), Krung Thai Credit Card (KTC), and
Tesco Card Services (Tesco cards). While the main non-bank
consumer finance companies are Aeon Thailand, GE Capital
Thailand, and Easy Buy; all of whom focus on offering hire
purchase services for consumer durable goods and household
appliances) as well as personal loans services. Then there is
Singer Thailand, which has been operating in Thailand for over
120 years, and which focuses only on hire purchase sales of
its in-house products.

The non-bank consumer finance companies such as GE,
Aeon and Easy Buy are mostly (or all) fully foreign owned,
offering hire purchase and personal credit services mostly to
AA customers with a good credit rating and a stable, permanent
monthly salary of at least Baht 4,000. While, Singer Thailand

focuses more on those living in the provinces and mostly the

grass roots agricultural workers or farmers. All these consumer
credit services undertake direct sales, and will add their
financing costs as well as those costs relating to pre and post
sales activities into the overall pricing charged to the consumer.

The key competitive strategies employed by these
companies will differ; whereby AEON, GE Capital and Easy
Buy focus on fast service and credit approval process as well as
the rate of interest charged. While consumer credit companies
who have a large customer base comprising of grass roots
consumers /agricultural workers will focus on establishing good
and long-lasting customer relationships within each community
together with efficient pre and post sales services. Additionally,
direct selling also involves providing services that takes into
consideration the best benefits for the customers as well as

being able to offer new and varied products.
Singer Thailond” Strategies and SWOT Andlysis

Strengths

- The SINGER brand has been in the Thai market for
over 120 years, and is well-known with a strong
reputation for products with good and consistent
quality, durability, long lasting, and in providing
services direct to the homes of customers.

- Well known and well accepted within the hire
purchase and consumer finance business.

- Has a widespread network of own branches
throughout the country.

- Singer sales representative are well-qualified and
well-trained in providing good customer services,.

- Has an well-experienced Management team

- Has an effective and well accepted sales and
marketing strategy, based on offering home
appliances “trade in” (regardless of brands) within
the ‘replacement market’ space

- Has NO direct competitive home appliances direct
selling organization

- Its core targeted customer group is the grass roots
population living the upcountry communities (which
accounts for 70% of the total number of households
in Thailand) who are often denied consumer credit
services due to not having a stable and permanent
source of income.

- In these local communities, there are many small

business retailers/operators who need credit to
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Industry Trends and Market Dynamics

purchase goods that will generate income for their
business, and thus avoid having to invest a lump
sum upfront.

Has a sales and distribution network that effectively
covers and supports the expansion of its marketing
activities to the small businesses or retailer shops
(show huay), located in the local communities
throughout the country.

Has reputable strategic business partners who can
supply, under an OEM arrangements, various quality
products under the SINGER brand on a sustainable
basis, but who themselves do not have a distribution
and sales network into these widespread local
communities.

The high operating expenses dictates and facilitates
innovative business processes and procedures
(through use of technology as well as in the pepole’s
minds)

Singer is one of the few organizations that can
immediately access and reach into the widespread
local communities to offer assistance and relief in

times of crises or natural disasters.

Weaknesses and Obstacles

The uncertainties relating to the economic
environment - especially within the agricultural
sector.

The costs structure specific to direct selling of
appliances on an installment basis is higher than
normal market prices.

The inherent and longstanding corporate culture
and mindset within Singer is difficult to change, so
changes must be more on an ‘evolving’ basis rather
than on an immediate turn around mode.

The legal regulations in effect hinders effective
credit checks and verifications.

The ever-changing and often unpredictable climate
environment and occurrence of natural disasters
are obstacles to routine and regular field visits (by

Singer sales and service representatives).

Strategies

Consistently develop new products that will facilitate
expansion of the business and customer base into
to the medium and small business operators/retailer
shops segment - eg: show huay stores, minimarts,
hostels, small food service outlets.

Extend the strong sales curve in air conditioners
sales that has a strong demand potential, through
innovative after sales services, professional
installations team, and effective but well-controlled
credit approval process.

Having a stringent and effective credit control as well
as approval processes that will ensure the Company
will have good quality installments sales customers
with reliable payments and collections potential.
Expand the direct installment sales activities while
there is still no direct competitor.

Continue offering the ‘trade in’ marketing campaign
for all brands of household appliances.

Offering used home appliances at reasonable prices
with good value - on a ‘cash and carry’ basis.
Make effective use of ‘telemarketing’ activities
through the existing Singer Call centre facilities -
especially to reach those customers that are hard for
the direct sales teams to effectively access.
Develop other automated vending machines for other
products and services - as well as other models of
the popular on-line mobile phone Airtime vending
machines, in order to penetrate into the small
business operators/retailers segment, who will use
these products to generate income for their business.
Develop and offer energy savings equipments or
products as well as equipments relating to the use
of alternative energy, in anticipation of possible
energy shortage situations.

Maintain good business relations with key investor
groups as well as the sound reputation of the
Company as a whole.

Expand the Singer branch network through planning
to open 10 new branches per year, in order to achieve
effective market coverage - especially those key
market areas with good sales potential, which will

in turn help reduce overall selling expenses.
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Business Operation of the Company

Background

In 1889, Singer Sewing Company from the United
States of America appointed Kiam Hua Heng Co. Ltd. as the
distributor for “SINGER” sewing machines in the Kingdom
of Thailand. Later in 1905, Singer Sewing Company from the
United States of America itself established a branch in Thailand
under the name “Singer Sewing Machine Company Limited”,
with the objective of selling and distributing imported sewing
machines and other products related to sewing.

In 1925, the Company initiated and offered a convenient
installments payment plan to its customers; and this service
became the prominent identity and an integral part of Singer’s
business in Thailand as well as in other countries in Asia. For
the next 50 years, the Company continued selling only sewing
machines and related products to its customers until the year
1957, when it also started selling refrigerators and subsequently
introduced a full range of electrical home appliances.

On November 24", 1969, “Singer Thailand Company
Limited” was established and registered as a Thai company in
order to taking over all the business activities of “Singer Sewing
Machine Company Limited”, which later ceased its operations.
Singer Thailand Company Limited started with a registered
capital of Baht 60 million, and, at present, it has a registered
capital of Baht 270 Million, of which Baht 270 Million is
fully issued and paid-up. Then in 1984, The Company was
also approved as a listed company on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand; and on January 4", 1994 the Company was registered
as a “public company limited”. Since its establishment and up
to the present day, the Company has conducted its business with
honesty, integrity, and responsibility to the Thai society, and has
contributed to Thailand’s economic development. May 24",
2004 was a most auspicious occasion for the Company in that
His Royal Majesty the King graciously bestowed the GARUDA
emblem to Singer Thailand Public Company Limited as a
Company under the patronage of His Royal Majesty the King.
This is the highest honor in the Company’s history and also the

proudest moment for the Company and all of its employees.

Business Operations of the Company and its
Subsidiaries

« Singer Thailand Public Company Limited

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited (Singer

Thailand) is the distributor of various products under the
“Singer” brand and trademark, such as sewing machines,
electrical home appliances. Additionally, other products and
equipment are also distributed and sold by the Company, such
as, satellite dishes, agricultural tools and equipments, coin-
operated online mobile phones air time vending machines,
coin-operated drinking water filtering and vending machines
to serve the varied requirements of its customers.

Direct sales of its products, on a hire purchase basis, are
made by more than 2,000 Singer sales representatives through
over 180 branches located in all regions of the country; and
thus it means that Singer Thailand has the largest and most
widespread products sales and distribution network for sewing

machines and various home appliances in Thailand.

Singer products can be categorized in product groups

as follows:

“Singer” brand products

¢ Sewing machine products: sewing machines,
needles, multi-purpose lubricating oil (with drop
and spray dispensers), scissors, etc.

e Electrical home appliance products: refrigerators,
washing machines, gas stoves, air conditioners,
microwave ovens, etc.

e Electrical appliances products for commercial use:
freezers, beverage refrigerators and coolers, wine
coolers/fridges, coin-operated online mobile phones
air time vending machines, coin-operated drinking
water filtering and vending machines,

* Audio and video products : flat-screen television

(CRT TV), TV satellite , and LCD TV and LED
TV - SAT, DVD players and stereo sets, etc.

Other products

e TV Satellite dishes

e agricultural tools and equipments

Under the “Singer” brand and trademark, the Company
sells products both on a cash and hire purchase installment
basis, with direct sales by its sales representatives through
its branch network spread throughout the country. Almost all

of the products distributed and sold by Singer Thailand are
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Business Operation of the Company

produced by OEMs (Original Equipment Manufacturers) with

the majority of them being sourced from within Thailand.

New Products Programs

The Company realizes the importance of new products
development or innovation, in order to serve the needs of its
customers, as well as the on-going advancement of technologies.
During the past year, the Company launched many new
products, such as the coin-operated mobile phone air time air
time vending machines, which was followed by the launch of
similar air time vending machines that accepted bank notes
as a means of payment in order to increase the revenues of
our customers. This latter product, designed and produced by
the Company are very well known and well accepted in the
Japanese market as well as all over the world. The vending
machine accepts Baht 20, 50 and 100 notes (one at a time and
gives out change), and is the only one to be given a patent
(No. 4826/4818) by the Intellectual and Patent Office of the
Ministry of Commerce. It also offers a guarantee against theft
or robbery (but subject to certain conditions).

The LED TV products group, which Singer developed
from general LED TV, includes LED TV SAT which can
receive TV signals from satellites without any need to buy
an additional set top box, since for this new LED TV SAT a
satellite signal receiver is already built into the TV set - all that
needs to done is to plug in the signal receiving cable into the
socket located at the back of the TV setin order to receive the
satellite TV picture/sound signals. It can be used with either
C Band (black satellite dishes type) or KU band (dense white
dishes) signals, and it also has other special features, such as
the ability to view both normal TCV as well as satellite TV
by using the same one remote control unit or the ability to
record programs being screened (PVR mode) by pressing only
one button on the remote control. This is a sample of applying
innovative technology development by Singer.

Through proactive R&D efforts, new products within
the freezer, refrigerator and cooler products line have also
been developed and launched to meet specific needs of our
small retailer customers and therefore, enhancing Singer’s
competitive edge in the market. For example, our refrigerators
for beer sales has a digital temperature control unit that can

accurately achieve and consistently maintain a temperature

of up to - 8*C, thus keeping the beer at almost an ice-cold
state. This innovation from Singer enables the small retailer
customer’s business to have a marketing tool in being able to
more effectively differentiate his product/services, and thus be
able to better compete and attract his customers in his market;
it also enables his business to potentially increase revenues on
a more sustainable basis.

For the coming year, the Company plans to introduced
other new products so as to be able to realize its policies and
strategies of further expanding into the SMEs business operators
- especially the small retailers shop and corner (‘mom & pop)
stores, of which there is a significantly large potential customer
base (many hundreds of thousands) throughout the country.
The Company aims to assist these numerous small retailers in
improving (with the support of Singer) their business to such a
level that they can more effectively compete with the medium

or larger retailers or the modern trade channels.

Sales Channels and Strategies to Expand

The company has defined a new strategic direction and
revamped its business model, from focusing on households and
general consumers as the core customer group to target more
on the small business customers group, whereby Singer will
focus more on selling products that the new target customers can
use in increasing the potential of their businesses and resultant
revenues. This strategy will also enable Singer to reduce the
risk in being virtually dependent on only the household and
consumers.

The Company seeks to capture the small retailer shops
and corner (‘mom & pop’ - “show huay) stores operating in
local communities and villages spread throughout the country,
of which it is estimated that there are several hundred thousands,
with each village or community having about 10 - 20 such small
retailer shops, whom Singer plan to help improve operations
and their level of competitiveness. The core products that the
Company will sell to these small retailer shops will include
freezers, refrigerators for drinks and beer, wine coolers/fridges,
coin-operated online mobile phones air time vending machines,
as well as coin-operated drinking water filtering and vending
machines. The company also aims to expand products than can
be offered to this targeted core customer group so as to better

meet their specific needs in the future.
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Business Operation of the Company

Subsidiary Companies

® Singer (Broker) Limited

Singer (Broker) Limited is an authorized sales channel
for life insurance products and is currently the appointed dealer
for Muang Thai Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Only Singer Thailand
Public Company Limited employees with an authorized life
insurance agent permit are assigned to sell life insurance
products to customers.

® Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited

Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited was established to
serve as an assembly facility for sewing machines, gas stoves,
light industrial motors and multi-purpose lubricating oil for
Singer Thailand pcl. to distributed and sell these products in
Thailand as well as to several other neighboring countries till

2002, when it was decided that the Company should
ceased manufacturing and assembly of the above products, and
switching to lower cost imported products because of a more
competitive cost structure on the part of imported products that
was lower than that from our own manufacturing Subsidiary.

However, in 2009, Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited
started to produce drinking water for distribution to Singer
Thailand pcl. as its main customer. However, as a result of the
continuing losses from this drinking water production due to
the lower production volume together with the loss of labor to
other manufacturers, the Company, therefore, decided to close

down the production activity as at November 2011.

Product Procurement

Since 2002, the sourcing of sewing machines changed
from its local Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited assembly
Company to importing completely built up units because of
better costs. Products purchased from overseas manufacturers
account for approximately 5% of the Company’s, total
purchases.

As for electrical products, the Company purchases them
from local manufacturers in the form of Original Equipment
Manufacturers. These manufacturers producing these electrical
home appliance products and commercial products under
SINGER trademark and brand name for the Company are as
follows:

1. Haier Electric Public Company Limited - for

refrigerators and washing machines

2. Sanyo Commercial Solution Company Limited -
for freezers, as well as beverage and wine coolers/
fridges.

3. Thai Sumsung Electronics Company Limited -
for refrigerators, air conditioners, and washing
machines.

4. Sharp Thai Company Limited - for television sets
and microwave ovens.

5. Changhong Electronics Co., Ltd. - for LCD and TV
Sattellite.

6. Lucky Flame Company Limited - for gas stoves.

7. Hitachi Company Limited - for water pumps and
hot water heaters.

8. ADT Online (Thailand) Co., Ltd. - for Airtime
Vending Machines.

Apart from these products under the SINGER
trademark, the Company also cooperates with both Muang
Thai Life Insurance and Muang Thai Insurance in expanding
the life insurance and non-life insurance markets into more of

the Company’s existing customer base.

Marketing Policy and Competitive Strategy

The Company uses direct selling as the main distribution
channel dealing in both cash and hire purchase under very
strict control and monitoring to ensure minimum bad debts.
The company’s products are as reliable and trustworthy as
products from other conventional manufacturers. The retail
price tags are also in the same levels with products from other
manufacturers. However, the Company’s target customers are
those in the provinces and rural areas, who are buying from
SINGER through the 2 following channels:

1. Singer Direct - a direct selling network.

2. Wholesale System - This is the sales via authorized
dealers as well as the export channel especially
through neighboring countries such as Laos People’s
Democratic Republic and Cambodia as well as
group sales, and through the internet channels
with emphasis on the sewing machines and its
accessories, as well as small home appliances.

The strategy used for the main products under the

electrical home appliance category such as refrigerators and

television sets, whose ownership ratio is high and growth is very
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Business Operation of the Company

small, focuses on the trade-in and replacement sale campaign
- regardless of brands, in order to maximize replacement
penetration, which trade -in campaign will also be used for
other products well as such as washing machines, coolers,
freezers and gas stoves. In addition, to this strategic focus
on the ‘trade-ins sales campaign, further introduction of other
new products (such as, satellite dish and personal computers)
to meet the needs of customers as well as to improve their
quality of life will help expand Singer’s market positioning as

well as will add to the reality of the slogan “Happiness in all

things becomes a reality with SINGER”.

Distribution Channel Strategies

95% of the Company’s gross sales are generated through
the direct selling channel and over 90 percent of the Company’s
gross sales are from hire purchase customers. The Company
distributes products through its branches and at present, there
are more than 180 branches nationwide and around 2,000 sales
agents under the current operation. The sales personnel have
undergone necessary training to understand the products and
they are the pivotal force behind the Company’s expansion.

As for the quality control of hire purchase accounts,
the Company conducts both pre- and post-sales checks
through Credit Control Office at 10 locations. These centers
are inspecting and approving credit to customers based on the
information in hand and at the National Credit Bureau. Account
checker will handle the after-sales inspection by looking into
sales transparency and visiting customers at their homes.
At present, there are over 100 account checkers operating
nationwide whose actions are also monitored closely by the

headquarters.

Information Technology Systems Development

The Company has selected IFS Application as an
Enterprise Resource Planning tool to manage its core business
functions, with many modules in the IFS Application system
being customized for Singer Thailand such as, Accounting and
Finance Management, Hire Purchase, Inventory Management
& Logistics, Service Center Management, and Business
Performance Improvement. The Company is also committed
to develop a completely interlinked information systems,
including the key performance indicators assessment and
measuring systems in order to facilitate the Company to growth
its business faster and more efficiently as well as on a more
sustainable basis.

The hire purchase system, which is the main
administrative system for SINGER branches nationwide, has
been completely installed and is operating in all branches.
Moreover, the Company is in the process of implementing its
new “Back Office” system which is located at the Company’s
head office - consisting of the purchasing and inventory
management modules which was completed and installed in
2011,
initiated in 2010 and should be completely installed by mid-

while the finance and accounting modules that was

2012 - will enable the Company to have a solid database, with
which it can use to more effectively and efficiently manage
and operate its business and be able to meet any new business
management systems requirements by the company in a more

comprehensive way.
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Related Transactions

Details of transactions with related parties of any

significance (or ‘related transactions’) are shown in Item 6 of

the Notes to the Singer Thailand pcl.’s Financial Statements
Y 2011, so that Singer Thailand pcl. (Singer Thailand or the

Company) can more effectively and clearly evaluate the outputs

of these transactions. A summary of these related transactions,

undertaken during 2010 and 2011 or before, is shown below.

1.

Singer Thailand pcl. is committed under the
terms and conditions of the Trademark License
Agreement executed with Singer Co. BV, whereby
Singer Thailand is required to pay 0.1% of net
sales value for the use of the SINGER brand
name and trademark. Additionally, through the
Offshore Services Agreement, Singer Thailand is
alsorequired to pay 1% of net sales value as offshore
services fees, which agreement clearly defines the
scope of services that the Singer Co. BV is required
to give to Singer Thailand with regard to business
and marketing information, business and products
planning and other supporting services, all of which
are aimed at enhancing Singer Thailand’s overall
capability and potential in products development
and marketing activities.

On July 23, 2003, Singer Co. BV informed
Singer Thailand that, effective as of July 29, 2003,
these Trademark License and Offshore Services
fees should be paid to Singer Asia Ltd., which
is an overseas affiliate company of the major
Shareholders. Further, Singer Thailand was also
informed that all the terms and conditions of these
2 Agreements still remain in force as before and that
Singer Asia Ltd. would charge all Singer affiliated
companies at approximately the same rate for these
services and for use of the trademark.

On February 4, 2009, Singer Thailand was
informed by senior executives of Singer Asia Ltd.
that the above services fees would be charged to
companies that are non-affiliated Singer companies
at the rate of 1.75% to 3.0%; however for Singer
affiliated companies, such as Singer Thailand, they
will still be charged 1.0% or a slightly more,

whereby this charge would include any expenses

relating to the travel and accommodations of senior
Singer Asia Ltd. executives coming to Thailand
to give advice and guidance on how to improve
the business and operations efficiency of the local

company.

. Singer Thailand has paid out, on behalf of Singer

AsiaLtd, local expenses relating to visits to Thailand
of their senior executives to give advice on business
and operations issues, together with other direct
costs (such as for documents delivery, consulting
fees, travel and accommodation costs); whereby
repayment of these expenses are made to Singer
Thailand on a quarterly basis and Singer Thailand
charges monthly interest, at applicable current
market rates, on any outstanding receivables on the

part of Singer Asia Ltd.

. Singer (Broker) Co. Ltd. undertakes, as an authorized

agent, direct sales of life insurance related products,
of which both sales revenues and net profit for 2011
have declined by 46.2% and 60.0% respectively
compared to those achieved in 2010. This is due
to the intense competitive life insurance business
environment and the various strict regulations of
the Insurance Department, Ministry of Commerce.
Therefore, the sales representatives are not motivated
to sell or service customers relating to the life
insurance related products; and it has also resulted
in the Company in not being able to have sufficient
number of sales representatives who are qualified
and well-experienced to sell such products.
However, the Company still believes that in
selling these life insurance products, the Company
is able to offer its customers financial security and
coverage for both the individual customers and their
family members. Therefore, the Company, together
with the Muang Thai Life Insurance company, have
defined marketing and sales plans, undertaken to
train those qualified sales representatives interested
in selling life insurance products, so that they can

give accurate and useful information to prospects.
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Related Transactions

Also other life insurance products that are more
appropriate to the needs of Singer Thailand’s
customers’ have been developed jointly. Further,
for the sake of greater operational efficiency and
flexibility, these sales representatives have been
transferred to report directly, as other life insurance
products agents, to Muang Thai Life Insurance

company.

4. Singer industries (Thailand) Co. Ltd. has ceased
its appliances manufacturing operations as of
mid-2002, with all fixed assets being sold off to
the Company or external third parties in 2004.
Currently, Singer Industries (Thailand) Co. Ltd.
is producing drinking water, distributing it to its
main client Singer Thailand and thus generating
some revenues. However, it has limited production
capacity and is not able to sufficiently cover its
operations costs, and thus no profit has been
achieved by the company.

Another source of revenue generating activity
of Singer Industries (Thailand) Co. Ltd. is to make
loans of operating funds to Singer Thailand, charging
interest at the applicable current market rates. In
March 2011, Singer Thailand has made repayments
on these loans.

The Financial Statement of Singer Industries
(Thailand) Co. Ltd., for the period ending as at
December 31, 2011, shows that the company has
a Net Loss of Baht 0.5 million together with total
assets of Baht 5.2 million (comprising of Baht 3.8
million in cash, trade receivables, and debts owed
by Singer Thailand totaling Baht 1.3 million).

Given the continuing loss making drinking
water operations of Singer Industries (Thailand) Co.
Ltd., in accordance with its objectives of improving
its operations, as at December 2011 its Management
decided that it should ceased the drinking water
production operations and order these products from

a third party on an outsourced basis instead.

The overall opinion of the Executive Management
Committee of Singer Thailand regarding the above ‘related
transactions’ between the Company and its Subsidiaries and/or
with other related parties, that are described within the Notes
to the FY/2011 Financial Statements of the Company, is that
they are considered to be reasonable and fair for all Parties
concerned as well as appropriate, resulting in various benefits

for Singer Thailand.

Further, in the interest of good governance, the Company
has no policy to undertake any transactions that will or may
result in a conflict of interests situation, with the exception
where the Company will derive the greatest benefit and where
they are deemed to be reasonable and fair; whereby such
transactions, on the advice of its Audit Committee, must be
considered and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors
and/or the Shareholders (as applicable). However, the Company
still has a policy to allow the borrowing and/or lending of funds
between the Company and its Subsidiaries, with interest being
charged at the applicable current market rates, on an as needed

basis and for the use in the operations of the business only.
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mMsavnuluusuneios
Investment in Subsidiary Companies

" 2, dadou
Bona:nog nu msaonu Usinnfioms
Company Name and Address Capital Percentage of | Business
Investment

u5tm Fanes (lusawnad) afa nuvanziiou 200,000 110 99.70% Wentn
@un 72 01Ms nan nsauan $u 17 Registered Capital 200,000 Baht szfiudia
AUUDTYNTI UGS Viuenaley 2,000 ¥iu Life Insurance
LUALNSA N 10500 Ordinary Shares 2,000 Shares Broker
Tnsfiwn 0-2352-4777 Tnaens 0-2352-4799 NUTITTUA? 200,000 1%
Singer (Broker) Limited Paid-up Capital 200,000 Baht

No. 72 CAT Telecom Tower, 17th Floor,
Charoen Krung Road,

Bangrak, Bangkok 10500

Tel. 0-2352 -4777 Fax. 0-2352-4799

v3Hn gadmnssudanes (Jszmealne) e nuvanziiou 5,000,000 11 99.88% Handum

8 mg:‘ﬁ' 4 a.dwlan-@n g, 119unla 9. @n Registered Capital 5,000,000 Baht Manufacturing
NITUASAIRYSY 13110 Viuenalay 5,000 ¥u

Tnséwn 0-3520-1702 Ordinary Shares 5,000 Shares

Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited nu*ﬁﬁ ATk 5,000,000 vn

8 Moo 4, Samkok-Sena Road, Paid-up Capital 5,000,000 Baht

Tambol Bangnomkho, Amphur Sena,
Phra Nakhon sri Ayutthaya
Tel. 0-3520-1702

SINGER




Tasoasr0s7eld

Revenues’ Structure

Tnsoasoseld (souconidasu) voousund cnuusinnwaantuinmeluus:ing ia:oinmsavoon  liaiuo
mudoucundAmaas doceld *

The Company revenues structure (including Interest received from installment sales - by product line for do-
mestic and export sales and by geographical areas as follows* :

(wuuin / Baht - Thousand)

1.s18ld DInMstruhameiudsinAlenmuwaaituz

DOMESTIC SALES - BY PRODUCT

LA389FAAT / Washing Machine 466,797 20 411,421 21
§18u / Refrigerator 295,730 12 317,070 15
qus / Freezer 406,761 17 333,921 16
Tnsviesl / Television 230,783 10 143,748 7
Fasduin / Sewing Machine 82,444 4 82,858 4
\3ea1l3ueIme / Air Conditioner 314,926 13 459,795 2
dianiiulnsdniidediessularl / ATVM 481,963 20 200,935 10
sadnsenusud / Motorcycle - - 6,514 0.3
gaanglannnanfaaingn q 2,279,404 96 1,986,262 95.3
Sub-total Main Products Sales

goaneldnnnandamioy ninmssmhemeludszme 103,081 4 91,225 4.7

Domestic Sales of other products

2 goasngld DinMsoruheluchous:ne
Export Sales

ganINNgla way aantlieFus Naau 2,382,422 100 2,077,487 100

Grand Total - Sales & Interest received

Fanmaiiu (am) veayammMsTIvig 2554/2011 2553/2010
Sales Growth
14.68% 14.23%

v
vngwig :  UsEnduiiugsivneuazsimneduiludinaumegsiinder wasdifiugsisludnumagiimaniifes deluszindlny daiudallad
matauedeyamamsuisiuunmudinny

Note : The Company trades in a single business unit and within in a single geographical area i.e., Thailand; thus no market segment related

financial information is presented.
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Financial Status and Operating Results

Financial Status and Operating Results

(for the nancial period January 1 -December 31, 2011)

Prot & Loss Statement
Sales Revenues

In 2011 total revenues from the sales of products of the
Company increased to baht 1,867.0 million from Baht 1,630
million in the previous year, an increase of 14.6% year on year
(YoY), primarily due to the increase in sales of mobile phone
airtime vending machines, TVs, freezers, washing machines,
and other products which grew by Baht 415 million, while
sales of air conditioners and refrigerators declined by Baht
177 million, resulting from the Company’s refocus in selling
products that generates income for its customers and small
retailer shops (or ‘show huay’ located upcountry under its “3 M
(or money making machines) strategy”’. Because the climate was
not that hot during 2010 due to the ongoing ‘climate change’
phenomenon, there was a decline in sales of air conditioners;
and additionally in late 2011 there was an extensive flood
crisis that caused devastating damages to property and lives
of many communities located in the Northern and Central
provinces as well as the outer parts of Bangkok. However,
because the business model of the Company is more dependent
upon proactive ‘canvassing’ activities by sales representatives
going out from the many branch outlets spread throughout the
country, the operations of the Company was hardly affected
as can be seen in the financial performance results for 2011.

Interests received from installment sales

Interests received from installment sales increased
by Baht 67 million from the previous year, as a result of the
considerable growth in both the value and the number of total
hire purchase accounts during the year - despite a portion of
the existing hire purchase accounts have been fully paid up
and closed. The total number of hire purchase accounts as at
the end of December 2011 was 143, 099 compared to 140,730
as at the end of 2010.

Estimated actuarial gains from Employees Benets
Plan

Subsequent to the appraisal by Towers Watson
(Thailand) Co. Ltd of the amount of provisions made for the
liability relating to the benefits plans for new employees that
was based on the insurance actuarial estimate methods in order
that the Company can make sufficient provisions for the 2010
financial year, the Company then focused on implementing
more effective management of its sales force through training

and through close monitoring of the sales representatives’
performance. In cases where a sales representative does not
achieve any sales for three consecutive months, an interviewed
will take to assess why there has been no sales; and if that person
is found to be unsuitable, then he/she will be reassigned as a
‘part-time sales representatives’ instead. In this manner, the
Company is able to more effectively control the size and growth
of its sales force, which may necessitate making additional
provisions relating to the liability for the employees benefits
plan, since part time employees do not have the same benefits
entitlement as full time or permanent employees.

Therefore, for 2011, there was not any significant
addition or reduction in the total number of employees of the
Company, and thus there was no need to make any additional
provisions for the liability relating to the employees benefits plan.

Other income

Other income declined by Baht 3.8 million due to the
closure of some branch outlets after an evaluation of those
outlets that were underperforming and taking into consideration
the overall objectives and operations of the Company.

Costs of Sales

Costs of sales increased by 16.1% YoY (compared to
the 14.6% YoY growth in FY/2011 sales) because of resultant
decrease in overall products gross margins due to the change in
the sales mix that saw a reduction in the goods having a high gross
margin (ie: sewing machines, washing machines, and refrigerators)
and an increase in those commercial goods with a lower gross
margin (ie: mobile phones air time vending machines. However,
although these products have a relatively lower gross margin, but
their overall sales value is much greater and thus in the end the
Company achieved higher gross profits for the year. Furthermore,
there is a far lower inherent risk of overdue payments or bad
debts for these commercial products, which are purchased for
the purpose of generating revenues for our customers, whereby
the Company is able to also have more effective control over
the collection of payments through being able to terminate the
mobile signal in the case of any serious payment delinquencies.
Selling and Administrative Expenses

Overall Selling and Administrative Expenses for 2011
equaled to 3.7% of total revenues (excluding the estimated
actuarial gains from Employees Benefits Plan), resulting from
the overall increase in sales while, due to effective costs
management, there has not been any significant increases in
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Financial Status and Operating Results

the total Selling and Administrative Expenses - despite the
fact the bad debts write offs and provisions for bad debts
for 2011 are higher than in 2010, although subsequent to the
development and implementation of more stringent pre-sales
credit approval procedures together with the closer monitoring
of hire purchase accounts payments, the overall quality of hire
purchase accounts and installments payments will be much
improved and more normalized, and bad debts for 2011 will
be lower than previous years. Additionally, this overall credit

Net Prot (Loss)

sales activities improvement will be supported by the ‘zero
tolerance policy’ regarding any corrupt credit sales practices.

Further, due to continuing effective management of
overheads and fixed costs, these have decreased in terms of
their percentage to total revenues.

Finance costs
Total finance costs increased by Baht 2.2 million, due

to overall increases in interest rates.

For FY/2011 the Company had a total Net Profit, from normal operations, of Baht 142.5 million, compared to that for
FY/2010 of Baht 89.4 million, whereby a detailed analysis of the sources of this YoY Baht 53.1 million increase in Net Profit

is shown below :
Items

Increased sales of products

Interest received from installments sales
Decrease in other income

Increase in costs of sales

Increase in variable expenses

Increase in semi - variable expenses
Decrease in fixed costs

Increase in finance costs

No gains from the actuarial estimates of employees benefits plan

Decrease ion income tax
Total net increase in net profit for fy/2011

Financial Status

Amount
(Million Baht)
237.6
66.7
(3.8)
(150.6)
(15.9)
(56.7)
11.3
2.2)
(77.0)
43.7
53.1

Total assets of the company as at the end of 2011 increased by Baht 147 million as follows :

- Increased net installments and other receivables
- Increased inventories

- Decreased cash or equivalent

- Decreased plants & equipments

- Increased deferred tax assets

- Increased other current assets

- Decreased prepaid expenses

- Decreased intangible assets

Net Installments and other Accounts Receivables

This increased by Baht 150 million, resulting from
increased hire purchase sales of products with high ticket values
(eg: mobile phone air time vending machines, freezers, TVs,
washing machines, air conditioners, refrigerators and sewing
machines). As at the end of 2011, there was a total of 143, 099
installment accounts compared to 140,730 at the end of 2010 -
an increase of 2,369 accounts, despite there having been some

(Million Baht)
150

27

(48)

2

16

12

2

(6)

fully paid up and closed accounts, as well as some discounts and
repossessed accounts.

Inventories

Total value of inventories increased by Baht 27 million,
whereby as at end December 2011 the amount of provisions
for inventory losses total Baht 13 million compared to Baht 20
million as at the end of 2010 - due to the preparation of new air
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Financial Status and Operating Results

time vending machine products being prepared for distribution
to the branches to facilitate speedier sales.

Deferred Tax Asset

Property, Plant and Equipment
The net total value decreased by Baht 2 million as a
result of normal depreciation and amortization.

This increased by Baht 16 million, as a result of recognition of the a portion of loss carry forward totaling Baht 263

million, which the Company expects to utilize its loss carried forward tax benefits, which is reflected in the Financial Statements;

thus total deferred tax assets increased by Baht 55 million as shown below.

Year losses Year tax benets Net tax losses

Utilization tax losses

Rate of corporate

= L e in future income tax Deferred tax el value
incurred ending (Baht million) (Baht million) applicable (%) (Baht million)

2006 2011

2007 2012 804 81 23% 19

2008 2013 337 86 20% 17

2009 2014 124 87 20% 17

2010 2015 10 10 20% 2

Tigsnll (it bl o) 1,275 264 55

At the same time, during the last quarter of 2011
restatements of both deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities, as at the December 31, 2011, have been made,
subsequent to the Government’s announcement in the Royal
Gazette relating to the Royal Decree relating to the reduction
and exemption of corporate income taxes (No 530/2011)
following the Cabinet resolution on October 11, 2011, which
authorized the reduction of corporate income tax for a period of
3 years (2012 — 2014) as follows: for the 2012 financial year
starting January 1, 2012 corporate income tax will be applied at
23% (instead of 30%) of total Net Profit for the year; and for
the 2013 and 2014 financial year starting January1, 2013 and
2014 respectively, corporate income tax will be applied at 20%
(instead of 30%) of total Net Profit for the year.

Details of these restatements of the deferred tax assets
and liabilities of the Company are as follows:

Million Baht
Deferred tax assets - decrease 44)
Deferred tax liabilities - decrease (18)
Premium on assets values - increase 18
Corporate income tax - increase 44

Additionally, there is another restatement item resulting
from the increase in the difference in the provision for expenses
that has an effect on the deferred tax asset value that occurred
during 2011 amounting to Baht 5 million.

Liabilities
Total liabilities as at the end of 2011 increased by Baht
14 million, resulting from the increase in trade payables and

other current liabilities (relating to increased expenses and
commitments regarding employees benefit plans). While there
was a decrease in the amount of total outstanding debts owed to
financial institutions resulting from to a repayment of Baht 87
million in accordance with the debt restructuring plan agreed
with these creditors.

Shareholders Equity

Total Shareholders Equity increased by Baht 133
million, resulting from the Net Profit from operations that was
achieved during 2011 - which increased to a total of Baht 142
million, together with other comprehensive income of Baht
18 million due to changes in the corporate tax structure which
impacted the premium in assets values which is a component
of the Shareholders equity.

At the same time, a dividend payment was made
during 2011 totaling Baht 27 million in regard to the positive
performance in 2010.

Cash Flows
For the year ending December 31, 2011 the Company
achieved these consolidated Net Cash Flows :
- From operating activities Baht 134 million (compared
to Baht 29 million in 2010)
- Usedininvesting activities Baht 9 million (compared
to Baht 15 million in 2010)
- Used in financing activities Baht 173 million
(compared to Baht 108 million in 2010
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Auditor’'s Remuneration

1. AhcouinuoINMSaouUNJB (Audit Fee)
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1. Audit Fees

The Company and its Subsidiaries made the following

Audit Fee’s payment(s) to :

The Company’s auditor in the previous fiscal year
totaling Baht (none)

The Audit Company associated with the Auditor,
person, or business operations related to the Auditor
or his respective company during the previous fiscal
year totaling Baht 1,970,000.

2. Non-Audit Fees

The Company and its Subsidiaries also made payments

for other related services payments including (a) for auditing

fees on “annual Financial Statements of SINGER Employees

Provident Fund” totaling Baht 55,000; and (b) for services

fees in reviewing the annual Financial Statements of Singer
(Thailand) of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited, to be
in accordance to the IFRS Standards

The Company’s auditor in the previous fiscal year
totaling Baht (none); and will have to make a future
payment for agreed and unfinished services in the
previous fiscal year totaling Baht (none).

The Audit Company associated with the Auditor,
person, or business operation which relates to the
auditor and to the KPMG Poomchai Audit Co. Ltd
which is associated with the Auditor, in the previous
fiscal year totaling Baht (none); and will have to
make a future payment for agreed and unfinished
services in the previous fiscal year ending totaling
Baht (none).

Other companies related to KPMG Phoomchai Audit
Co. Ltd. in the previous fiscal year ending totaling
Baht (none); and will have to make a future payment

related to agreed and unfinished services in the

previous fiscal year ending totaling Baht (none).
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-Shareholding Structure and Management

swBowhoRuselnnd U 3UR 15 NuMWUS 2555
Register of Shareholders as at February 15, 2012

adun Bo - ana DIUOURU % YOOTLOURUNDHLA
NO. Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares |

1 SINGER (THAILAND) B.V. 116,370,000 43.100
wengutiuns 1na 13,500,000 5.000
MR. KITSANAN GAEWALEE

3 smmsnanilng e wmew) 13,489,000 4.996
KASIKORNBANK PCL.

4 MNaNY3 21Uy 6,850,000 2.537
MRS. MAYUREE WONGKAEWCHAROEN

5 wsinlnediuidens aifa 5,462,370 2.023
THAI NVDR COMPANY LIMITED

6 3t iedlnelszAudia e 5,400,000 2.000
MUANG THAI LIFE ASSURANCE CO., LTD.

7 wmond w@@iienn 5,000,000 1.852
MRS. WARANEE SERIVIWATTANA

8 w. duwedd (g iA) 9. 4,310,900 1.597
SOMERS (U.K.) LIMITED

9 ¥ sInnaumd 4,138,400 1.533
MRS. WATCHREE TAMMAPIMON

10 wweym eNmdna 4,018,500 1.488
MR. ANUTCHA AVEELASTSAKUL

11 weeusiani dsngans 3,000,000 1111
MR. AMORNWATN THEERAKRITAPORN

12 wwengnd usnadily 2,825,000 1.046
MR. SUPAROEK MONGKOLSAMAI

13 wenisdag g3 2,500,000 0.926
MR. THAWEECHAT CHURANGKULL

14 newudanyae awdin wdndidaiud 2,474,500 0.916
PRIMAVEST SPECIFIC FLEXIBLE FUND

15 NIPIA WULANNGITI 2,250,000 0.833
MR. CHAVALIT POONPERMSUWANN

16 wolszead vz 2,110,000 0.781
MR. .PRAYONG VANICHSUWANN

17 watium jeunamas 1,943,400 0.720
MRS. NANTHA RUNGNOPPAKHUNSRI

18 wedvgns eyiawd 1,777,700 0.658
MR. CHAIYUT ANUWATMETHEE

19 weiisian! sssnduad 1,636,800 0.606
MR. PEERAWATN TAMMAPIMON

20 e g 1,550,000 0.574
MR. NARONG KAMPOO

21 weiay wani 1,539,200 0.570
MR. SALESH PUSWANI

22 meansde nlseiansdann 1,500,000 0.556
MR. SITHICHATI PAIROINTHAWORNWATANA

23 wwdumny Avindiua 1,400,000 0.519
MR. SOMCHAI PITAKKAMPOL

24 weaiins doananss 1,400,000 0.519
MR. NAPATR PANJAKUNATORN

25 wizimanAInszlsiunsumgiinaeqasiay 1,383,770 0.513
H.M. KING BHUMIBOL ADULYADEJ

26 wwania ANSWIYYEA 1,363,300 0.505

MR. MANIT SITHIPORNBOONLERTS

k74 ¥V ¥ YA Y 4' < o 4 . . ! @ YA ¥ o
vngwa :  faaquanansadumdeyaddeiuiiiuifiuldann www.singerthai.co.th Aeumstszyueniiadneru dszdil

Remark :  Shareholders are able to check updated and current shareholding structure at www.singerthai.co.th before the Annual General
Shareholders’ Meeting (AGM) takes place.
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Shareholding Structure and Management

Organization : The structure of the Company’s
organization consists of the Board of Directors, the Audit
Committee, the Nominating and Remuneration Committee,

and the Management team.

Scope of Authority and Responsibility of the Board
of Directors

All Directors of the Company are required to perform
their duties in accordance with the laws as well as the objectives
and Articles of Association of the Company and the Resolutions
of the Shareholders Meetings with honesty and integrity, and to
take care to promote the interests and benefits of the Company.

Further, all Members of the Board of Directors must
consistently be fully accountable to the Shareholders, protect the
interests of the Shareholders, as well as fully disclose all relevant
information to the Shareholders accurately and with transparency.

The operations of the Company must be undertaken in
accordance with the directions and guidelines of the majority
Shareholder, Singer (Thailand) BV, under the oversight of the
Board of Directors, which is also responsible for ensuring that
all policies are fully complied to. The current and applicable
Company’s Affidavit will indicate the names of those Directors
who are fully authorized and empowered to sign on behalf of
the Company and to undertake activities that will commit and
legally bind the Company - including all litigations and legal
defense proceedings, exercise of any other rights in court,
juristic acts, as well as certifying all corporate and other relevant
documents. The Board is not only empowered to appoint but
also has the right to change the names of those Directors who
are the duly authorized Directors of the Company. To ensure
efficient and effective operations as well as management
functions, the Company’s Board of Directors will delegate the
Management team to manage the Company’s business activities.

Scope of Authority and Responsibilities of the Audit
Committee

At the Company’s Board of Directors meeting No.172
on November 12, 2008, at which the Audit Committee also
attended, it was resolved that the scope of authority and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1. Toreview the Company’s financial reports to ensure
their complete accuracy and adequacy.

2. To ensure the suitability and effectiveness of the
internal controls and internal audit procedures, to
determine the internal audit office’s independence,
and to approve the appointment, rotation and
removal, together with appraising and evaluating
the performance and development of the Chief of
Internal Audit and any other group responsible for

the internal activities.

3. To review and ensure that the Company is in full
compliance with the Securities and Exchange laws,
SET rules and regulations, and any other relevant
applicable laws.

4. To consider, select and propose the Company’s
external auditor(s) and to recommend the appropriate
remuneration for the external auditor(s), as well as
to meet with the external auditor(s) without the
Management team being present at least once a year.

5. To review the accuracy and completeness of any
required information disclosures relating to the
Company undertaking any “related and connected
transactions” or any potential conflict of interest
situations, in order to ensure such transactions are
reasonable and fully beneficial for the Company.

6. To prepare a report on the Committee’s supervision
of the business activities for disclosure in the Annual
Report, which is to be signed by Chairman of the
Audit Committee and will contain all required
information in compliance with the law as well as
the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

7. To perform any other tasks as assigned by the Board
with the approval of the Committee.

Scope of Authority and Responsibilities of the
Nominations and Remuneration Committee

At the Company’s Board of Directors’ meeting No.183
on November 12th, 2010, at which the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee also attended, it was resolved that
the scope of authority and responsibilities of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee are as follows:-

1. To consider and recommend to the Board the
appropriate policies and criteria for the structure,
composition, qualifications and selection of members
of the Board of Directors, and Board Committees as
well as of the senior Management of the Company
and its subsidiaries, including also any appropriate
succession plans.

2. Subject to the various resolutions adopted by
the Board of Directors and/or Shareholders’
approval (as applicable and required), to select and
recommend to the Board of Directors any suitably
qualified candidates for selection and nomination
for appointment of (a)Directors, (b)Members and
Chairpersons of Board Committees, and (c)the
Managing Director and senior Executives (directly
reporting to the Managing Director) of the Company
and its Subsidiaries.
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Shareholding Structure and Management

3. To consider and recommend to the Board of
Directors, subject to Shareholders’ approval (as
applicable and required) the policies, structures
and plans relating to the remuneration, benefits
and incentives for Directors, members of Board
Committees, and senior Executives of the Company
and its Subsidiaries - with the objective of ensuring
that the Company’s overall compensation policies are
consistent with the Company’s culture, objectives,
strategy and controls systems.

4. To recommend to the Board of Directors policies,
criteria and methods for the regular evaluation of the
performance of the members of the Board of Directors,
Board Committees and senior Executives of the
Company and its Subsidiaries, as well as to implement
those approved and to report the results to the Board.

5. To undertake any other tasks entrusted and assigned
by the Board of Directors relating to the above
responsibilities.

Scope of Authority and Responsibilities of the
Managing Director

In the resolution of the Board of Directors meeting, at
which the Audit Committee also attended, the scope of authority
and responsibilities of the Managing Director are stipulated in
that the Managing Director shall have the power to undertake
all activities as authorized by the Board of Directors, subject to
the regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company,
whereby such authorization will not include or be related to those
actions that will enable the Managing Director to approve any
transactions in which the Managing Director and/or any other
person(s) may have a vested or a conflict of interest in regard
to the benefit of the Company or its Subsidiaries and Affiliates.

The scope of authority and responsibilities of the

Managing Director are as follows:

1) To consider and approve the Company to borrow or
request for loans and any credit facilities not exceeding
Baht 300 million per transaction or its equivalent.

2) To manage and undertake any normal business
activities of the Company, as well as to approve any
normal transactions of the Company - such as purchase
of goods, vehicles, materials, tools, equipment,
appliances together with expenses, sales transactions,
hire-purchase transactions, write-offs (subject to the
policy and procedures of the Company), and hiring
of consultants relating to various operational aspects
- with a total value of each transaction to be not more
than Baht 30 million or its equivalent.

3) To manage and undertake the businesses activities of
the Company in accordance with the business policies,
plans and strategies as approved by the board.

4) To authorize or assign other persons (considered
to be appropriate by the Managing Director) to
undertake actions on the behalf of the Managing
Director in connection with any necessary and
reasonable matters (at the discretion of the Managing
Director) subject to the laws and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

5) To summarize the results of the Company’s
operations for submitting to the Board of Directors.

6) To establish the corporate structure and organization
required for effective administration and management
of the Company’s business activities, including the
associated detailed selection process, training,
employment and termination of employment of the
Company’s employees.

7) To undertake any other duties as assigned by the
Board of Directors from time to time.

However, the authority and responsibilities of the
Managing Director, as authorized above, will not include the
ability to directly approve and/or give a power of attorney to
others to approve any transactions in which the Managing
Director or his authorized representative may have a vested
or a conflict of interest (in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company as well as the regulations
prescribed by the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission) relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries and
Affiliates. All such transactions are required to be submitted
to the meeting of Board of Directors and/or of the Shareholders
(as required and applicable) for consideration and approval as
prescribed by the Company’s Articles of Association or relevant
laws and regulations.

Selection and Appointment of Directors and the
Managing Director of the Company

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration
Committee responsible for the selection of suitable and
qualified persons to be considered for appointment as the
Company’s Chairman, Directors, as well as Management and
Executives, within the framework of the scope of authority
and responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, whereby the Company’s Board and SINGER
(THAILAND) B.V. (the major shareholder with shareholdings
of 43.10%) will propose such suitable persons to the Annual
Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting for consideration and approval.

Inregard to the Directors’ term of service, the Chairman
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Shareholding Structure and Management

of the Board will submit for consideration and approval
during every Annual Shareholder’s Meeting that one third of
the Directors are required to resign by rotation. Then, new
Directors will be selected and appointed as per the Shareholders’
resolutions under the following procedures:

1. Each Shareholder will have one vote for each share held.

2. Each Shareholder may exercise up to the total amount
of the votes entitled (as per above) in order to elect
of any one person being proposed for a Directorship,
but may not allocated or divide out the total amount
of votes entitled among several candidates being
considered for any one Directorship.

3. The candidate receiving the highest votes in the
respective order of voting will be selected and
appointed as a Director to complete the total number
of Directors of the Company as agreed. In the event
of two persons having the same highest number of
votes that may result in a situation that the number
of Directors of the Company exceed the agreed total,
then the Chairman will then have the deciding vote to
elect only one person to be appointed as a Director.

Remuneration for the Directors and Management of
the Company for 2011

 Directors’ remuneration : The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering and
proposing Directors’ remuneration in a clear and transparent
manner as well as to be on par with those companies within
the same industry sector - though taking into consideration
the Directors’ remunerations plans of other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange of Thailand for comparison, based
on the information from the “Directors and Management’s
remuneration of listed companies” prepared by the “Corporate
Governance Center” of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
Further, after consideration and approval from the Shareholders’
Meeting, Directors assigned to serve as members of the Audit
Committee will also receive additional remuneration due to the
increased work and responsibilities.

» Management’s remuneration : Remuneration of the
Management team has been determined in accordance with the
policy established by the Company’s majority Shareholder, and
is commensurate with both the Company’s overall business
performance results and the individual’s performance.

In 2010, the Company paid remuneration for Directors and Management are as follows:

* Remuneration for the Board of Directors

Directors names

Position

FY 2011 FY 2010
Baht Baht

Admiral M.L. Usni Pramoj Chairman of the Board 400,000 400,000
Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda Director 400,000 400,000
Mr. Christopher John King Director 370,000 370,000
Mr. Bibit Bijaisoradat Director 370,000 370,000

Total amount 1,540,000 1,540,000

Note: Executive Directors do not receive separate remuneration as a Director.

e Remuneration for Management

FY 2011

| Poon | Foi0
Management Management

23,469,000.- 7

ltem

* Remuneration & Compensation of the Management team

(Salaries, Bonus and Incentives) 5 24.,971,000.-

FY 2011 FY 2010
Management Management

e Other remuneration for Management

« Contribution paid by the Company
to the Provident Fund for members of Management 5

824,760.- 7

888,000.-
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Shareholding Structure and Management

Controlling the use of inside information

[Details are shown in the Report on the Practices on
Good Corporate Governance (shown below) - Item 2 relating
to the Equal Rights for All Shareholders.]

Internal Control

In the Board of Directors meeting No.189 on February
24, 2012, at which the Audit Committee also attended, the
Report of the Audit Committee was considered with questions
being asked by members of the Board, whereby it was concluded
that the Board did not have any difference of opinions in regard
to the contents of this Report of the Audit Committee

Controls and Internal Audit Systems

The Company has set up the internal audit function and
internal controls system so that the operations of the company
are in full compliance with all laws and related regulations
by establishing the Internal Audit Department and Legal
Department, whereby these Departments are responsible for
auditing and reviewing the Company’s operations to be in
accordance with the Company’s objectives and to strictly follow
all applicable laws and related regulations.

The Company also established the Hire Purchase Risks
Management Department to evaluate various risks related to
credit approvals, as well as to implement and manage the
effective high standards of hire purchase sales credit controls.

The Internal Audit Department has also implemented
its risk assessment process to prioritize the level of importance
as well as the required attention and actions to be undertaken
in every Department of the Company, and has also undertaken
continuous follow up and review of the results of these actions.

REPORT ON GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1 Rights of Shareholders

The Company’s Board of Directors had determined
a policy on good corporate governance, in order to enhance
the transparency of the Company’s operations and to achieve
greater confidence on the part of Shareholders, investors and
other Stakeholders. The Board is committed to the principles of
good governance by recognizing the importance of controls and
internal audit systems as well as by ensuring that Management
implements the Company’s established policies efficiently
and for the best interests of the Shareholders within legal
requirements and sound business ethics framework.

The Board of Directors has ensured that all Shareholders
are treated equally in having equal access to relevant, complete,
adequate and accurate information on a timely basis, in order

to effective make investment decisions.

Therefore, with regard to arrangements for Shareholders’
Meetings, the Company’s sends to all Shareholders notices of
meetings, via the Company’s Shareholders’ Registrar at the
Stock Exchange of Thailand, at least 14 days prior to the
meeting date as required by law, together with a complete set
of supporting documents as well as the Board of Directors’
comments on each agenda item to be considered. The Company
also publishes information on the meeting agenda items in
advance through the Company’s website, inviting Shareholders
to propose agenda(s) for consideration at the 2011 Annual
General Shareholder’s Meeting (AGM) in accordance with
the Company’s regulations, and thus allows Shareholders the
opportunity to study agenda and meeting details thoroughly.
Also the proposed meeting venue is carefully chosen for the
sake of maximum convenience for all Shareholders to attend
and exercise their rights. Proxy forms are also provided as part
of notice for the scheduled Shareholders’ Meeting, so that a
Shareholder can authorize another person to attend the Meeting
and vote on his/her behalf if needed. All Shareholders’ Meeting
are called and conducted in accordance with the provisions
established by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Atthe previous 2010 AGM, 5 Directors of the Company
attended, whereby it was not possible to schedule the Meeting
that enabled all Directors to attend - some Directors were absent
due to commitments overseas or the Director representing the
majority Shareholder is domiciled overseas. Nevertheless,
they all received the Meeting’s proposed agenda including
all related and supporting information for their review and
sent in their comments and opinions prior to the meeting
date. Those Directors who always attend the Shareholders’
Meeting include the Chairman of the Board, Chairman of
Audit Committee, the Managing Director, the Controller and
Finance Director, members of the Management team as well as
external Auditors; and they were willing to answer any questions
raised by Shareholders at the Meeting. In all Shareholders’
Meetings, the Chairman of the Meeting allow sufficient time
for the Shareholders to express their views and comments
and/or to ask any questions concerning the agenda item being
considered as well as on any other aspect of the Company’s
business. All discussions, queries and comments made by the
participants at these Shareholders’ Meeting were also recorded
in the Meetings’ minutes.

2. Equal Rights for All Shareholders

The Company has in place a process to ensure that
all Shareholders will receive the same correct and adequate
information on a timely basis relating to the scheduled meeting
date, agenda items for consideration together with details of
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Shareholding Structure and Management

each agenda to enable them to enable effective consideration
and decision making during the Meeting. Therefore, for all
Shareholders meetings, the Company’s sends out notices of the
meeting, as required by law prior to the proposed meeting date
together with supporting documents that include complete and
adequate information, as well publishes the same information
relating to the meeting date and agenda in advanced on the
Company’s website prior to the notices are in fact delivered.
This is to allow the opportunity for Shareholders to thoroughly
study the relevant details. In the event that a Shareholder cannot
attend the Meeting, a proxy can be appointed by the Shareholder
to attend and exercise his/her vote instead, whereby the Company
also proposes Independent Directors to act as authorized
proxies and proxy forms are supplied so that shareholders can
indicate how their vote will be exercised by their proxy. In all
Shareholders’ Meetings, the Company’s Board of Directors
recognizes the equal treatment to shareholders in not proposing
any new agenda item without prior and advance notification
being made to all Shareholders alike. Further, in the process for
the selection and appointment of members of the Company’s
Board of Directors voting is done for each individual nominee.
Measures to prevent any situations involving the conflict

of interests and the abuse of inside information for personal
gains that have been determined by the Company are as follows :
» Possible conflict of interest situations : Transactions

that may lead to a possible conflict of interests are
considered thoroughly by the Board of Directors

and based on the applicable provisions of the Stock

Exchange of Thailand, whereby the Company is

also required to include details of such transactions

in its Annual Report and in Form 56-1 to the Stock

Exchange of Thailand.

» Abuse of inside information :

- Executives of the Company are required to
report any changes in their shareholdings to
the Securities Exchange Commission and the
Stock Exchange of Thailand as per Article 59
of Securities and Exchange Act (B.E. 2535).

- Executives or other employees having access to
inside information are prohibited from disclosing
any such inside corporate information to those
outside the Company or not authorized to know,
as well as torefrain from trading in the Company’s
shares within one month prior to the Company’s
Financial Statements being made public.

3. Stakeholders’ Rights
It is the policy of the Company that all Stakeholders’

rights and interests are adequately protected - whether it is
internal Stakeholders (ie: the Company’s staff and Executives
including its Subsidiaries) or external stakeholders (ie:
customers, business partners, creditors, related Government
agencies and other outside parties), as the Company recognizes
the need for as well as importance of Stakeholders’ support, in
order to strengthen its competitiveness and to maximize profits
in the long term.

Therefore, the Company complies with all relevant laws
as well as rules and regulations in order to effectively protect the
rights of all its Stakeholders. In this regard, the Company was
awarded certificates from the Office of the Consumer Protection
Board (OCPB) simultaneously in 3 categories in both 2003 and
in 2007, namely : for correct product labeling, for product and
service advertising, as well as for its hire purchase contracts
being fair and equitable to consumers. The Company also has a
centralized service to receive all complaints and suggestions : its
‘Call Center” that can be access by telephone at 0-2234-7171.

The Company’s provident fund for Singer Thailand
employees was established and registered since 1990, or about
20 years ago. Permanent employees of Singer Thailand Public
Company Limited and Singer Industries (Thailand) Company
Limited are entitled to become members, and at present there
are 483 members with funds amounting to approximately
Baht 168 million. The Company employs “Kasikorn Asset
Management Co., Ltd. as the fund manager, and “Thailand
Securities Depository Co., Ltd.,” to take care of and keep the
shareholdings of the Fund.

The Company recognizes the great importance of equal
treatment towards all Stakeholders Groups including customers,
business partners, creditors, competitors, Shareholders as well as
employees (with policies and procedures concerning employees
being shown in item 9.6 - personnel in the Form 56-1).

This has also been stipulated as an established policy
in the Manual for the Company’s Management, the Code of
Business Ethics, and the Zero Tolerance Policy Document.
Further, the Company has also joined the ‘Collective Action
Coalition’ which is the private sector’s initiative on anti-
corruption practices, whereby the Company has assessed the
risks and established policies and ethical practices relating
corrupt business practices and anti-corruption. It has also
distributed information internally and has established procedures
for people to submit any information about any suspected
corrupt or fraudulent practices and activities, together with
establishing a Committee (for the prevention and suppression of
internal corrupt practices) which is responsible for investigating
such information and reporting the outcome directly to senior
Management and the Board of Directors, together the proper
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Shareholding Structure and Management

and effective internal controls procedures in order to ensure
full transparency and proper and equitable treatment for all
in such instances. Also a procedure is in place to protect the
informant or ‘whistle blower’.

With regard to the Computer Crimes Act B.E. 2007,
the Company’s policy on this matter is clearly indicated on
every desk tops and other computers of the Company as well
as in the rules and regulations of the company in regard to the
protection of and respect for all intellectual property rights of
others. This policy has also been announced to Management
for their own information and for relaying to all employees,
whereby written acknowledgement of their understanding
that this policy that must be strictly complied to is required -
especially so for sales representatives and field operators. In
the past, the Company has had no dispute concerning business
competitors in this regard.

Further, with regard contributing to the wellbeing of
the social environment in which the Company operates, Singer
Thailand has a policy to continually participate in helping
society as a whole in regard to relief and rehabilitation efforts
after any crisis or disasters, as well as in being fully committed
to get involved in various activities to help develop vocational
work and improve local communities, details of which have
been described more fully in the section of Company Activities.

4 Information disclosure and transparency

The Company has determined that information disclosure
and corporate communications are one of the Company’s key
policies. The Company’s Investor Relations Unit has been set
up to serve as a link between Management and Shareholders,
investors, securities analysts and other related parties with
regard to being a communications channel and source the
disclosure of information, as well as to ascertain that the
Company fully complies with all the provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Act and any other relevant laws.

Furthermore the Company regularly participates in the
Opportunity Day activities in order to provide information
about the operating performance results of the Company for
the FY/2010 for Quarter 2/2011, quarter 3/2011 to securities
analysts, investors and mass media.

In the preceding years, the financial reports and other
information submitted by the Company have been found to be
accurate, complete and timely with full information disclosures
on its activities and performance to all Shareholders, investors,
securities analysts and other interested parties. The Company
publishes the relevant Investors’ Relation information through
the Company’s website at http://www.singerthai.co.th/th/
investor/ , and investors are able to contact the Company’s

Investor Relations Unit by telephone at 0-2352-4777 Ext.
4727 or via e-mail at : chank@singerthai.co.th.

As a result of the Company giving great importance to
the proper and transparent disclosures of information as being
an important part of its business operations has resulted in
Singer Thailand pcl being recognized and awarded the “SET
Awards for 2011 for Best Investor Relations” by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s
Financial Statements and other information as shown in the
Annual Report. Such Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards and
other financial reporting requirements, and also significant
supporting information to the Financial Statements is adequately
provided. A report is made as to quality and accuracy of the
Financial Statements in the “Responsibility of the Company’s
Board of Directors” section as contained in the Annual Report.

At every quarterly Board of Directors meetings an
agenda item concerning related transactions involving any
Directors and Management Executives are required to be
reported to the Board. Further, in this regard, the Board of
Director has also assigned the Audit Committee, consisting
of Independent Directors, with responsibilities on ensuring
the quality of financial reports and internal controls issues.
Comments and the opinion of the Audit Committee are
contained in the “Report of the Audit Committee” which is
part of the Company’s Annual Report. The Board of Directors
also reviews and asses that both internal controls and internal
audit systems of the Company have proven satisfactory, thus
the Consolidated and Company Financial Statements as at
December 31,2011 presented accurate and reliable information.

5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Company’s Directors are obliged to perform their
duties in accordance with all applicable laws, objectives and
Articles of Associations as well as the Resolutions of Shareholders’
Meetings in good faith and with proper care to promote the
Company’s best interests. Directors are also accountable to the
Company’s Shareholders to ensure full disclosure of accurate and
complete information to investors, whereby Directors observe
the Code of Best Practices for Directors of Listed Companies as
defined by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Currently, while the Company’s major shareholder,
Singer (Thailand) B.V., has a major say in the direction of the
Company’s operations, while the Board of Directors supervises
the Management to ensure that the policies and strategies as laid
down by the Company have been put into practice and that the
Management has implemented effective controls and reporting
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Shareholding Structure and Management

systems to effectively monitor the Company’s performance,
with the Board of Directors reviewing the Company’s operating
performance results during Board Meetings.

The Board of Directors is made up of eight persons: two
directors representing the majority shareholder, two Executive
Directors, and four Independent Directors; therefore the number
of Independent Director represented 50% of the total Board
of Directors, in accordance to the regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, and thus establishes a fair balance in
the Board’s composition. At present, signatures of any two of
the following three authorized Directors (namely Mr. Gavin
John Walker, Khun Boonyong Tansakul and Khun Paitoon
Sukhanaphorn) together with the Company seal will commit
and legally bind the Company.

The Board Chairman is an Independent Director (by
definition of the Stock Exchange of Thailand) and is not related

to any Management members. Also, the Chairman is not the
same person as the Managing Director of the Company. While
the Board is responsible for formulating the Company’s policies
and charting a direction, it is the Management who engages in
the day-to-day operations of the Company.

Board Meetings are normally held every quarter to
review the Company’s business and results; but however,
an extraordinary Board Meeting can be called if necessary.
Before each Board Meeting, all Directors are sent a written
notice together with the proposed agenda and other relevant
supporting documents. All Directors are free to express their
opinions and comments during the meeting.

During 2011, the Board had 4 meetings together with
1 Shareholders” Meeting, whereby the attendance of members
of the Board of Directors in these meetings are shown below :

Meetings Attendance Record of members of the Board of Directors

Meetings attendance (no. of times/year) ‘

Names of Directors Term of Directorship Board of Audit Nomination
Directors Committee | Remuneration
meetings meetings meetings

1. Admiral M.L.Usni Pramoj *** Apr 12 - Aprl5 (a) 1 4/5 = =
2. Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda ** *%*% Apr 10 - Apr 13 1 4/5 4/4 4/4
3. Mr. Christopher John King Apr 10 - Apr 13 1 5/5 4/4 4/4
4. Mr. Tobias Josef Brown * Apr 11 - Apr 14 = -/5 = =
5. Mr. Bibit Bijaisoradat Apr 11 - Apr 14 1 4/5 4/4 =
6. Mr. Gavin John Walker Apr 11 - Apr 14 = 3/5 = 2/4
7. Mr. Boonyong Tansakul Apr 12 - Apr 15 (a) 1 5/5 = =
8. Mr. Paitoon Sukhanaphorn Apr 12 - Apr 15 (a) 1 5/5 = =
o Director is the representative of the majority Shareholder, and is a resident overseas

*#k  Member of the Audit Committee and has adequate knowledge and experience to audit financial reports

sksksk

Director was absent due to being ill and hospitalized

(a)  Directors who are due to retire by rotation, and who are to be nominated for re-election as a Director for another
term (Apr 12 - Apr 15) at the AGM scheduled for April 30, 2012.

Chandler & Thong-Ek Law Offices Ltd., the Company’s
legal advisor, records the minutes of the all discussions and
comments raised, these minutes and kept at the Company for
reference by Directors, or other related parties.

The Company’s Board of Directors has appointed Khun
Chanthornjira Kongtongsmut to be the Company Secretary, who
has the proper qualification and experience in being responsible
for monitoring that the Company fully complies to all the laws

and the regulations of Company as well as to the principles
of good corporate governance in regard to the management
and operations of the Company. The Company Secretary has
also received formal training through the Corporate Secretary
Development Program organized by Thai Listed Companies
Association with the support of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
and the Thai Company Secretary Association
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Shareholding Structure and Management

Board Committees

Sub-committees of the Board have been established to
assist the Board in monitoring and supervising various affairs
of the Company as follows:

» Audit Committee: To assist the Board of Directors,
the Audit Committee comprises of 3 members, all of whom
are Independent Directors. The Chairman must have the
standards of auditing and financial management qualifications
as stipulated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, together with
adequate knowledge and experience to effectively audit the
financial reports. The Audit Committee held a total of 4 regular
meetings in 2011, and produced and submitted reports to the
Board of Directors according to its charter of responsibilities.

» Nomination and Remuneration Committee: At the
Board of Directors’ Meeting No.182 on August 11,2010, it was
resolved that the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee should be merged into one committee - to be called
the Nomination and the Remuneration Committee, since these
two Committees have interrelated responsibilities; and thus
overlapping operations have been reduced for the sake of better
efficiency and corresponds to the good corporate governance
practices of listed companies. The Chairman of the Nomination
and the Remuneration Committee is an Independent Director,
and thus the Committee comprises 2 Independent Directors and
1 non-executive member. In 2011, there were 4 meetings with
reports submitted to the Board of Directors. The charter of this
Committee is stated in detail above in the “Scope of Authority
and Responsibilities of the Nomination and the Remuneration
Committee”.

Qualifications of Independent Directors

The Company has determined that the minimum
qualifications of an Independent Directors must be equivalent
to the minimum specifications stipulated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission or Stock Exchange of Thailand,
namely : holding no more than 1% of the voting shares of
the Company; not being a member of the management of the
Company; independent of the majority Shareholder of the
Company, and not being involved in any transactions with the
Company that could cause either his/her interest as well as that
of the Company to be diminished.

The Company’s criteria for Independent Directors are
as follows:

1. Holding not more than 1% of the number of all voting
shares in the Company, including those shares held by any
related individuals together with shares in the parent company,

Subsidiaries, and Affiliates or any related juristic entities.

However, in the case of a member of the Audit Committee,
such shareholding is limited only to 0.5%.

2. Taking no part in the normal and day to day
management of the Company, and not being an employee,
staff, advisor earning a regular salary, or a person who has
a controlling power over the Company, its parent company,
Subsidiary, Affiliate or any juristic entity that may be in a
conflict of interest situation - for at least 2 years prior to being
the appointment an Independent Director.

3. Not being related by blood or legally - such as a
parent, spouse, sibling, daughter or son, including the spouse
of his or her child - to an Executive of the Company, of the
majority shareholder, a person with controlling power over the
Company, or a person nominated as Executive, or someone
with controlling power over the Company or its Subsidiary.

4. Having no business relationships with the Company
or juristic entity or person considered by the Securities and
Exchange Commission as a ‘related or connected party’, which
covers professional services, trade relationships and all kinds of
business engagements, with the exception of it being necessary
and appropriate but it must not occur on regular basis; whereby
in such an instance specific approval, with a unanimous vote, is
needed from the Board of Directors with a unanimous decision.

5. Not being a Director appointed to represent the
Company’s Director, majority Shareholder or Shareholder,
who is connected to the Company’s majority Shareholder,
unless appointed by the Company’s Board of Directors to
make decisions pertaining to the Company, parent company,
subsidiary, affiliate or juristic entity at the same level, whereby
such decision making is to be in the form of a collective
committee decision.

6. Not being a Director appointed by the Company’s Board
of Directors to make decisions for a company, parent company,
subsidiary, affiliate or juristic entity that may be in conflict.

7. Not being a Director in the parent Company,
Subsidiary and Affiliate.

8. Being able to perform duties and express opinions
and/or to report the results in performing the duties assigned
by the Board of Directors fully independent and freely, without
being under any influence of any Company Executives or
major Shareholder or any related persons or relative of such

individuals.
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Audit Committee’s Report

The Audit Committee of Singer Thailand Plc. is currently composed of three Independent Directors, whose qualifications in accordance
with the standard requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand together with a Secretary to the Committee, as follows:

1. Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda Chairman

2. Mr. Christopher John king Member

3. Mr. Bibit Bijaisoradat Member

4. Mr. Vorawoot Anankittipong Secretary to the Committee (January - October 2011)

The Audit Committee has performed its duties and responsibilities in accordance with the Charter of the Audit Committee and
those responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors relating to overseeing the Company’s financial transactions as well as the
Consolidated Financial Statements that comply to appropriate standard business accounting practices and reviewing that the Financial
Reports are adequate and well presented in accordance with the general accepted accounting standards.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for making recommendations in reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s Internal
Controls procedures and Internal Audit functions that are designed to ensure full compliance with applicable laws on securities and all
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as to assure sufficient and adequate clarification are contained in the disclosed
information. The Committee is also responsible for giving its opinion in regards to the proposed selection and appointment of the Company’s
Auditor as well as for reviewing and advising the Company in regards to any proposed Connected Business Transaction with Related
parties through submitting to the Board of Directors meetings on quarterly basis, together with any other responsibilities as assigned by
the Board, whereby the Committee is able to work independently and without any restricted access to any information.

The Audit Committee also focuses on and supports the Company’s good Corporate Governance policies and practices relating to
accountability, transparency, fairness, integrity and a system of checks and balances, which will serve the best and full interests of not
only Shareholders but also Employees and other Stakeholders.

During the financial year 2011, the Audit Committee held four meetings together with the Internal Auditor, External Auditors from
KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited, the Management team and the Board of Directors and including meeting with the External Auditors
without the attendance of the management team, so as to ensure that the Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements have been prepared
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, as well as that any significant transactions are properly recorded, adequately disclosed
and presented in compliance with appropriate accounting principles. The Audit Committee reported all of the Committee meetings to
the Board, the main points of which are summarized below:

e Reviewed Quarterly 2011 and Year-End Financial Reports, before submitting them to the Board of Directors

e Reviewed internal audit as well as risk management systems, in order to assess the adequacy of the internal controls system

for the business environment and operations

e Followed - up on the Company’s operations, comparing actual performance results against the financial budgets as submitted

to the financial creditors as the Debt Restructuring Agreements

e Followed - up on the accounting standards and on the new standards of international financial reporting to be implemented

by the Company together with the affects it will have on the Company

e Followed - up the progress of and made recommendation relating to the IFS project

Followed - up on the performance of Internal Audit Group, and provided recommendations on further developments in its activities
® Made recommendations regarding improvements to be made to the Credit Control system, the Credit Approval system
procedures, the process of checking a customer’s account process, and customer account monitoring program

e Followed - up on and making recommendations relating to the key performance indicators (KPIs) of the credit management

activities as reported by the Credit Director

e Reviewed the Internal Audit Group planned activities for 2011, and made suggestions and further recommendations

® Reviewed proposed connected transactions with related Parties as well as those transactions that may result in a conflict of

interest situation in order that they all comply with the law and regulations of the SET as well as to be sure that these transactions
are appropriate, reasonable and beneficial to the Company.

The Audit Committee is in agreement with the certified external auditor that the Company’s Financial Statement and disclosures of
relevant information are adequate and fairly presented in full accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices. The
Audit Committee also believes that the internal controls systems of the company have functions effectively and there are no inadequacies
within its internal controls systems as well as that all required rules and regulations as imposed by the responsible regulatory organizations
have been adequately adhered to.

For the financial year 2012, the Audit Committee once again recommends that KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited (Mrs. Wilai
Buranakittisopon and/or other auditors) be appointed as the company’s external auditor and that the Board of Directors propose this to to
the Annual General Shareholders’ meeting for their consideration and approval.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

Yy 4

(Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
February 20, 2012
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Board of Directors’ Responsibilities
for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of Singer Thailand plc. is responsible for and has provided the Consolidated Financial Statements
and those for its Subsidiaries together with the associated information relating to their respective financial status as presented

in this Annual Report.

These Financial Statements and reports on the performance results for the financial year 2011 are prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and through the use of appropriate accounting policies that are consistently applied
by the Company together with the use of careful consideration and best estimates. Further, all important and relevant information

are adequately disclosed within the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Towards this end, the Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee consisting of Independent Directors, which
is responsible reviewing the quality of these Financial Statements, the internal controls. The opinions and comments of the Audit

Committee relating to these matters appear in the Audit Committee’s Report that is included this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the overall internal controls system of the Company has functioned satisfactorily
and, thus, has provided reliable, accurate and adequate information for the Consolidated and Financial Statements and those for

its Subsidiaries for the financial year ending December 31, 2011.

LY
Admiral M, . ST =\
ML Usni Parmoj Mr. Boonyong Tansakul

Chairman of the Board Managing Director

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
:1NAlNg 9Na (Unsu) / Singer Thailand Public Company Limited



80

A—

SIVOYOLWEOUUNYBSUDOUNIA

lauo Wiioruusun Boinosus:nAlng tna (UMisu)

P Id IO VIVUAAIFIUZMIFUIINUAZIVUAAIFIUZMIEURINZAIMS & Tud 31 Sunan 2554 waz 2553 sumls
& & ° & 2 a < vy A
nanuiaadanuuazumilmanudaiuamzAams wusasmsdsuulasdivesitevusuuazasuanimsasuudasdiu
¥V
YaIfeRuAmMzAIMI uazaunIzudludAINLAzIUNTUdRUdRmIzAams diviuTfaugaiudefuvesudasil veosusin Funes
dszinelng e vnvu) wazuStmges wazveuamzusTnganes Ysznalne e mvu) muddu e?aﬁu%misuaaﬁﬁmmﬂu
k4

AuAnveudenugnieatazasuduvesteralusumsiumall dndmidrdudfuAsseulumsuansanuiiudesumsiiudnd
FNWANIATIVIFOVUDININL

] 0
A Ao o/

s?hwL%ﬁ"lé’ﬂf]ﬂaﬂumaﬁlﬁaumummgmmiﬁauﬁ’nﬂmusaam"lﬂs?iaﬁmuﬂ‘lﬁﬂ“hwL%’W’iamnuwuua:ﬂﬁﬁﬁmmﬁa‘lﬁ
Wanuieiuoteiimanahaumsiuuansdoyaidadedorfiasiesuiumszdiapioli mannadousufaimsl¥iammaneundn
gulszneumnenienifusnuiuuasmadamedeyaluwmaiu malsiuamumnzamemdnnstaFinemsliuazlszana
maRefunemmmanaduiifunassdisy Sefuimadufaniueneatumalisiiudianumnzsmeamsudaanemsiniiaue
Tusumstiulaeny Smdudehmsanadesdainalieagiiihunasioamnzaiumsudasanuifivvestin

4 [
P ufiuh swmstusnwazaumsiuamziamsdneduil udaaguzmsRuuLazPuzMsRu@mnzAams a un 31 Sunau
2554 waz 2553 HamMIMIIUNUTINLAZNAMIANTUNURINZAINS waznszuddudanuuaznszudduda@mziams smsuudazl)

v
a

auqﬂiulﬁtnﬁuﬂlmﬁﬁw%ama% Uszmalng e Gnyy) wazuSimgesuazvauamzyitm aunes Yszndlng H1ifa (mwu) Tag
gnABIMUNATUAN TR YMNINATIUMITNENUMIN &Y

Y

4 A - - v - 4 . 2 x v
munesnelilumnemadsznevsumsdude 2 uas 4 Ramslalinaspumsnsnumamsduiesnuazliulslnidinatisfy
v H v H
Tadaudiud 1 unnan 2554 wms@usuuazaumsiuamsAamsdmivYaugaiun 31 sunau 2553 ad5udsadmind

b

(nala ysuinalanas)
k% s Ao
HaeutayFiuenana

wnzideu 3920

a4 g A a

V3N 1Al nillve deutleyd e

9

ATIUNWHINUAT

24 AuATRUS 2555




Audit report of Certified Public Accountant

To the Shareholders of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited

I have audited the accompanying consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011
and 2010, and the related statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended of
Singer Thailand Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, and of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited, respectively.
The Company’s management is responsible for the correctness and completeness of information presented in these financial

statements. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial positions as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 and the results of operations and cash flows for the years then ended
of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, and of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited, respectively,

in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards.

As explained in notes 2 and 4 to the financial statements, with effect from 1 January 2011 the Company has adopted certain
new and revised financial reporting standards. The consolidated and separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December

2010 have been restated accordingly.

w. 12 .

(Wilai Buranakittisopon)
Certified Public Accountant

Registration No. 3920

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok

24 February 2012
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Statements of financial position

ru Sun 31 suoAu 2554 1la: 2553
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

aunswel
Assets

aunsndnyuiu
Current assets
HudauazNemMsiguwidugan
Cash and cash equivalents

X, . = o o .
qﬂwuwaumszﬂﬂinmwumm:m ﬂ‘luwuaﬂ
Current portion of installments receivables
anuilau
Other receivables

Xa R
Qﬂﬂuﬂﬁ]ﬂ'ﬁ‘ﬂ LAYIVDINU
Amount due from related party
fumaavae
Inventories
a8 o ¢ 2 A
ﬁumwwagunﬂuau
Other current assets

KUEINA

10

VUMSIBUSOU
Consolidated financial statements

140,958,128

893,316,334

53,360,832

23,128

261,618,405

50,251,857

189,314,592

794,817,942

61,286,157

234,890,299

37,901,185

(U : Baht)

LUMISOUWI:ADMS
Separate financial statements

133,632,286

893,316,334

53,298,469

80,315

261,598,291

50,210,539

2553 (“usuusoiru”)
2010 (“restated”)

184,099,931

794,817,942

61,185,963

96,526

234,801,883

37,851,543

o d =
smaumwsmqun k1)
Total current assets

1,399,528,684

1,318,210,175

1,392,136,234

1,312,853,788

aunsnd limsuou
Non-current assets
Qﬂﬁéﬁﬂu‘ﬁﬁ:

Installments receivables
Ruaaluysingdey
Investments in subsidiaries
L3uamus:awn§u

Other long-term investment
fiau 1A wazgunsal
Property, plant and equipment
Misearmin

Prepayment for outlet leases
Aunindlifidau

Intangible assets
AunsndmiSulasemsdatiad
Deferred tax assets
Aunindlaivaudousu

Other non-current assets

11

12

13, 16

14

15

370,274,835

1,000,000

308,027,859

9,755,465

13,879,533

120,975,143

6,034,800

310,700,821

1,000,000

310,004,756

12,445,780

19,992,796

104,627,133

5,101,000

370,274,835

5,193,400

308,011,850

9,755,465

13,879,533

120,975,143

6,034,800

310,700,821

5,193,400

309,984,402

12,445,780

19,992,796

104,627,133

5,101,000

samduning Liviyuiou
Total non-current assets

829,947,635

763,872,286

834,125,026

768,045,332

a Y4
FINAUNTNEY
Total assets

2,229,476,319

2,082,082,461

2,226,261,260

2,080,899,120

A @ = - X
'ﬂlnf]L“ﬂ'ﬂizﬂﬂﬂQ']Jﬂ'ﬁNulﬂud']uﬁuQ‘“ﬂ\i\i'ﬂﬂ’]iuuu

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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DUIIﬁC]DQ’]U:rﬂSIﬁU
Statements of financial position

cu 3un 31 suoAu 2554 la: 2553
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

waauna: aouuoownonu
Liabilities and equity

ﬁﬁﬁuﬁym?ﬂu

Current liabilities

Quibniiutidsinms 16 6,143,481

Bank overdrafts

Fwiimagh 6,17 140,501,162

Trade accounts payable

GwiiRamstiAeteatiu 6 23,542,397

Accounts payable to related parties

Gu?ﬁui:ﬂ:ﬂnﬁﬁaﬁmuﬂﬂﬁﬁ:mﬂ“luﬂf;qﬂ

Current portion of long-term loans
ﬂm‘léif"ftytmﬂ%uﬂ;mﬁﬂhi:ﬂﬁ 16 91,143,000
under debt rescheduling agreement

Qufduszozdunnasmaniidesiu

Short-term loans from related party

wilduraoudu 18 111,385,786

Other current liabilities

VUMISIDUSIU
rneir | Consolidated financial statements
Note

2,850,346

76,619,493

20,222,059

91,143,000

86,127,381

(U : Baht)

LUMSBURWI:NDMS
Separate financial statements

6,143,481

140,064,332

25,680,800

91,143,000

111,141,693

2553
2010 (“restated”)

(“UsuUsolnu”)

2,850,346

75,979,771

21,808,142

91,143,000

3,000,000

85,916,765

UHUFUHNUOBY 372,715,826

Total current liabilities

276,962,279

374,173,306

280,698,024

Hﬁﬁu'l;iﬁyuﬁﬂu
Non-current liabilities
QAufuszezenmoladayan
Long-term loans under debt
Psulgamasranil 16 637,994,836
rescheduling agreement
mi:@ﬂﬁuwaﬂiﬂwﬁwﬁmm 19, 26 133,157,268
Employee benefit obligations
QuilszAumiinay 2,016,180
Employee security deposits
AoaNUEuAzANNIIRNY

Provident funds

20, 26 102,654,336

729,137,836

121,893,084

1,238,733

105,158,896

637,994,836

133,157,268

2,016,180

102,654,336

729,137,836

121,893,084

1,238,733

105,158,896

samiaulamaudou 875,822,620

Total non-current liabilities

957,428,549

875,822,620

957,428,549

&’Q
FINNUAU
Total liabilities

1,248,538,446

1,234,390,828

1,249,995,926

1,238,126,573

mnewmalsznevsumstuiludumilsvessumaiiuil
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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DUIIAQOTIU:MSIBU (C1O)
Statements of financial position

ru Sun 31 suoAu 2554 1la: 2553
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

(UM : Baht)

VUMSIDUSOU OUMSIBUKWINDMS
wUauNa: aguuoownghu ALNEING Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note

Liabilities and equny

2554 2553 (“usuusoin 2554 2553 (“usuusoiu”)
20] 1 2010 (“restated”) 2011 2010 (“restated”)

! vy v
a1V AY
Equity
NUGoUTY 21

Share capital:
nuIany deou 270,000,000 270,000,000 270,000,000 270,000,000

Authorized share capital

nu“ﬁaamta:‘ﬁﬁzuaa 270,000,000 270,000,000 270,000,000 270,000,000
Issued and paid-up share capital
dufuyadviu
Additional paid-in capital:
dmﬁmﬂamﬁumﬁm 22 225,000,000 225,000,000 225,000,000 225,000,000
Premium on ordinary shares
lsdzau
Retained earnings:
Jadssudn
Appropriated:
nuﬁﬁmmuﬂawmﬂ 22 27,000,000 27,000,000 27,000,000 27,000,000
Legal reserve
#ali1Adadss 316,631,417 199,986,782 311,958,878 195,067,696
Unappropriated
oadtlsznouduvesdimaafiforu 13,22 142,306,456 125,704,851 142,306,456 125,704,851

Other components of equity

FINAINVBI DO 980,937,873 847,691,633 976,265,334 842,772,547
Total equity

iauﬁﬁauLLazdaumﬂaﬁﬁaﬁu 2,229,476,319  2,082,082,461 2,226,261,260  2,080,899,120
Total liabilities and equity

mnewalsznevsumstuiludumilavessumaiiuil
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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vumisunanuiBaiaso
Statements of comprehensive income

ansuidaUauaadun 31 suonAu 2554 lla: 2553
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(U : Baht)

VUMSIBURWI:NDMS
Separate financial statements

2553 (“usuusoln”)
2010 (“restated”)

VUMSIDUSOU
KUNEIKG Consolidated financial statements
Note

L4
5184
Income

nelannmsne
Revenue from sale of goods

¥
ponllsiuNAMINeHaUTITE

1,867,381,158

1,629,832,898

1,866,455,660

1,628,265,001

515,966,407 449,222,025 515,966,407 449,222,025

Interest from installment sales
mlsnamalszanamumdnmsadiasnan’
Defined benefit plan actuarial gains

Uszfusgnnlasamsnalssleniniinany 19 = 76,997,821 = 76,997,821
elaou 13 14,504,373 18,265,520 14,806,179 18,362,949
Other income
sungla 2,397,851,938  2,174,318,264  2,397,228,246  2,172,847,796
Total income
mlsae
Expenses
é’unu‘um 10 1,086,018,869 935,472,488  1,086,071,474 935,555,775
Cost of sale of goods
alFelumsne 24 871,830,965 795,048,099 871,416,207 794,164,620
Selling expenses
alFnelumsuims 25 238,293,081 253,736,313 237,788,625 253,218,460
Administrative expenses
ﬁunumamiﬁu 27 57,764,752 55,557,407 57,807,163 55,794,941
Finance costs
samlng 2,253,907,667  2,039,814,307  2,253,083,469  2,038,733,796
Total expenses
mlsneumuGula 143,944,271 134,503,957 144,144,777 134,114,000
Profit before income tax expense
muGula 28 1,486,338 45,138,846 1,440,297 45,059,701
Income tax expense
mlsamSuil 142,457,933 89,365,111 142,704,480 89,054,299
Profit for the year
mlsmanudawioaudmiud - gnsanmi 28 17,788,307 51,849,719 17,788,307 51,849,719
Other comprehensive income for the year, net
of income tax
mlsnanudaadesindniull 160,246,240 141,214,830 160,492,787 140,904,018
Total comprehensive income for the year
lsdofuiuiugiu 29 0.53 0.33 0.53 0.33

Basic earnings per share

mngwmalsznevsumstuiludumilsvessumaiiuil
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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pulldaoMsivasulladiugdougoowiiou
Statements of changes in equity

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 lia: 2553
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

ALEIKG
Note

soU (“UsUUsplnd”)
Consolidated financial statements (“restated”)

nuISeuRUN
ooniiaiss:
[fare}
Issued and
paid-up share
capital

goluladoass
(anua:au)
Unappropriated

nuehsoo
awunQrng
Legal reserve

premium

goANILKDD B fiw‘f; 1 unsiau 2553 270,000,000 225,000,000 27,000,000 110,621,671
Balance at 1 January 2010
mlsnanudaesadmivl
Comprehensive income for the year

Mlsamsudl = = = 89,365,111
Profit for the year
ﬁﬂwmnmﬁma?ﬂ?)'u 13 - - - -

Other comprehensive income

(Un : Baht)

Oher components | SoUEOUIOD
— wrioAu
EUINUAUDINMS | Totq| equity
Gis1m dunswei

Revaluation

surplus

73,855,132 706,476,803

= 89,365,111

51,849,719 51,849,719

umlsnanudatadodimivl = = = 89,365,111

Total comprehensive income for the year

51,849,719 141,214,830

goANILHAe & U 31 FTuNAN 2553
Balance at 31 December 2010

270,000,000 225,000,000 27,000,000 199,986,782

125,704,851 847,691,633

goAnILHae B JuN 1 unTIAN 2554 270,000,000 225,000,000 27,000,000 199,986,782

Balance at 1 January 2011

9 YA k4 'd' o 2 Y YA 4
i?ﬂﬂ?iﬂﬂmﬂﬂ’r]uﬂUUﬂﬂIﬂﬂﬁidL‘]ﬂﬁ')u‘l]ﬂﬂzilﬂﬂ?!u
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
30 - - -

Ruifuwalvifneiuvesniim (27,000,000)

Dividends to owners of the Company

125,704,851 847,691,633

= (27,000,000)

yumemsfivfihudwesiiuiinlasasadhdmeiiier - - - (27,000,000)

Total transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity

= (27,000,000)

mlsnanudaesadimivl
Comprehensive income for the period
ilsdmsutl 142,457,933
Profit for the period
dlsnanuidaiaiety 13 - - - -

Other comprehensive income

142,457,933

17,788,307 17,788,307

sumlsnanudatadodimivl = = = 142,457,933

Total comprehensive income for the period

17,788,307 160,246,240

Toulddlsazen

Transfer to retained earnings

13 = = = 1,186,702

(1,186,702) =

goAnIHae o Jui 31 Tunau 2554
Balance at 31 December 2011

270,000,000 225,000,000 27,000,000 316,631,417

142,306,456 980,937,873

A @ & - X
wmﬂmqﬂaznanqumiNmﬂumuwuwmmmmuu
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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pullaaoMsivasuladiugaougoowiiou
Statements of changes in equity

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 lia: 2553
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(N : Baht)

DUMSIDUSOU (“USUUSDIKL”)
Consolidated financial statements (“restated”)
nuISoUrun misa:au i :

ooNIABIS: | FouRuyar Retained earnings SoUadUYOD

L Ul Issu:ﬂound ; dounn wioHu

2 = o ouINUNUDINNS .
Note paid-up share I nuehsoo golfidsaass G 2unswe | Total equity

capital premium amuNQHLE (onanuetau) Revaluation
Legal reserve | Unappropriated surplus

e ——— ———— ————
goANILKAD B &Jluﬁl 1 unarau 2553 270,000,000 225,000,000 27,000,000 106,013,397 73,855,132 701,868,529
Balance at 1 January 2010
mlsnanudaeadmivl

Comprehensive income for the period

ilsdmivd - - - 89.05429 - 89,054,299
Profit for the period
mlsnanuidaaiedu 13 - - - - 51,849,719 51,849,719

Other comprehensive income

suwmlsnanudawadadnivl - - - 89,054,299 51,849,719 140,904,018
Total comprehensive income for the period

goANILYae & TN 31 FuNAN 2553 270,000,000 225,000,000 27,000,000 195,067,696 125,704,851 842,772,547
Balance at 31 December 2010

goANILHDD B ﬁ'uﬁ 1 uns1au 2554 270,000,000 225,000,000 27,000,000 195,067,696 125,704,851 842,772,547
Balance at 1 January 2011
nemsiuiferuituiinlasasadhdimosidoru
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Ruifuwalvifneuvesuiim 30 - - - (27,000,000) - (27,000,000)
Dividends to owners of the Company

fmmtjmsﬁuﬁtﬂut%maaﬁﬁuﬁﬂiﬂsmm%'nﬁmmaqﬁjﬁaﬁu = = = (27,000,000) = (27,000,000)
Total transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity

mlsnanudataadmivl

Comprehensive income for the period

mlsdmiudl - - - 142,704,480 - 142,704,480
Profit for the period
mlsnanudaietadu 13 - - - - 17,788,307 17,788,307

Other comprehensive income

sumlsnanudaadodivivl - - - 142,704,480 17,788,307 160,492,787
Total comprehensive income for the period

Toulddlsazen 13 - - - 1,186,702 (1,186,702) -

Transfer to retained earnings

goandttae o Jui 31 Funau 2554 270,000,000 225,000,000 27,000,000 311,958,878 142,306,456 976,265,334
Balance at 31 December 2011

vngwasznevsumsiududiumilsveasumsiduil
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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vuns:Iavuaaqa
Statements of cash flows

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 lia: 2553
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(U : Baht)

DUNISIDUSOU LUMSIDUIIWIADMS

919ptd][glu] Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Nete 2554 2553 (“usuusoinu 2554 2553 (“usuusoiu”)
20] 1 2010 (“restated”) 2011 2010 (“restated”)

L I I | |
AFLUANEUANDINADNTINATHUITY
Cash flows from operating activities

lsdmul 142,457,933 89,365,111 142,704,480 89,054,299
Profit for the year

oM/

Adjustments for

Mideusan 10,864,559 15,829,940 10,858,364 15,824,020
Depreciation

Mdndvineg 13,994,620 12,582,468 13,994,620 12,582,468
Amortisation

é’uuumamiﬁu 57,764,752 55,557,407 57,807,163 55,794,941
Finance costs

(mls) mmnumﬂﬁmwuamﬂ?{auﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬂﬁuﬁa (155,107) 62,388 (155,107) 62,536
Unrealized (gain) loss on exchange rate

ﬁﬁqmuua:wﬁmﬁm]:qmu 67,751,620 32,990,405 67,751,620 32,990,405
Bad and doubtful debts expenses

ﬂé’niwmiﬁuﬁaauﬁitﬁlauﬂmmwuanaﬂmﬂ (6,600,000)  (13,400,000) (6,600,000)  (13,400,000)
Reversal of obsolete and damaged inventory

mﬂnumnmiﬁimwaaﬁuﬁwé = 5,937,466 = 5,937,466
Impairment loss on assets revaluation

(mls) sumﬂuﬁnﬂmﬁhmiwﬁau 21713 Lm“ﬂﬂﬂifﬁ (178,706) 695,818 (178,706) 695,818
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

nanunnmMssivheduninglifidau 572 38 572 38
Loss on disposal of intangible assets

NANUNNMITARUTUM 54,885,143 63,269.984 54,885,143 63,269,984

Loss on repossesion

Mlsnamslsznamumdnmsndiaendns
Defined benefit plan actuarial gains

szRudonnlasamsnals=lominiinau - (76,997,821) = (76,997,821)
ﬂ‘li:zdjﬂﬁuwaﬂiﬂﬂ‘liﬁwﬁm‘lu 16,800,000 25,714,997 16,800,000 25,714,997
Employee benefit obligations
ﬁﬁmﬂamuﬁuazauwﬁmm 8,174,673 9,108,883 8,174,673 9,108,883
Provision for provident funds
muEuld 1,486,338 45,138,846 1,440,297 45,059,701

Income tax expense

367,246,397 265,855,930 367,483,119 265,697,735

vnemalsznevaumaduiludiuniisvesumstiuil
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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vuns:iauaa (o)
Statements of cash flows (Continued)

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 lia: 2553
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(U : Baht)

DU[T]SIDUSOU OUMSIDUIRW:NDNS ‘
KUTIKG Consolidated flnonC|<J| statements Separate financial statements
N 2554 2553 (“usuusoinu 2554 2553 (“usuusoiu”)
2011 2010 (“restated”) 2011 2010 (“restated”)

L I I | |}
msfasuuasTudunsnduazmiaus i
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
qﬂwﬁﬁau‘f‘li: (266,613,709) (125,195,251) (266,613,709) (125,195,251)
Installment receivables
Qn‘ﬂﬁﬁ‘u (6,170,135) (5,407,505) (6,207,966) (5,509,442)
Other receivables

qnwiemsiiieadeaiu (23,128) - 16,211 49,848

Amount due from related parties

FuMaamiae (20,128,106) (20,657,329) (20,196,408) (20,659,056)
Inventories

Aunndvauiousu (11,570207)  (3,214,575)  (11,562,730)  (3,185,140)
Other current assets

ﬁuﬂ%’Wfﬂﬂﬂguﬁﬂu?}lu (933,800) 17,600 (933,800) 17,600
Other non-current assets

MENNaImIN (4,397,152) (4,099,626) (4,397,152) (4,099,626)
Prepayment for outlet leases

Wmimsi 63,881,669  (76,577,955) 64,084,561  (76,145,655)
Trade accounts payable

FwiRamsiAgIveaiu 3,320,338 3,374,070 3,872,658 3,116,702
Accounts payable to related parties

wﬁﬁuwguﬁﬂuéu 25,785,788 21,475,239 25,752,311 21,499,054
Other current liabilities

NeRuvawenalslewiniinau (5,535,816) (6,117,300) (5,535,816) (6,117,300)
Employee benefit paid

QutlseAumiinau 777,447 (6,962,628) 777,447 (6,962,628)
Employee security deposits

NeAINUEUAzANNTNNY (10,679,233)  (13,031,729)  (10,679,233)  (13,031,729)
Provident funds paid

TemuQuld (671,399) (293,915) (641,159) (132,501)

Income tax paid

Quangnslamnanionssumiuam 134,288,954 29,165,026 135,218,334 29,342,611
Net cash provided by operating activities

wngmalszneuaumstuiludiumilvessumstiuil
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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vuns:iauaa (co)
Statements of cash flows (Continued)

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 lia: 2553
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(1 : Baht)

DU[T]SIDUSOU OUMSIBURW:NDMS

HUNEIKQ | Consolidated flnanC|c1| statements Separate financial statements
Note 2554 i 2553 (usugshir?)
2011 i ” 2010 (“restated”)

ﬂi&‘:’tlﬂt?ﬂﬂﬂ‘ﬂ"lﬂﬁﬂﬂifﬂﬁ\?‘}]u
Cash flows from investing activities

%aqﬂﬂiﬂi (8,894,797)  (11,878,576) (8,892,947)  (11,878,576)
Purchase of equipment

‘umﬁﬁu mmma:qﬂﬂitﬁ 185,841 1,780,443 185,841 1,780,443
Sale of property, plant and equipment

%a?{uﬁwﬂﬁﬁﬁmu (794,462) (5,096,115) (794,462) (5,096,115)

Purchase of intangible assets

Quangnslsllufonssuainu (9,503,418)  (15,194,248) (9,501,568)  (15,194,248)
Net cash used in investing activities

ATZUARIUAANINNVNTTNIAN I
Cash flows from financing activities

ﬁhﬂ@'}'unumamsﬁu (58,292,135) (56,249,861) (58,334,546) (56,487,395)
Finance cost paid

Seduifunaliifteruveusin (27,000,000) - (27,000,000) -
Dividends paid to owners of the Company

Quidnifutgdsmmsiiniu (anag) 3,293,135 (5,535,110) 3,293,135 (6,535,110)
Increase (decrease) from bank overdrafts

fszAudufnszozdunnuiingey = = (3,000,000) -
Repayment of short-term loans from a subsidiary

Hszhudufiouszezemmeladyanyiudsimethizvil (91,143,000)  (45,571,500)  (91,143,000)  (45,571,500)

Repayment of long-term loans under debt

rescheduling agreement

Retsenidumudyaninmsdu - (932,822) - (932,822)
Finance lease payments

Quaagnslsllufanssudamau (173,142,000) (108,289,293) (176,184,411) (109,526,827)
Net cash used in financing activities

QAuaauaznsmMsisuh(udaanagns (48,356,464)  (94,318,515)  (50,467,645)  (95,378,464)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Sudauaznemsiieuhdudn o Judull 189,314,592 283,633,107 184,099,931 279,478,395

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Qduaauaziemsigyandvan o Yuaud 7 140,958,128 189,314,592 133,632,286 184,099,931
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

vinemalsznevaumatuiludiumilsvessumsiiuil
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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KgIKQUs:noudUMSIOU
Notes to the financial statements

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 lia: 2553
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements issued for Thai statutory and regulatory reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language.
These English language financial statements have been prepared from the Thai language statutory financial statements,

and were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2012.
1. General information

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited, the “Company”, is incorporated in Thailand and has its registered office at
72 CAT Building 17 Floor, Charoenkrung Road, Bangrak, Bangkok.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand in June 1984.

The major shareholder during the financial year was Singer (Thailand) B.V. (43.1% shareholding) incorporated in the
Netherlands. The ultimate parent company of Singer (Thailand) B.V. is Retail Holdings N.V., incorporated in Curacao.

The principal business of the Company relates to the sales by hire purchase contracts of sewing machines and electrical

appliances. Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Country of Ownership interest (%)

Name of the entity

Type of business : :
incorporation 2011 2010

Direct Subsidiaries

Singer (Broker) Limited Life insurance Broker Thailand 99.70 99.70

Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited Manufacturing Thailand 99.88 99.88

2. Basis of preparation of the nancial statements
(@) Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) and guidelines
promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions (“FAP”), applicable rules and regulations of the Thai Securities
and Exchange Commission.

During 2010 and 2011, issued the following new and revised TFRS relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011:
TFRS Topic

TAS 1 (revised 2009) Presentation of Financial Statements

TAS 2 (revised 2009)
TAS 7 (revised 2009)
TAS 8 (revised 2009)
TAS 10 (revised 2009)
TAS 16 (revised 2009)
TAS 17 (revised 2009)
TAS 18 (revised 2009)
TAS 19

TAS 23 (revised 2009)
TAS 24 (revised 2009)

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Events after the Reporting Period

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

®)

©)

@)

TAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
TAS 27 (revised 2009) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

TAS 33 (revised 2009) Earnings per Share

TAS 34 (revised 2009) Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 36 (revised 2009) Impairment of Assets

TAS 37 (revised 2009) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
TAS 38 (revised 2009) Intangible Assets

TAS 40 (revised 2009) Investment Property

TFRS 5 (revised 2009) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
FAP’ s announcement Accounting Guidance on Revaluation of Assets

no. 18/2554

The adoption of these new and revised TFRS has resulted in changes in the Group’s accounting policies. The effects of

these changes are disclosed in note 4.

In addition to the above new and revised TFRS, the FAP has issued during 2010 a number of other new and revised
TFRS which are expected to be effective for financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and have not

been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These new and revised TFRS are disclosed in note 34.
Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following material items in the

statements of financial position:
- Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Presentation currency

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Thai Baht. All financial information presented in Thai Baht has

been rounded in the notes to the financial statements to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.
Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Actual results may differ from estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 3 Impact of severe flooding in Thailand

Note 5(t) Current and deferred taxation

Note 8 Installments receivable - allowance for doubtful account
Note 9 Other receivables - allowance for doubtful account

Note 10 Inventories - allowance for obsolete and damaged inventory
Note 15 Utilisation of tax losses

Note 19 Measurement of defined benefit obligation

Note 31 Valuation of financial instruments

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010
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®)

©)

Impact of severe ooding in Thailand

The Company’s branches, warehouse and customers have been affected by the unusually severe flooding affecting parts
of Thailand. After having ceased operation for around two months, four of the Company’s shops located in Ayutthaya
and Pathumthani provinces have been restarted and have shown significant improvement in both sale and collection.
After having made an assessment of the damage, the Management estimated repair and damage loss of approximately
Baht 2 million. Management believe that any losses arising as a consequence of the flooding will be recovered from
insurance. These financial statements include an additional allowance for doubtful accounts amounting to Baht 8 million
for the assessment of the damage that might affect the recoverability of installment accounts receivable.

Change in accounting policies
Overview

From 1 January 2011, consequent to the adoption of new and revised TFRS as set out in note 2, the Group has changed
its accounting policies in the following areas:

* Presentation of financial statements

« Accounting for property, plant and equipment

Details of the new accounting policies adopted by the Group and the impact of the changes on the financial statements
are included in notes 4(b) and 4(c) below. Other new and revised TFRS did not have any impact on the accounting
policies, financial position or performance of the Group.

Presentation of financial statements

From 1 January 2011, the Group has adopted TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised 2009). Under the
revised standard, a set of financial statements comprises:

« Statement of financial position;

« Statement of comprehensive income;
« Statement of changes in equity;

« Statement of cash flows; and

* Notes to the financial statements.

As a result, the Group presents all owner changes in equity in the statement of changes in equity and all non-owner
changes in equity in the statement of comprehensive income. Previously, all such changes were included in the statement
of changes in equity.

Comparative information has been re-presented so that it also is in conformity with the revised standard. Since the
change in accounting policy only impacts presentation aspects, there is no impact on reported profit or earnings per share.

Accounting for property, plant and equipment

From 1 January 2011, the Group has adopted TAS 16 (revised 2009) Property, Plant and Equipment in determining and
accounting for the cost and depreciable amount of property, plant and equipment.

The principal changes introduced by the revised TAS 16 and affecting the Group are that: (i) costs of asset dismantlement,
removal and restoration have to be included as asset costs and subject to annual depreciation; (ii) the depreciation charge
has to be determined separately for each significant part of an asset; and (iii) in determining the depreciable amount, the
residual value of an item of property, plant and equipment has to be measured at the amount estimated receivable currently
for the asset if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. Furthermore,
the residual value and useful life of an asset have to be reviewed at least at each financial year-end.

The changes have been applied prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions of the revised standard, except
that consideration of the costs of asset dismantlement, removal and restoration, have been applied retrospectively. The
changes have had no material impact on the profit and earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Signicant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements
except as explained in note 4, which addresses changes in accounting policies.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(@)

®)

©)

@)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).
Significant intra-group transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly,
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to align
them with the policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to Thai Baht at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid short-
term investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are a component of financing activities for the purpose
of the statement of cash flows.

Installments receivables

Installments receivables under hire purchase contracts are stated at the original amount of the hire-purchase installments
less installments received, unearned carrying charges and allowances for doubtful accounts.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is assumed primarily on analysis of payment histories and future expectations of
customer payments. Bad debts are written off when incurred.

The allowance for doubtful accounts has been estimated from the arrears of installment receivable (net of unearned
carrying charges). The percentage of allowance for doubtful accounts as follows:

S BT

Current 1
Overdue:
Less than 3 months 5
3-6 months 25
6-9 months 35
9-12 months 50
Over 12 months 100

The Company’s method for calculating the allowance for doubtful accounts is different from the method prescribed
in the accounting guideline issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions Re: Providing allowance for doubtful
accounts for consumer finance business (‘FAP Guideline’). The FAP Guideline prescribes that allowance for doubtful
accounts should be made in the full amount of all outstanding receivables that are overdue for over 3 installment periods
without the deduction of collateral values from the remaining debt and that consideration should also be given to making
a general allowance for receivables which are overdue for less than 3 installment periods. However, the management
considers, and has concluded, that the Company’s method for calculating the allowance for doubtful accounts better

reflects the Company’s exposure to credit risk.

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
:1NAlNg 9Na (Unsu) / Singer Thailand Public Company Limited



100

KUNEIKQUS:noUdUNSIBU

©)

(¥)

(7)

X R R AU N~ S
anvueu LLﬁﬂﬂuﬂﬂWﬂNBm‘B‘ﬂﬂﬂWLNﬂﬁuﬁdﬁE}ﬁ]:ﬁgiUu
v

4 X o W X4 a a ¢ wa o X ¢ o o X

nientasdevzgdimivganiaulsziiulasmsinnzvidssiamssisenil uazmsmamsalinglfiumsnszniiluenaaves
k4 1 4

nf gnnilazgndasimbedysuiiensuiuiuniigey

e D

a

4 =~
aufaNtiae

a ¥ A A 4 ad Yo %4 J ; 1
ﬁumﬂamaauﬁﬂﬂuﬂmnuwsauﬂamawﬁmﬂmu uduanalaaziinh

q

Y a o Yad Y 1 1 % a $% Y $% g Y ﬂ' 4' Ua v 1 d‘
Aunuveadumdnalagliisidndeusenen Aunudumilszneudisdunuse uazdunuauwelidumedludauiuas
amwifagiiv

]
1 a

< Vo & = 4 o A a av Y QY A o
yamgninazlasudumslsznanmivzngldnnmsadivgsilndvindedlihienduiulumsne

q

¥

v ! 1 1
nguusEnAsAiveyafdumanas dindudumnidenaunn @eme Madvuazfaunu
a
(Juainy
) Q v r
Wuaanuluysvngay

Ruamuluvidndesluaumstuamszamsvesvitn tuiindadlaeliiznamu

]

Aa
fau eimsuazgnsal

o

a oo 2. 4 Q
ﬂM‘VISWEI‘VIEduﬂiﬁlﬂ?’lﬁ‘l/ﬂ#ﬁi)ﬂ?i

2.

a

nay 91MILas ﬂﬂﬂimttﬂﬂdﬂ]ﬂﬂﬂTﬂu‘ﬁﬂﬂiLﬁf)llﬁﬂ1ﬁ~ﬁllLLﬁu‘lﬂﬂVllﬁnﬂﬂﬁﬁi’]ﬂﬂH gaunAuLazaIMINLEAIRIETIAN

=

flviai ﬁﬂTﬂﬂﬁlﬂNWN"lﬁlﬂdllﬁﬂWﬂ@lﬁiiwﬁ\‘iﬂWﬁuﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁtﬂm“ﬂﬂﬁel“])'\i"lu“llﬂx‘iauﬂiwEJ‘VIlIE]U’ﬂ]N 3] ’Juﬂuﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂ‘ﬂﬂﬂ]ﬁﬂ"l
Lﬂﬂlli?ﬂ?ﬁuﬂﬂﬂﬂW‘l‘l]m%’lﬂN‘,ﬁﬂWq@]ﬁiiﬂcluﬂﬂlﬂaxﬁnﬂuuuﬁuﬂWLWE]ﬂﬁﬂEl‘t’Jﬂ'l‘llﬂQﬁuﬂiWﬂ

= v A A v o o A o ¢y | Y A o dda Vv = v
NAMUIIUAWUNUIIA NRTesfiumslamnvesduning dunuvesmsneadunindnfamsneaiaes udsaunuva
1] 1 1 1 v 1
a0 UIINUNNIAT wazdunuNMIngIoy | NingrdesiunsiamaunindiielrdunindivegluamminionslFanuldamunnu
s Y g % dlz £ 4 $4 YN gﬁ/ = o A
Yszaad dunulumssensuy mevuie maysazanufidavesduninduazdunumsion uennnidunueiasindiilivie
1 Vv 1 1 1
nanunnmsilestuanudeanszuaiudannnsyenau exmsuazgunsainduGuanealszng Sgnleunnaumlsnanu
I} 1 1 v
iind3e dinsuineadienmuaulasdvdnssenuidliaunsannulilagdnanndviniverluiiiuliiieh dvdnivenluas
o o ~ ¢ A @ Aa ¢
dandrdudiumilavesgdnsaluazdedunay e1ms uazginsel

a o

dutlszneuueangmMInAL 915 WAz aﬂnimtmamﬂmimmﬂmﬂwﬂsw‘lwu"lummuﬂamummma“dmﬂi LnoUNIlY

ﬁ']ﬂQJ,LLﬂﬂﬂN‘Vﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂu

v A

Mlsvsonanuanmssimhenau e1ms uazglnsal Aewarmsszviedineuunugninlasunnmssimbefuyameuiiad

o

Ha e v Y a P ° A A a a P 1 o a do =
UDINAU DIA13T LLﬁZQﬂﬂim Iﬂﬂi‘uzq‘lﬂﬁlﬂui'}Elvl,ﬂf]u“l“l,‘!ﬂfliﬂiﬂ"mﬂﬂu Lllf]llﬂ'li‘l]'lﬂﬁu‘ﬂiwEl'ﬂﬂi'lﬂ'ﬂ,ﬂll NUIUNUNVUNNDY

Y

TuduAunuanmsanmvesdunindazgnlenldeiilsazey
=) o o
aunsngn

L 4 aw Y | ! N o Qo \
fniL‘]S"Ic]f\iﬂquﬂiyﬂvlﬂiﬂdjlﬂﬁfymﬂQﬂ']']llLaﬂqllﬁzwﬂﬂﬂ‘ﬂllﬂu‘ﬂ']ﬂﬂ']iﬂiﬂﬂﬂiﬂqvﬁwﬂauﬂ LU 9 nl'ﬂﬁ]ﬂﬂiztﬂ‘ﬂtﬂuﬁﬂ]ﬂ]’] LBINT

©’s

a1 da ¢y v o o ' A v o= & oA o Y oA A ' o o a 2
WHY AIUNAU a’]ﬂ']iLLaﬁQﬂﬂimﬂl‘lﬂNﬂﬂﬂﬂ1ﬁﬂJﬂJﬂl‘]ﬂﬂ'ﬁuuﬂuﬂﬂLﬂuﬁuﬂﬁwﬂﬂ')fllluﬁﬂ']q@]ﬁiﬁlﬁ’ﬁﬂu‘jﬁﬂ']irflﬁ)‘ﬂu‘ll'ﬂﬂﬁnuﬁulﬂu‘llu
o Ay

mndeatismudyanudidiiunlazainh dindesdifennmazduuaznianuainmsaeem minszazuenudiu

A gy a A o X o A oguw X, QW < o A X
ndueldnemamsiiu uazdufziinnnnimudayan terhlidaneenilsudaznaihidanaifidimivseanamaovaanil
du mlihemamsdueziuiinlagasdlumlsvisenanu

]

=) U ) T
aunsweanasnl

= Vo A P a o Q. a | B A quo ' v A A o ¢
ﬂ'ﬁ@lﬂﬂ'ﬂﬁﬂﬂqluuﬂ'ﬁiﬂﬂﬁL‘lffl'J‘mﬂJ:luﬂ'ﬁ']Ji:Lllui']ﬂ]'ﬂllﬂ'.nllLﬂuaﬂi:ﬂfﬂﬂﬂlﬂLﬁllf] LWE]llﬁﬂJull‘i]'J'ﬁ']ﬂ]@an‘]Jﬂlu‘]f‘Uﬂ\']ﬁuVﬁWfJ

<y vo a ' ' g o o a o A
nlafsumalsziivbiuanmseaumszdhAgnnyamgdsssn o Tunnsau




Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

@)

@

®

)

Other receivable
Other receivables are stated at their invoice value less allowance for doubtful accounts.

The allowance for doubtful accounts for other receivables is assessed primarily on analysis of payment histories and

future expectations of customer payments. Bad debts are written off when incurred.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost is calculated using the first in first out principle, and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

An allowance is made for deteriorated, damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of the Company are accounted for using the cost method.
Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except for land
and buildings which are stated at their revalued amounts. The revalued amount is the fair value determined on the

property’s existing use at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and capitalised borrowing costs. Cost also may include transfers from other comprehensive income of any
gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment. Purchased

software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate

items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other income in profit

or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred to retained earnings.
Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group substantially assumes all the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired by way of finance leases is capitalised at the lower of its fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly

to the profit and loss.
Revalued assets

Revaluations are performed by independent professional valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount

of these assets does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting date.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

@

1))

&)

Any increase in value, on revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation
reserve in equity unless it offsets a previous decrease in value recognised in profit or loss in respect of the same asset.
A decrease in value is recognised in profit or loss to the extent it exceeds an increase previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of the same asset. The revaluation surplus is utilised by reference to the difference
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost and transferred directly to retained earnings. Upon disposal of a revalued asset, any related revaluation surplus is

transferred directly to retained earnings and is not taken into account in calculating the gain or loss on disposal.
Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group, and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of

property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted

for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an

item of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvement 5 years
Office furniture and equipment 5 years

No depreciation is provided on lands and assets under construction.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.
Prepayment for outlet leases

Prepayment for outlet leases is amortized over the lease periods on the straight-line method.

Intangible assets

Software licenses that are acquired by the Group which have finite useful lives, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

software licenses from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are five years.
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.
Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any

indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses a previous revaluation credited to equity,

in which case it is charged to equity.
Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the asset’s value in use and fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset
that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined

for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

0]

(in)

n)

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss. For financial assets carried

at amortised cost and available-for-sale financial assets that are debt securities, the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction charges. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing liabilities are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption

value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.
Trade and other accounts payable

Trade and other accounts payable are stated at cost.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during

which services are rendered by employees.
Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are
deducted. The discount rate used is based on the yields on Thai Government Bonds. The calculation is performed by a

qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by employees is
recognised as an expense in the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits

become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans and all expenses related to defined

benefit plans in profit or loss.
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service

is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the

employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provident funds for staff of Singer

The provident funds’ contributions for the staff of Singer is calculated at the rates fixed by the fund criteria and by the
Company at the same amount deducted from salesmen and shop managers. The contributions to provident fund are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss according to the criteria of the funds (see note 20).
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

©)

®)

q)

)

¢)

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised

as finance cost.
Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products are sold. The provision is based on historical
warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated probabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share
options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Revenue
Revenue excludes value added taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods consists of cash sales, credit sales and installment sales. Revenue from cash sales and
credit sales are recognised in the statement of income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there is continuing management involvement with the goods or there
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the probable return of goods.

Installment sales are based on hire-purchase contracts in which the installment sales receivable the related debts are
effectively secured by the products sold. Revenue from installment sales comprises revenue from the sales of products
and interest. Revenue from the sales of product is recognised when a contract is signed and the first payment is received.
Interest is recorded as unearned carrying charges and is recognised in income using the effective rate method.

After a customer has defaulted on three consecutive payments, the Company ceases to recognize the related earned
carrying charges.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in the statement of income on the date the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the statement of income as it accrues.

Finance costs

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions and contingent
consideration that are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of
the lease.

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the
lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

@®

@)

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a lease. A specific asset
is the subject of a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that specified asset. An arrangement
conveys the right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys to the Group the right to control the use of the underlying

asset.

At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Group separates payments and other consideration required by
such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the
Group concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, an asset and a liability are
recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced as payments

are made and an imputed finance charge on the liability is recognised using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit

or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted

or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following
temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,

using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions
and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate
for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience.
This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New
information may become available that causes the Group to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing

tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be

realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced

to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the period.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

6.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control or joint control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control or

common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

Relationships with related parties were as follows:

Name of entities : Country (.)F Nature of relationships
Incorporation
Retail Holding N.V. Curacao Ultimate parent of Singer (Thailand) B.V.
Singer (Thailand) B.V. The Netherlands Major shareholder, 43.10% shareholding
Singer (Broker) Limited Thailand Subsidiary, 99.70% shareholding
Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited Thailand Subsidiary, 99.88% shareholding
Singer Asia Sourcing Limited British Virgin Islands ~Common shareholder
Singer Asia Limited Cayman Islands Common shareholder
Key management personnel Thailand Persons having authority and responsibility

for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director (whether executive or

otherwise) of the Group.

The pricing policies for particular types of transactions are explained further below:

Transactions Pricing policies

Purchase of goods Market price

Management fee income 15% of total insurance brokerage income of Singer (Broker) Limited
and Baht 20,000 per month from Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited

Trademark license fee 0.1% of net sales (Singer Brand products)

Offshore service fee 1% of total net sales

Interest expense 6% per annum
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Significant transactions for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 with related parties were as follows:

(in thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
| e —
Subsidiaries
Revenue
Management fee income = = 362 460
Expenses
Interest expense = = 42 238

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

compensation

Short-term employee benefits 28,344 24,621 28,344 24,621
Post-employment benefits 678 650 678 650
Total key management personnel compensation 29,022 25,271 29,022 25,271

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010

Other related parties

Expenses

Purchase of goods = = 438 440
Trademark license fee 2,282 1,964 2,282 1,964
Offshore service fee 22,993 19,770 22,993 19,770

Balances as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 with related parties were as follows:

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
Y I N et S e party financial statements financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

Subsidiary

Singer (Broker) Limited - - 57 97
Other related party

Singer Asia Sourcing Limited 23 = 23 =

Total 23 = 80 97
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
T pqycb|e e parties financial statements financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

Subsidiaries
Singer (Broker) Limited - - 844 57
Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited - - 1,295 1,529

Other related party
Singer Asia Limited 23,542 20,222 23,542 20,222

Total 23,542 20,222 25,681 21,808

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
Short-term loan from related party financial statements financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

Subsidiary
Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited - - - 3,000
Total - - - 3,000

Movements during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 of short-term loan from related party were as follows:

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate ‘
Short-term loan from related party financial statements financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

At 1 January - - 3,000 4,000
Decrease - - (3,000) (1,000)
At 30 December - - - 3,000

The short-term loan is repayable on demand, bears interest at 6% per annum and is unsecured.
Significant agreements with related parties

The Company has agreements with Singer Asia Limited for the payment of trademark license fees in the amount of 0.1%
of net sales of Singer Brand products and of offshore service fees for marketing, product planning, design development
and other services in the amount of 1.0% of net sales.

7. Cash and cash equivalents

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

 on [ a0 | 2on [ 200 |

Cash on hand 80 80 80 80
Cash at banks — current accounts (463) 1,344 (1,613) 931)
Cash at banks — saving accounts 29,655 97,123 23,479 94,183
Cash in transit — current / saving accounts 111,686 90,768 111,686 90,768

Total 140,958 189,315 133,632 184,100




KUNEIKQUS:noUdUNSIBU

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 1a: 2553

ﬁuﬁmm:iwnmﬁﬂnwhﬁumﬁwmmmmjuﬁﬁﬂLm:u?iﬁ’w o ud 31 funau 2554 uay 2553 Lﬂuﬂqaﬁum'ﬂ
8. annuwouBs:
(Wuwn)
VUMISIDUSDUIIA-DUNISIDUIWI:NDNS

dounsurhnuaissmeluntiot | doufinsurhhuaisiAuNS KoY

2553 2554 2553 2554 2553

qnwﬁw‘auiﬁ: ) 1,315,039 1,180,538 452,660 376,523 1,767,699 1,557,061
¥Win AenNAIYITOTORALITYT (380,339) (332,523) (75,426) (60,306) (455,765) (392,829)

934,700 848,015 377,234 316,217 1,311,934 1,164,232
n ﬁTLﬁaﬂﬁﬁdﬁﬂ%qm (41,384) (53,197) (6,959) (5,516) (48,343) (58,713)
q'n% 893,316 794,818 370,275 310,701 1,263,591 1,105,519

ilgayuazvilaadeazgay

¥l 53,656 16,798

a 4 X, o Ny X
MIIUATICHDIYVDIANUUNDUTITS UAIU

(Wuwn)
PUNSIBUSOUIIA-DUNISIDUIAW
2554 2553 I

galdasumruatse 1,451,436 1,261,569
AUMAUATE

flagAn 3 LAsu 233,692 177,147

3-6 AU 54,501 52,779

6-9 1AaU 17,604 27,271

9- 12 sy 5,979 17,378

AN 12 theu 4,487 20,917

1,767,699 1,557,061

Wn noniesesesia foy¥ (455,765) (392,829)

Aievilasdoazgay (48,343) (58,713)

ans 1,263,591 1,105,519

4 v H
anuilieuisziuavenguusinuazuitn o Tun 31 Sunau 2554 uaz 2553 Widnaduum

3 SINGER




Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

8. Installments receivables

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate
Financial statements Financial statements Total
Portion due within one year Portion due affer one year ol

1 5 [ 5 e —

Installments receivables 1,315,039 1,180,538 452,660 376,523 1,767,699 1,557,061

Less unearned carrying charges (380,339) (332,523) (75,426) (60,306) (455,765) (392,829)
934,700 848,015 377,234 316,217 1,311,934 1,164,232

Less allowance for doubtful (41,384) (53,197) (6,959) (5,516) (48,343) (58,713)

accounts

Total 893,316 794,818 370,275 310,701 1,263,591 1,105,519

Bad and doubtful debts

expenses for the year 53,656 16,798

Aging analyses for installments receivables were as follows:

(in thousand Baht)
Consolidated and Seporate Financial statements
2011 2010

Within credit terms 1,451,436 1,261,569
Overdue::

Less than 3 months 233,692 177,147

3-6 months 54,501 52,779

6-9 months 17,604 27,271

9-12 months 5,979 17,378

Over 12 months 4,487 20,917

1,767,699 1,557,061

Less unearned carrying charges (455,765) (392,829)

allowance for doubtful accounts (48,343) (58,713)

Net 1,263,591 1,105,519

Installments receivables of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were denominated entirely
in Thai Baht.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the gross investment under hire purchase contracts and the present value of minimum

payments of installments receivables were as follows: .
(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate Financial statements

Present value of : Present value of
. Gross investment o
minimum payments " minimum payments
: under hire :
of installments of installments
p purchase contracts 9
receivables receivables

Gross investment
under hire
purchose contracts

Portion due within one year 1,315,039 934,700 1,180,538 848,015
Portion due over one year but within five years 452,660 377,234 376,523 316,217

1,767,699 1,311,934 1,557,061 1,164,232

Less unearned carrying

charges (455,765) (392,829)
Net investment under hire

purchase contracts 1,311,934 1,164,232

9. Other receivables

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010

Receivable from employees 264,523 316,664 264,460 316,564
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (211,162) (255,378) (211,162) (255,378)
Others receivable, net 53,361 61,286 53,298 61,186
Bad and doubtful debts expenses for the year 14,095 16,192 14,095 16,192

Other receivables of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

10. Inventories
(in thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
T Y

Finished goods 261,355 238,554 261,335 238,466
Components 13,263 15,936 13,263 15,936
274,618 254,490 274,598 254,402
Less allowance for obsolete and damaged inventories (13,000) (19,600) (13,000) (19,600)
Net 261,618 234,890 261,598 234,802

Inventories recognised as an expense in

‘cost of sales of goods’:
- Cost 1,092,619 948,872 1,092,671 948,956
- Reversal of write-down (6,600) (13,400) (6,600) (13,400)

Net 1,086,019 935,472 1,086,071 935,556
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

11. Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Separate Financial statements
Ownership Interest Paid-up capital Cost method

[

Singer (Broker) Limited 99.70 99.70 200 200 199 199
Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited 99.88 99.88 5,000 5,000 4,994 4,994
Total 5,200 5,200 5,193 5,193

12. Other long-term investment
(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2011 2010 2011

Fixed deposit - TISCO Bank Public Company Limited 1,000 1,000 = =

Total 1,000 1,000 = =

Fixed deposit is maintained as the minimum security required by the Department of Insurance Commission.

13. Property, plant and equipment
(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Financial statements

Land office Machinery
and land Leasehold | furniture and

improve improve and Construction | factory

ment Buildings ment equipment | in progress | equipment

Cost /revaluation

At 1 January 2010 201,693 131,067 110,834 112,014 - 29 555,637
Additions - - 1,697 9,965 216 - 11,878
Surplus on revaluation 27,322 321 - - - - 27,643
Disposals - - (76,020)  (7,486) - - (83,506)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 229,015 131,388 36,511 114,493 216 29 511,652
Additions - - 3,298 5,111 484 2 8,895
Transfers - - 660 - (660) - -
Disposals - - (261) (6,166) - - 6,427)

At 31 December 2011 229,015 131,388 40,208 113,438 40 31 514,120
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010
(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Financial statements

Land office Machinery
and land Leasehold | furniture and
improve improve and Construction | factory

ment Buildings ment equipment | in progress | equipment

Depreciation and

impairment loss

At 1 January 2010 = 102,470 100,704 104,162 = 3 307,339
Depreciation charge for the year = 6,099 4,462 5,263 = 6 15,830
Impairment losses on

revaluation 5,566 371 = = = = 5,937

Reversal of accumulated

depreciation on

revaluation surplus - (46,428) - - - - (46,428)
Disposals = = (75,069)  (5,961) = = (81,030)
At 31 December 2010and 5,566 62,512 30,097 103,464 - 9 201,648

1 January 2011
Depreciation charge for the year 2,472 4,068 4,318 = 6 10,858
Disposals - - (254)  (6,166) - - (6,420)
At 31 December 2011 5,566 64,984 33,911 101,616 - 15 206,092
Net book value
At 1 January 2010
Owned assets 201,693 28,597 10,130 6,940 - 26 247,386
Assets under finance leases = = = 912 = = 912

201,693 28,597 10,130 7,852 - 26 248,298

At 31 December 2010 and

1 January 2011

Owned assets 223,449 68,876 6,414 11,029 216 20 310,004

Assets under finance leases = = = = = = =
223,449 68,876 6,414 11,029 216 20 310,004

At 31 December 2011
Owned assets 223,449 66,404 6,297 11,822 40 16 308,028

Assets under finance leases - - = = - - _

223,449 66,404 6,297 11,822 40 16 308,028

The gross amount of the Group’s fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that was still in use as at 31 December

2011 amounted to Baht 144.72 million (2010: Baht 121.4 million).
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010
(in thousand Baht)

Separate nancial statements

Land office Machinery
and land Leasehold | furniture and
improve improve and Consruction | factory

ment Buildings ment equipment | in progress | equipment

Cost /revaluation
At 1 January 2010 201,693 131,067 110,834 112,014 - - 555,608
Additions - - 1,697 9,965 216 - 11,878
Surplus on revaluation 27,322 321 - - - - 27,643
Disposals - - (76,020)  (7,486) = = (83,500)
At 31 December 2010 and

1 January 2011 229,015 131,388 36,511 114,493 216 - 511,623
Additions - - 3,298 5,111 484 - 8,893
Transfers - - 660 - (660) - -
Disposals - - (261) (6,166) - - (6,427)
At 31 December 2011 229,015 131,388 40,208 113,438 40 - 514,089
Depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2010 - 102,470 100,704 104,162 - - 307,336
Depreciation charge for the year - 6,099 4,462 5,263 - - 15,824
Impairment losses on

revaluation 5,566 371 - - - - 5,937
Reversal of accumulated depreciation on

revaluation surplus - (46,428) - - - - (46,428)
Disposals - - (75,069)  (5,961) - - (81,030)
At 31 December 2010 and

1 January 2011 5,566 62,512 30,097 103,464 - - 201,639
Depreciation charge for the year - 2,472 4,068 4,318 - - 10,858
Disposals - - (254) (6,166) - - (6,420)
At 31 December 2011 5,566 64,984 33,911 101,616 - - 206,077

Net book value
At 1 January 2010

Owned assets 201,693 28,597 10,130 6,940 - - 247,360
Assets under finance leases - - - 912 - - 912
201,693 28,597 10,130 7,852 - - 248,272

At 31 December 2010 and
1 January 2011
Owned assets 223,449 68,876 6,414 11,029 216 - 309,984

Assets under finance leases - - = = - _ _

223,449 68,876 6,414 11,029 216 = 309,984

At 31 December 2011
Owned assets 223,449 66,404 6,297 11,822 40 - 308,012

Assets under finance leases - - = = - - _

223,449 66,404 6,297 11,822 40 = 308,012
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

The gross amount of the Group’s fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that was still in use as at 31 December
2011 amounted to Baht 144.72 million (2010: Baht 121.4 million).

The Company’s lands and buildings were pledged as collateral for loans under Debt Rescheduling Agreement (see Note
16). Net book value of these pledged lands and buildings as at 31 December 2011 amounted to Baht 289.85 million
(2010: Baht 292.33 million).

During 2010, the Company’s lands and buildings were reappraised by an independent valuer using the market comparison
approach. The value of the buildings was estimated using the cost of replacement, new less depreciation (CRNLD) of
the building, then the difference between the open market value and the building valuation was taken as the value of
land, resulting in an increase in the carrying value of lands and buildings in the amount of Baht 21.76 million and Baht
46.38 million, respectively.

Movement of unrealized surpluses on revaluation of assets for the years 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

(in thousand Baht)
Consolidated and Separate \
Financial statements
2011 2010
L]

Balance at 1 January 125,705 73,855
Revaluation of land - 27,322
Revaluation of building - 46,749
Difference from income tax reduction — deferred 17,788 -
Depreciation (1,695) -
(Increase) decrease in deferred tax liabilities 508 (22,221)
Net increase 16,601 51,850
Balance at 31 December 142,306 125,705

14. Intangible assets
(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate \
Financial statements
2011 2010

Cost of software licenses

At 1 January 36,745 44,363
Additions 833 5,096
Disposal (3,666) (12,714)
At 31 December 33,912 36,745
Amortization

At 1 January 16,752 23,426
Amortization charge for the year 6,907 6,040
Disposal (3,627) (12,714)
At 31 December 20,032 16,752

Net book value
At 31 December 13,880 19,993




128

KUNEIKQUS:noUdUNSIBU

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 1a: 2553

15. mdpuldsomsdauri

a o 4 ga A a 4 v o A o o o Y 4 IS = o dy
ﬁ‘u‘VITWElLLﬁZ‘YI‘Nﬁ“L!ﬂTHI,Qu"lﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂuiUu"lffﬂ‘c’ﬁ’ia\ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁuul'l‘ﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂuﬂ'lllﬂﬂllL1’13J1$ﬁ31 14 Llﬁﬂﬂudﬂﬂ‘ﬁiﬂimﬂﬂﬁztaﬂﬂﬂdu

(WuN)
oUMSIBUSOUIIA:
DUMSIBUIWDMS
2554 2553
FuniwdmiSuldsemsdatia® 157,507 158,500
nildumidulasemsdatiad (36,532) (53,873)
ans 120,975 104,627

2 a o X Aa yy v o ada X Voo X
518ﬂ15maau"lmmaqaumwﬂua:wuaumyLqu"lmammﬂmylmmﬂmuiuizmwﬂumu .
(WuuIM)

YUMISIDUSoUIIA:
VUMSIDUIRWI:ADMS
vuRnidusheshe / seldiu

C o S misuanu A
ru sun 1 unsA | miskSouianu P ru dun 31
10aieSodu

2554 (hunerka 28) O suoAu 2554

a v o a v v v A
aunswamudulasemsaniiyd

ﬁnﬁ'aﬂﬁmﬁﬂm:gm 92,790 (37,701) - 55,089
?iu?iaﬂﬁaﬂy,afhmm?{uﬁw 5,880 (2,890) - 2,990
ponlusuMAMSNoRBUTIS - 1,514 - 1,514
ﬂﬁauwaﬂiﬂwﬁwﬁmm 36,568 (9,936) - 26,632
ﬂamuﬁua:anwﬁﬂam 19,681 (6,794) - 12,887
Aniomsuilszfududn 1,800 (190) - 1,610
Miiteanudemennthion - 460 - 460
NANUNINMIADYMVRIFUNTNG 1,781 (594) - 1,187
gaananuenly - 55,138 - 55,138
U 158,500 (993) = 157,507

dya g a v L |
wuaumyuu'lmammﬂmyw

msanminlufiauuazoms (53,873) (447) 17,788 (36,532)
57U (53,873) 447 17,788 (36,532)
s 104,627 (1,440) 17,788 120,975

SINGER




Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

15. Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities determined after appropriate offsetting are included in the balance sheets as follows:

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate

Financial statements
2011 2010
L]

Deferred tax assets 157,507 158,500
Deferred tax liabilities (36,532) (53,873)
Net 120,975 104,627

Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year were as follows:
(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate
Financial statements
(Charged) / credited to:

Statement of Other comprehensive

At 1 . : At 31 December
income income

January 2011 (nofe 28) (nofe 13) 2011

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for doubtful accounts 92,790 (37,701) 55,089
Allowance for decline in value of inventories 5,880 (2,890) 2,990
Interest from installment sales - 1,514 1,514
Employee benefit obligations 36,568 (9,936) 26,632
Provision for provident fund 19,681 (6,794) 12,887
Provision for warranty 1,800 (190) 1,610
Provision for flooding damage - 460 460
Impairment loss on assets 1,781 (594) 1,187
Loss carry forward = 55,138 55,138
Total 158,500 (993) 157,507
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment (53,873) (447) 17,788 (36,532)
Total (53,873) (447) 17,788 (36,532)
Net 104,627 (1,440) 17,788 120,975
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate

Statement of

At 1

Financial statements

(Charged) / credited to:

income

January 2010

Deferred tax assets

(note 28)

Other comprehensive

income
(note 13)

At 31 December

2010

Allowance for doubtful accounts 113,067 (20,277) - 92,790
Allowance for decline in value of inventories 9,900 (4,020) - 5,880
Employee benefit obligations 53,788 (17,220) = 36,568
Provision for provident fund 20,618 (937) - 19,681
Provision for warranty 1,500 300 = 1,800
Impairment loss on assets - 1,781 - 1,781
Loss carry forward 4,687 (4,687) - -

Total 203,560 (45,060) - 158,500
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment (31,652) = (22,221) (53,873)
Total (31,652) - (22,221) (53,873)
Net 171,908 (45,060) (22,221) 104,627

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences that have not been recognised in the financial statements were as follows:

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate
Financial statements

2011 2010

Temporary differences - interest from installment sales = 14,950
Allowance for doubtful accounts - loans and other receivables 5,934 10,338
Loss carry forward 223,824 603,850
Total 229,758 629,138

16. Interest-bearing liabilities
(in thousand Baht)

Consohdated Fi

nancial statements

Separate Fina

A e

ncial statements \

2010 I

Current
Bank overdrafts 6,143 2,850 6,143 2,850
Current portion of long-term loans under debt
rescheduling agreement 91,143 91,143 91,143 91,143
Short-term loans from related parties 6 - - - 3,000
97,286 93,993 97,286 96,993

Non-current
Long-term loans under debt rescheduling 637,995 729,138 637,995 729,138
agreement

637,995 729,138 637,995 729,138
Total 735,281 823,131 735,281 826,131
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

The period to maturity of interest-bearing liabilities as at 31 December were as follows:

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Seﬁmrcte
financial statements financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

Within one year 97,286 93,993 97,286 96,993
After one year but within five years 637,995 729,138 637,995 729,138

After five years - = - -

Total 735,281 823,131 735,281 826,131

The bank overdrafts bear interest at the rates of 6.54% to 7.81% (2010: 6.12% to 7.35%) per annum and are unsecured.

As at 31 December 2011 the Group and the Company had unutilized credit facilities totaling Baht 108.65 million (2010:
Baht 111.95 million).

All loan agreements contain certain debt covenants and restrictions imposed by the borrowers regarding maintenance
of certain financial ratios and others.

Loans under Debt Rescheduling Agreement

In November 2009, the Company entered into a Debt Rescheduling Agreement with 10 financial institutions. The
Company had unpaid principal amounts due under loan agreements, which will be rescheduled, for total amount of Baht
1,012 million. The Company was required to mortgage its land and buildings as security in favor of each creditor on a
proportionate basis, based on the indebtedness amount of each creditor, as collateral to the creditor group pursuant to
the Debt Rescheduling Agreement and also must enter into the relevant land and buildings mortgage agreement for the
mortgaged amount of Baht 1,026 million.

The significant terms and conditions of the Debt Rescheduling Agreement are summarized as follows:
Restructured debts are categorized into 3 groups as follows;

1. Group 1: Overdraft Facilities: Baht 114.80 million

2. Group 2: Term Loan: Baht 43.93 million

3. Group 3: Promissory Notes: Baht 867.50 million

Term of restructuring: 6 years (last repayment on 30 March 2015)

Grace period (on principal): None

Principal repayment schedule:

Group 1: Overdraft facilities

All current overdraft facilities have been maintained throughout the restructuring period. The Company is obliged to
pay a fee for maintaining the committed line in the amount per annum equal to 0.25% of the facilities.

Group 2 and 3

Repayment of Group 2 and 3 debts has been made in quarterly installments of equal amount. The first ~ installment
equal to the amount due in 2009 was paid within 7 days from the date of the agreement. Subsequent installments will
be made on each calendar quarter. Principal amounts of repayment in each year are as follows:

Year 2009 — repayable 5% of total principal amount of Group 2 and 3 (Baht 45.57 million)
Year 2010 — repayable 5% of total principal amount of Group 2 and 3 (Baht 45.57 million)
Year 2011 — repayable 10% of total principal amount of Group 2 and 3 (Baht 91.14 million)
Year 2012 — repayable 10% of total principal amount of Group 2 and 3 (Baht 91.14 million)
Year 2013 — repayable 20% of total principal amount of Group 2 and 3 (Baht 182.29 million)
Year 2014 — repayable 20% of total principal amount of Group 2 and 3 (Baht 182.29 million)

Year 2015 — repayable 30% of total principal amount of Group 2 and 3 (Baht 273.40 million)

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
:1NAlNg 9Na (Unsu) / Singer Thailand Public Company Limited



134

KUNEIKQUS:noUdUNSIBU

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 1a: 2553

v 4 1 1 ]
namavsEnldaninsaszauQuauasumusnunmualulasnglalasinaniia disananamsaiiuanulddullau
wrvdszanaszt) Feennsatuiulasnenumsdeumunszuadudavesiniadddsz1d vSHnvzdeshszdiunnaiiy
Q' a s 4! % z ] o Y o N = Y a :: = 1 ] = v o a %
WinEnllasinadaly Fadmilazneufuldithszaulunsaitnadulaliiu 2 afamelu 1 3 udlinudamsmahsz@uau 2
4
Tasindaadaiu Taglifeindunsdiiatinsszvil

onsIAaNLLY

!
1A

ngud 1: Wlgdanaendemudyanifagiuveaudmiudazig

q
1 ¥V 1 ¥

ngun 2 waz 3: Wildanaenidedinds MLR vessmasnmsing waz snasnialne wlenduliimssiszaenidenn
AuiAou

v U (q; U
nannsudanilsenu

Ae WY o ¥ A a0 @ v ' o v . < o w g% o 4 o 3 X o o
vignldmhhusniusinduiiveseginnu 51 Susnwndmeadundnnindmisziilasmdsmudadiumiinuiu lnsmmua

Love X A A A o ALYA o M Ay o a Ao o o o X,
anslifunidszianGuidnifudadsdbiinhszauGuiumumanamshiszGuiidvualudyandiudssmshssivhiy
21.19% veyasmanyszinluvasiniidszianGuiniszeznmnufuniidszianddyanld@ueziansuniy 78.81% ves
yammdnisziu

ma“lmammﬂinﬂsami‘m"ﬂu "lﬂﬂmuﬂ"lﬁummaqﬂgmmnLaau"l‘uLLawuamﬂﬂmqﬂs“mﬁ mum“n"l?lu U 1BU MINT
faTIaEIUMIMsIu mimﬂuuﬁuwaua:auq

viduninmszaeneimuaveanguusEnuazuiim o Jud 31 funan 2554 waz 2553 (WHudnaiuum

17. mrndmsA

(WuN)

OUMSIDUSIU PUMSIDURWNIDMS
KUNBIKC
2554 2553 2554 2553

qﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂmiﬁlﬁlm‘ﬁmﬁu 6 = = = =
yAAAKIONIMIOU 140,501 76,619 140,064 75,980
39U 140,501 76,619 140,064 75,980

v g Y s dl s o a Y o g
goALNINUMIM o Jun 31 Sunau ﬁmmuﬂi:mwaqamumﬂﬂmu
(WuwN)

LUNISIBUSOU LUMSIDUIIWIADMS

2554 2553 2554 2553

danaduum 135,480 75,674 135,043 75,035
danaluvieganigeusm 5,021 945 5,021 945
3 140,501 76,619 140,064 75,980

SINGER




Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

17.

If the Company cannot make principal repayment in full amount on any quarter because its operation result (as verified
by cash flow report reviewed by independent accountant) is not in line with the annual budget, the Company shall pay
the shortfall amount within the next quarter without treating it as an event of default, provided that the Creditors agree
to give such relaxation not more than twice per year but not including circumstance where the Company fails to make

principal repayment in full amount for two consecutive quarters.

Interest rate

For Group 1: at normal interest rates of each creditor.

For Group 2 and 3 : using average MLR of TMB and KTB, and interest has been paid on a monthly basis.
Collateral

The Company has provided its 51 shops as collateral. The collateral has been shared among the creditors in proportion
to the outstanding debts. The creditors providing overdraft facilities, who are not entitled to receive principal installment
repayments under the agreement will be entitled to 21.19% of the collateral value, while the creditors providing term

loan and promissory note facilities will be entitled to 78.81% of the collateral value.

Under the Debt Rescheduling Agreements, the Company is required to comply with conditions and restrictions as

stipulated in the agreements such as maintenance of financial ratios, dividend payment and others.

Interest-bearing liabilities of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were denominated entirely
in Thai Baht.

Trade accounts payable

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
N financial statements financial statements
6

2011 2010 2011 2010

Related parties = = = =
Other parties 140,501 76,619 140,064 75,980
Total 140,501 76,619 140,064 75,980

The currency denomination of trade accounts payable as at 31 December was as follows:

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements Finqnciaﬁ)stctements
2011 2010 2011 2010

Thai Baht (THB) 135,480 75,674 135,043 75,035
United States Dollars (USD) 5,021 945 5,021 945

Total 140,501 76,619 140,064 75,980
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

18. Other current liabilities

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements ﬁnancicﬁ) statements
2011 2010 2011 2010

Accrued advertising and sales promotion 36,475 21,657 36,475 21,657
Accrued commission 12,606 10,544 12,600 10,535
Interest payable 3,697 4,224 3,697 4,224
Dividend payable 197 193 197 193
VAT payable 3,922 5,556 3,917 5,543
Others 54,489 43,953 54,256 43,765
Total 111,386 86,127 111,142 85,917

19. Employee benet obligations

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate Financial statements 1

o0 | o010 |

Balance sheet obligations for:
Defined benefit obligations 133,157 121,893

133,157 121,893

The Group and the Company operate a defined benefit pension plan based on the requirement of Thai Labour Protection

Act B.E 2541 (1998) to provide retirement benefits to employees based on pensionable remuneration and length of service.

The balance sheet obligation was determined as follows:
(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate Financial statements
2011 2010 |

Present value of unfunded obligations 133,157 121,893

Balance sheet obligation 133,157 121,893

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations:

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate

Financial statements
2011 2010
L]

Defined benefit obligations at 1 January 121,893 179,293
Benefits paid by the plan (5,536) 6,117)
Current service costs and interest 16,800 25,715
Actuarial gains in profit or loss = (76,998)

Defined benefit obligations at 31 December 133,157 121,893




KUNEIKQUS:noUdUNSIBU

ansuidavauaasun 31 suonAu 2554 1a: 2553

s (nold) nulumlsvsenany
(Wuwn)

oUMSIBUSoUIA:
OUNMISIDUIRWI:NIDMS

aunuusmstfagiiu 12,503 18,875
ﬂaﬂl,ﬁtlﬁnﬂmizwvﬂﬁu 4,297 6,840
mlsnnmsdszainamundnmsadiamanssziudenivilumlsnanu = (76,998)
57U 16,800 (51,283)

mlsnnmstsanamimdnmsadinmanitsziudsdhinainnnmsanasensisszddauesinuninnunelssnnldummnevin

fldie (eld) niuilunemsdeldilusumlsnany
(Wuwn)

ouMSIdUSoUIEa:
LUNMISIDUIWI:NDMS

Mlsnnmsdsznamuvdnmsadinenaailseduse - (76,998)
ml¥nelumsne 11,760 17,743
mlFanelumsusms 5,040 7,972
33U 16,800 (51,283)

1 1 v
FoduyAndnlumstszinamsmundnmsadiamnansisziude a Juinenu (uaaslagdsdiasdinimin)

oUMSIdUSoUIIA:
oUuNMISIBUWI:ADMS

fananan s Jun 31 Sunau Jp8az 3.6 Jp8as 3.6
m3sAuvesdudenluenn
o Ay Yo a A ) v
- wilnanunlasutuneu Jegar 3.5 J98az 3.5
c% d' Vo 1 YV 1 YV o 1 Y o
- wifpanun ldsuamnemth maadsznamsdinemn Yl mnalsanamsannemi Uil
meduiledasas 3.5 mekuiledasas 3.5

‘ll't]ﬁllll(ﬂI,ﬂiJ]ﬂ'iJ6(91i'l11iil‘l“’n’l,‘l‘l'f]‘Lﬂﬂ(?li’lEl@nll"llf]llﬁ"mdﬁQ Mwgunsmlduazmnansue

v =
VYolaona

(WU

yamifgiuveamazyniuithild
Falviineanu 166,319 155,709 179,293 121,893 133,157

3 SINGER




Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Expense (income) recognised in profit or loss

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate

Financial statements
2011 2010
L

Current service costs 12,503 18,875
Interest on obligation 4,297 6,840
Actuarial gains recognised = (76,998)
Total 16,800 (51,283)

Actuarial gain resulted from a significant reduction in the commissioned agent category of employee of the Company.

The expense (income) is recognised in the following line items in the statements of income:

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate

Financial statements
2011 2010
L

Actuarial gains - (76,998)
Selling expenses 11,760 17,743
Administrative expenses 5,040 7,972
Total 16,800 (51,283)

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Consolidated and Separate
Financial statements
2011 2010

Discount rate at 31 December 3.6% 3.6%
Future salary increases
- salaried staff 3.5% p.a. 3.5% p.a.
- commissioned agent Notional commission model, inflated Notional commission model, inflated
by price inflation of 3.5% p.a. by price inflation of 3.5% p.a.

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

Historical information

(in thousand Baht)

Present value of unfunded
obligations 166,319 155,709 179,293 121,893 133,157
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

20. Provident funds (in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate
Financial statements
2011 2010

At 1 January 105,159 109,082
Provision used
- Company and interest (7,538) (8,980)
- Employee (3,141) (4,052)
Provision setup
- Company and interest 5,592 6,329
- Employee 2,582 2,780
At 31 December 102,654 105,159

The provident funds for staff of Singer are established and managed by the Company. Membership of the funds is on
a voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly by the salesmen and shop managers at the rates fixed by the fund
criteria and by the Company at the same amount deducted from salesmen and shop managers whose remuneration being
commission based is therefore variable and not fixed as with basic salaries. Consequently, the funds do not qualify to be
registered with the Ministry of Finance as juristic entities nor can the funds be managed by a licensed Fund Manager.
Therefore the funds have been established on a voluntary basis and managed by the Company based on the relevant
criteria set-down by the Company governing the fund contributions and benefits. The contributions are based on the
number of years of membership and at rates fixed by the fund criteria.

21. ShGre capifa| (thousand share/thousand Baht)

Par vo|ue per share 20] ] 20] O

P P —
Authorized

At 1 January

- ordinary shares 1 270,000 270,000 283,500 283,500
Reduction of shares 1 - - (13,500) (13,500)

At 31 December

- ordinary shares 1 270,000 270,000 270,000 270,000
Issued and paid

At 1 January

- ordinary shares 1 270,000 270,000 270,000 270,000

At 31 December
- ordinary shares 1 270,000 270,000 270,000 270,000

The Company’s shareholders at the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on 21 April 2010 passed a resolution
to decrease the Company’s registered capital from Baht 283.50 million, consisting of 283.5 million shares with a par
value of Baht 1 per share, to Baht 270 million consisting of 270 million shares with a par value of Baht 1 per share by
reducing 13.5 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 so that the Company’s register capital is in line with
its paid-up capital. The 13.5 million ordinary shares were due to be issued in respect to the exercise of conversion
rights of the Company’s warrants, which were cancelled in 2009 due to a director of the Company who subsequently
resigned from the position of director and the position of Managing Director of the Company with no conversion of
rights having been exercised.

The Company registered the decrease in share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 7 May 2010.

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

22.

23.

24.

Additional paid-in capital and reserves
Share premium

Section 51 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires companies to set aside share subscription monies received
in excess of the par value of the shares issued to a reserve account (“share premium”). Share premium is not available

for dividend distribution.
Legal reserve

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires that a company shall allocate not less than 5% of its annual
net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve account (“legal reserve”), until this account reaches an

amount not less than 10% of the registered authorised capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
Valuation changes

The valuation changes account within equity comprises the cumulative net change in the valuation of property, plant and
equipment included in the financial statements at valuation until such property, plant and equipment is sold or otherwise

disposed of.
Segment reporting

The Group operates in a single line of business, namely the sales by hire purchase contracts of sewing machines and
electrical appliances in domestic markets and the Group operates in a single geographic area in Thailand. Management
considers that the Group has only one major business segment and geographic segment and it is the same segment. As
a result, all of the revenues, income and assets as reflected in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned

business segment and geographic area.

Selling expenses

(in thousand Baht)
Consolidated Se?o rate
financial statements financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
1 O

Personnel expenses 527,136 498,480 526,717 497,588
Management service fee 25,267 21,734 25,275 21,734
Rental expense 37,334 36,426 37,330 36,419
Bad and doubtful debt 67,751 32,990 67,751 32,990
Bad debt recovery (21,224) (23,778) (21,224) (23,778)
Travel expenses 64,607 61,624 64,607 61,624
Loss on repossession 54,885 63,270 54,885 63,270
Local freight 24,360 22,918 24,360 22,918
Advertising 37,210 16,892 37,210 16,892
Product warranty 26,186 29,713 26,186 29,713
Others 28,319 34,779 28,319 34,794
Total 871,831 795,048 871,416 794,164

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

25. Administrative expenses

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements ﬁnancia?statements
2011 2010 2011 2010

Personnel expenses 136,843 134,629 136,528 134,328
Rental expense 14,016 13,820 14,016 13,820
Depreciation and

amortization 17,772 21,870 17,766 21,864
Travel expenses 37,332 37,354 37,332 37,354
Stationery 12,711 15,142 12,711 15,142
Professional fee 9,888 14,291 9,710 14,082
Others 9,731 16,630 9,726 16,628
Total 238,293 253,736 237,789 253,218

26. Employee benet expenses
(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Seﬁ)orate
financial statements financial statements

2011 2010 2011 2010

Management
Wages and salaries 26,454 22,792 26,454 22,792
Contribution to defined contribution plans, 1,524 1,416 1,524 1,416
employee benefit and social security
Others 1,044 1,063 1,044 1,063
29,022 25,271 29,022 25,271
Other employees
Wages and salaries 123,679 123,963 123,392 123,690
Commission 381,569 347,568 381,150 346,675
Contribution to defined contribution plans, 40,032 52,950 40,004 52,923
employee benefit and social security
Sales incentive 80,967 76,207 80,967 76,207
Others 8,710 7,150 8,710 7,150
634,957 607,838 634,223 606,645
Total 663,979 633,109 663,245 631,916

The defined contribution plans comprise provident funds established by the companies in the Group for their employees.
Membership to the funds is on a voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly by the employees at rates ranging from
5% to 10% of their basic salaries and by the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employees’ basic salaries.

The provident funds are registered with the Ministry of Finance as juristic entities and are managed by a licensed Fund

Manager.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

27. Finance costs

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Se?arote
N financial statements financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010

Finance costs:

Related parties 6 - - 42 238
Financial institutions 54,741 52,168 54,741 52,168
Others 3,024 3,389 3,024 3,389
Total 57,765 55,557 57,807 55,795

28. Income tax expense

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
N financial statements financial statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
1 1 1 e e —

Current tax expense

Current year 46 79 = =
Deferred tax expense 15
Movements in temporary differences 12,399 45,060 12,399 45,060
Income tax reduction - deferred 44,179 - 44,179 -
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses (55,138) = (55,138) =

1,440 45,060 1,440 45,060
Total income tax expense 1,486 45,139 1,440 45,060

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

2011 2010

Before L Net of Before L
(expense) (expense)
fax X fax fax :
benefit benefit

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment - - - 74,071 (22,221) 51,850

Income tax reduction - deferred - 17,788 - - - -

Total = 17,788 = 74,071 (22,221) 51,850
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Consolidated Financial statements

(in thousand Baht) (in thousand Baht)

Profit for the year 142,458 89,365
Total income tax expense 1,486 45,139
Profit before total income tax expense 143,944 134,504
Income tax using the Thai corporation tax rate 30 43,183 30 40,351
Income tax reduction - deferred 44,179 =
Effect of income tax from subsidiaries 106 (38)
Income difference between accounting and tax (387) 3,183
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (55,138) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (40,298) =
Recognition of previously unrecognised (1,514) -
temporary difference
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 11,355 1,643
Total 1.03 1,486 33.6 45,139

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Separate Financial statements

2011

(in thousand Baht) (in thousand Baht)

Profit for the year 142,705 89,054
Total income tax expense 1,440 45,060
Profit before total income tax expense 144,145 134,114
Income tax using the Thai corporation tax rate 30 43,243 30 40,234
Income tax reduction - deferred 44,179 -
Income difference between accounting and tax (387) 3,183
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (55,138) =
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (40,298) =
Recognition of previously unrecognised (1,514) -
temporary difference
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 11,355 1,643
Total 1.0 1,440 33.6 45,060

Income tax reduction - deferred

On 11 October 2011, the Cabinet passed a resolution regarding tax measures to increase Thailand’s competitiveness
and approved the reduction of the corporate income tax rate from 30% to 23% of net taxable profit for the accounting
period 2012 which ends on or after 31 December 2012 and to 20% of net taxable profit for the accounting period which

begins on or after 1 January 2013 and onwards.

In order to give effect to the above Cabinet resolution, the Government has issued a Royal Decree under the Revenue
Code regarding the Reduction and Exemption in Income Taxes (No. 530) B.E. 2554 to reduce the corporate income
tax rate for the three accounting periods 2012, 2013 and 2014; from 30% to 23% for the accounting period 2012 which
begins on or after 1 January 2012 and to 20% for the following two accounting periods 2013 and 2014 which begin on
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

29.

30.

31.

or after 1 January 2013 and 2014, respectively. It is understood that the Government will proceed to amend the law in
order to maintain the corporate income tax rate at not higher than 20% for the accounting period 2015 which begins on
or after 1 January 2015 and onwards in order to give full effect to the Cabinet resolution.

Such announcement on the reduction of income tax rate has an impact on the measurement of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities since Thai Accounting Standard No. 12 Income Taxes paragraph 47 states that deferred tax assets
and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The Federation of Accounting Professions has considered this matter and has resolved that the substantively enacted tax
rates which should be applied in measuring deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be the reduced rates as approved by
the Cabinet; i.e. 23% shall be applied for the accounting period 2012 and 20% shall be applied for accounting periods
2013 onwards.

Earnings per share

The calculations of basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 were based on the profit
for the years attributable to equity holders of the Company and the number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
years as follows:

(in thousand Baht / thousand shares)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements Fincnciaﬁ)statements
2011 2010 2011 2010

Profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company (basic) 142,458 89,365 142,705 89,054

Number of ordinary shares outstanding 270,000 270,000 270,000 270,000

Basic earnings per share (in Baht) 0.53 0.33 0.53 0.33
Dividends

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 28 April 2011, the shareholders approved the
appropriation of dividend of Baht 0.10 per share, amounting to Baht 27 million. The dividend was paid to shareholders
during 2011.

Financial instruments
Financial risk management policies

The Group is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates and currency exchange rates and
from non-performance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group
defines as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders’ equity. In addition, the Group has to maintain
debt to equity ratio as stipulated in the Debt Rescheduling Agreement.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the Group’s operations
and its cash flow because loan interest rates are mainly float. The Group is primarily exposed to interest rate risk from
its borrowings (Note 16).

s1eUUs:DWU 2554 / Annual Report 2011
:1NAlNg 9Na (Unsu) / Singer Thailand Public Company Limited
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

The effective interest rates of interest-bearing financial liabilities as at 31 December and the periods in which those
liabilities mature or re-price were as follows:

Consolidated financial statement

Effective L After 1 year After Five years
interest rate Within 1 year but within 5 years

(% per annum) (in thousand Baht)

2011
Current
Bank overdrafts 7.72 6,143 = = 6,143
Current portion of long-term loans

under debt rescheduling agreement 7.38 91,143 = = 91,143
Total 97,286 - - 97,286

Non - Current

Long-term loans under debt rescheduling

agreement 7.38 - 637,995 - 637,995
Total - 637,995 - 637,995
2010
Current
Bank overdrafts 6.12 — 7.35 2,850 - - 2,850
Current portion of long term loans

under debt rescheduling agreement 6.19 91,143 - - 91,143
Total 93,993 = = 93,993

Non - Current
Long-term loans under debt

rescheduling
agreement 6.19 - 729,138 - 729,138

Total = 729,138 = 729,138

Separate financial statements

Effective - Alfter 1 year After Five years
interesf rate Within 1 year but within 5 years Total

A per annum in thousand Baht

T P E—
2011
Current
Bank overdrafts 7.72 6,143 = = 6,143
Current portion of long term loans under

debt rescheduling agreement 7.38 91,143 = = 91,143

Total 97,286 = = 97,286
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Separate Financial statements

i - After 1 i
 Effective Within 1 year or 1 year After Five years
interest rate ithin 5 yea

(% por onur)

2011
Non - Current
Long-term loans under debt

rescheduling

agreement 7.38 = 637,995 = 637,995
Total = 637,995 = 637,995
2010
Current
Bank overdrafts 6.12 —7.35 2,850 = = 2,850
Current portion of long term loans under

debt rescheduling agreement 6.19 91,143 - - 91,143
Short-term loan from related party 6.00 3,000 - = 3,000
Total 96,993 = = 96,993

Non - Current
Long-term loans under debt

rescheduling
agreement 6.19 = 729,138 = 729,138

Total = 729,138 = 729,138

Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk relating to purchases which are denominated in foreign currencies.

At 31 December, the Group and the Company were exposed to foreign currency risk in respect of financial liabilities

denominated in the following currencies:

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate
N financial statements
2011 2010
| e —
United States Dollars
Trade accounts payable 17 5,021 945
Gross balance sheet exposure 5,021 945
Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or counterparty to settle its financial

and contractual obligations to the Group as and when they fall due.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

32.

33.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The products are sold under hire
purchase agreements and the installment accounts receivable are secured by the products sold. The maximum exposure

to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management
to finance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair values have been determined for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about

the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
The fair value of all financial assets and liabilities is taken to approximate the carrying value.

Commitments with non-related parties

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate
financial statements
2011 2010

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Within one year 45,878 44,775
After one year but within five years 51,974 26,665
After five years 992 1,223
Total 98,844 72,663

The Group has commitment relating to rental agreements of office buildings, shop buildings, warehouse, vehicles and

office equipment. The rental fees, terms and conditions are as described in the agreements.

(in thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate
financial statements
2011 2010

Other commitments
Bank guarantees 37 437

Total 37 437

Events after the reporting period

The Board of Directors of the Company meeting held on 24 February 2012 proposed a resolution approving a dividend

payment in respect of the results of the operations in 2011 of Baht 0.2 per share, amounting to Baht 54 million. However,

this resolution must get approval from the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

34. Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) not yet adopted

S5

The Group has not adopted the following new and revised TFRS that have been issued as of the reporting date but are
not yet effective. The new and revised TFRS are anticipated to become effective for annual financial periods beginning

on or after 1 January in the year indicated in the following table.

TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign 2013

Exchange Rates

Management expects to adopt and apply these new TFRS in accordance with the FAP’s announcement and is presently

considering the potential initial impact on the consolidated and separate financial statements.
TAS 21 (revised 2009) - The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

The principal change introduced by TAS 21 is the introduction of the concept of functional currency, which is defined as
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. TAS 21 requires the entity to determine
its functional currency and translate foreign currency items into its functional currency, reporting the effects of such
translation in accordance with the provisions of TAS 21. Foreign currencies are defined by TAS 21 as all currencies

other than the entity’s functional currency.

Management has determined that the functional currency of the Company is Thai Baht. Accordingly, the adoption of
TAS 21 from 1 January 2013 is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s reported assets, liabilities

or retained earnings.
Reclassication of accounts

Certain accounts in the 2010 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the 2011 financial
statements. These reclassifications have principally been made following changes in accounting policies consequent

to the adoption of new or revised TFRS as disclosed in note 4. Other significant reclassifications were as follows:

(in million Baht)

Consolidated financial stafements Separate financial statements

Before After Before After
Reclass Reclass
reclass reclass reclass reclass

Statement of comprehensive

income
Other income (21,888) 3,622 18,266 (21,985) 3,622 18,363
Cost of sale of goods 939,095 (3,622) 935,473 939,178 (3,622) 935,556

The reclassifications have been made because, in the opinion of management, the new classification is more appropriate

to the Group’s business.
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On April 28, 2011, Singer Thailand Public Company
Limited held AGM No. 44 at the Conference Room located
at F1. 30, CAT Tower, Bangrak, Bangkok, in order to consider

various agenda items, whereby this event was attended by all

the Company’s Board of Directors, Management team as well

as Singer’s Shareholders.
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Singer Thailand Public Company Limited warmly welcomed a group of Singer’s shareholders visiting the operations and
management of the Company, More than 50 investors registered and attended the presentation of company overview. On the
same occasion, they also made a Q&A session chaired by Singer’s Executive Management in order to enhance confidence on

the part of invest. The event took place on July 7, 2011.
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During 2011, Singer Thailand Public Company Limited participated in the
“Opportunity Day” event together with the SET three times, in order to
present its performance results for the FY/2010 as well as
for Q2/2011 and Q3/2011. Many investors,
analysts and other interested parties
attended every session. Those wishing
to view the recorded presentations
by Singer Thailand can do so by
accessing the Company website

(www.singerthailand.co.th).
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Again for year 2012, Singer Thailand Public Company
Limited has arranged higher challenges activity to motivate
all singer team again with “Singer 2012 Climbing to Greater
Height” mission. All of management, supervisors, and
employees, total 250 in all, have joined together to reach the
critical mission; to achieve revenues of Baht 3,000 million
within this year. We all were involving walking and running
up to Khun Dan Prakarnchon Dam, Nakornnayok province.
Apart from being a healthy exercise, this endeavor to conquer
this high landmark is designed to inspire and motivate the joint

commitment of Team Singer to achieve the established and

agreed revenues goals.
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“Mob Fah” Canvassing And The Big Cleaning Day
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Singer Thailand Public Company Limited undertook the ‘Mob Fah’
campaign. The Canvass Team will go to to visit the entrepreneurs nationwide to
introduce SINGER s electrical appliances and offering the special service, Free
beverage cooler’s condenser cleaning both Singer branded and non-Singer branded
which started from February 2012 onward on every Wednesday. This can help
reducing the electricity consumption and more cooling efficiency. This strategy can
ensure the impression of the grocery shops’ owner which are our target customers
and also increase the selling opportunity of our beverage cooler as well as Brand
Loyalty to all of our customers. A new exceptional selling opportunity has just

begun and none of the competitors can do as Singer Thailand do!
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Singer “giving moral support” to those suffering

from breast cancer
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SINGER

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited has cooperated with Sabina PCL. and
Muang Thai Life Assurance Co., Ltd., organized “Sabina Sewing Cup Sewing

Heart...Start Forward” project to care about and give moral support to those
suffering from breast cancer. The project aimed to undertake an
awareness campaign about breast cancer among Thai women, so that

they can learn more and better understand about this disease as well

as look after their health in a better way and be free from this disease.
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SINGER Donated Sewing Machinesto The Cooperative
Women Group in South of Thailand Area
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Singer Thailand Public Company Limited,

donated 15 Singer Sewing Machines to the
Coopertive Women Group of I-Jujoh village at
Srisakorn, Narathiwat, in the South of Thailand.
The group was suspended their earning from the

harvest of latex due to the timing. This Occasion

will let them have a chance to increase their

knowledge, skill and earning with the sewing,
follow to the Singer’s Project “Build up the
career for more earning and safety to people in
the South of Thailand”.
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The Kamlangjai Project under the Royal Initiative of Her Royal
Highness Princess Bajarakitiyabha
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SINGER

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited participated
The Kamlangjai Project under the Royal Initiative of Her Royal
Highness Princess Bajarakitiyabha which established with the
aim to give helping hand to support people who once made
mistakes to become good citizens in the society. As the initial
‘pilot’ project, Singer Thailand donated sewing machines to
Ratchaburi Central Prison, Rachaburi Province as well as sent
the staffs to train and teach the vocational programs about
sewing skills to female inmates which they can practice and

take it for their livelihood after they leave the prison.
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As the Flood Crisis occurred in late 2011, it had impact
on people’s lives, causing a shortage of food and drinking water,
making many homeless, affecting them with water-related
diseases or illness, as well as causing extensive damage to their
homes and valuable belongings.

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited anticipated
such problems and adverse affects on people’s live, therefore,
volunteered to be a part of the much needed and extensive
relief efforts to all those affected by the flood. After the flood
crisis ended, we were the very first company to help these
flood victims especially on damaged electrical appliances. We
provided free services on any products, any brands and created

customer’s satisfaction. There are many people interested and

took their appliances to us for fixing.
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SINGER Thailand Public Company Limited

72 CAT Telecom Tower 17" Fl., Charoen Krung Road, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500
Tel. (66)-2352-4777 Fax. (66)-2352-4799

Call Center: 0-2234-7171
www.singerthai.co.th



